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Vision:

To be a responsive organization for development of clean power with due care
and concern to the environment.

Mission:

» To harness hydropower potential for the benefit of the people at large by
optimally utilizing the untapped water resources.

» To achieve excellence in development of clean power at per with
international standards, uphold the principles of Trust, Integrity and
Transparency.

» To create a competitive working environment with long term career
prospects of employees whereby they will nurture a culture to learn, grow
and put their best effort to the growth of the company.

» To execute & operate projects through efficient and competent contract
management and innovative R&D in environment friendly and
socio-economically responsive manner.

» To practice the best corporate governance and competent value-based
management for a strong corporate identity and showing concern for local
community, customers, environment, employees and society.
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> Registered Office:
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Members,

It is my proud privilege to present 03" Annual Report of your Company. Your Company
is making headway in execution of Ratle Hydroelectric Project (850 MW), a run-of-river
scheme over River Chenab in the Kishtwar District of UT of J&K, which falls under the Indus
Water Treaty 1960 between India and Pakistan.

Since, the Ratle HE Project is under construction stage and is yet to start operation,
therefore, your Company has not earned any revenue from operations during FY 2023-24.
However, the Company has earned Rs.602.01 lakh as interest income from funds received
from promoters towards equity kept in term deposits with SBI and reported a profit of
Rs.404.38 lakh for the FY 2023-24.

The Management of your Company is committed to act in the best interest of all its
stakeholders. As a Public Sector Enterprise, your Company has been broadly complying with
the requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India. A separate section on corporate governance furnishing applicable
details forms part of the Directors’ Report for FY 2023-24.

Your Company recognizes its responsibility towards the Project Affected Families and
society at large. During the FY 2023-24, your Company had spent Rs.21.46 lakh on
Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

I hereby affirm the commitment of management to complete construction and
commission the Ratle HE Project as per approved schedule.

I take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our shareholders, Government of India,
Government of UT of J&K, Ministry of Power, NHPC Limited, JKSPDC Limited, C&AG, Auditors,
Bankers and all other stakeholders of the Company for their support, enthusiasm and
cooperation which are the source of constant inspiration for us. I would also like to thank my
fellow Board members and team of dedicated and hardworking employees for their
commitment and tireless efforts.

Looking forward for your continued and unstinted support.

Sd/-
/]uc]ra Deva Da yd])
Chairman
DIN: 09189051
Date: 070902024
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sh. Indra Deva Dayal
Chairman and Nominee of JKSPDCL
DIN: 09189651

Shri Indra Deva Dayal is a Civil Engineering graduate of 1979 batch
from BHUIT, now IIT, Varanasi. He has been holding the position of
Chairman-Nominee Director of Govt. of UT of J&K on the Board of the
Company since its incorporation on 01.06.2021.

Shri Dayal joined NHPC in 1980 as Executive Trainee and reached to
the level of Executive Director. Subsequently achieved Diploma in Management degree from
IGNOU. He has vast experience in Hydro Sector of more than 40 years of working in different
projects such as Salal, Dhaleshwari, Tanakpur, Chamera-l, Design & Engg, Dam Safety
(O&M), Omkareshwar, Parbati-1l, Parbati-11l, Contract etc. He is Strategist cum Implementer
in managing Hydro Power Projects from Concept to Commissioning.

Under his dynamic leadership, Omkareshwar Project (520 MW) was commissioned in record
time before schedule and the project received award of best early commissioned project by
Govt of India. He was nodal officer nominated by NHPC for implementation, monitoring and
commissioning of Teesta-lll project (1200 MW), Sikkim. AS Design head, Sh. Dayal was also
instrumental in providing timely technical/design support and the project was commissioned
in anticipated time.

He is life member of ISRMTT (Indian Society of Rock Mechanics & tunnelling Technology),
INHA (India National Hydro Association) and ICA (Indian Council of Arbitration) and also
represented NHPC in CBIP, INCOLD and Dam Safety Incharge to CWC. He published many
technical papers and also visited France, Netherlands, Bhutan, Ethiopia and Hungary in
connection to Hydro Projects.

Sh. Dayal has excellence as a Team Leader for expediting Hydro Projects and meeting the
set targets.

Sh. H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS
Nominee of JKSPDCL
DIN: 06516512

Shri H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS, is an Indian Administrative Services Officer
of 1995 batch. Shri Prasad is a graduate in Commerce Stream and
further completed Master of Business Administration from Indian
Institute of Management, Bangalore, M.P.M. from Pondicherry
University & LL.B. from University Delhi. He is presently Principal
Secretary, Power Development Department, Govt. of Jammu &

Kashmir.

Shri Prasad is holding the position of Nominee Director of JKSPDCL on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 21.10.2022.




Sh. Santosh D. Vaidya, IAS
Nominee of JKSPDCL
DIN: 05340193

Shri Santosh D. Vaidya is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of
1998 batch. Shri Vaidya holds Bachelor Degree in Technology from
IIT, Kharagpur and further completed Masters in Public Policy from
Johns Hopkins University, United States of America. He is presently
posted as Principal Secretary, Finance Department, Govt. of Jammu &
Kashmir.

Shri Vaidya is holding the position of Nominee Director of JKSPDCL on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 17.08.2023.

Sh. Rajendra Prasad Goyal

o a— Nominee of NHPC Limited

= ‘ DIN: 08645380
‘a !“‘ | Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal is an Associate Member of the Institute of
i -

Cost Accountants of India and also holds a Master's Degree in
Commerce from the University of Rajasthan, Jaipur. He has been
holding the position of Nominee Director of NHPC Limited on the
Board of the Company since its incorporation on 01.06.2021.

Presently, Sh. Goyal is serving as Director (Finance) in NHPC Limited

w.e.f. 01.10.2020.

Sh. Goyal has vast experience of more than 34 years in NHPC Ltd. and worked in various
capacities at many Projects, Power Stations, Regional Office and Corporate Office of NHPC.

Sh. Goyal has immense understanding in the core areas of Finance with in-depth
understanding and knowledge of Financial, Contractual and Regulatory issues involved in
construction as well operations of Hydro Projects. His leadership qualities, ability to work
hard with conceptual clarity and professionalism are outstanding.

Sh. Goyal is also serving as Nominee Director on the Board of Loktak Downstream
Hydroelectric Corporation Limited (LDHCL), Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Ltd.
(CVPPPL), NHDC Limited (subsidiary Companies of NHPC Limited).

Sh. Sanjay Kumar Singh
Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 10718481

Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh is holding the post of Director (Projects) in
NHPC Limited. He has more than 32 years of vast & varied experience
in Power & Infrastructure sector in respect of execution of mega and
prestigious projects in India & Bhutan. He holds degree in Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil). He has also worked in SJVN as Head of the
Project of Sunni Dam HEP (Construction stage), Naitwar Mori HEP
(Construction stage), Luhri HEP stage Il (S&l stage), Jhakhol Sankri HEP (S&l stage). He
has also served as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of STPL (A wholly owned subsidiary of
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SJVN Ltd.). In addition, he was responsible at different positions for construction of major
critical components of largest Hydroelectric Power Project of India i.e. Nathpa Jhakri
Hydroelectric Project (HP), Tala Hydroelectric Project (Bhutan) and S&l/ Pre construction
activities of Devsari Hydroelectric Project (Uttarakhand).

He worked at various levels for Key project activities like Project Construction, Survey &
Investigation/ Pre-construction including preparation of Detailed Project report and cost
estimate, formulation of bid documents, evaluation of bids, issue of awards, contract
management, Project Planning & Monitoring, liaisoning and follow up with various Ministries/
Departments such as CWC/ CEA/ MoP, MOEF&CC, Pollution Control Board for various
clearances like Environment, Forest, Tech-economic, Public Investment Board etc.

Shri Singh is holding the position of Nominee Director of NHPC on the Board of the Company
w.e.f. 21.08.2024.

Sh. Vishal Kumar Saini
cegl Nominee of NHPC Limited
aa DIN: 10750747

Shri Vishal Kumar Saini is a graduate in Civil Engineering from DTU
erstwhile Delhi College of Engineering. He did his post-graduation
form IIT Kanpur in Structural Engineering. He starred his
professional career in NHPC in the year 1989 as Probationary
Executive from Dulhasti Hydroelectric Project in Kishtwar.

During his distinguished career spanning over 35 years in NHPC,
Shri Saini worked in various levels in NHPC and with his dedication
and commitment, he rose to the post of Executive Director and presently heading the Design
& Engineering Division. Shri Saini has extensive experience in the field of planning,
designing & engineering of various hydro-electric projects and also associated with the
construction of Hydroelectric Projects. Shri Saini was involved in the execution of
underground power house cavern of Dulhasti HE Project. He has vast experience in the
preparation of DPR, Tender Stage Design and Detailed designing of Hydroelectric projects.

During his long association with NHPC in the field of Design and Engineering, he was
involved in the design of Dhauliganga underground works, Chamera-Ill H.E.Project, Chutak
H.E. Project, Kishanganga H.E.Project etc. He was also involved in the preparation of DPR
of Tamanthi H.E.Project in Maynmar. He has served the country with notable contributions.
He represented as technical advisor to the Indus Commissioner in various Permanent Indus
Commissions meetings held in India and Pakistan.

He is a visionary and decision oriented professional with excellent performance records. As a
Professional Manager and Strategic Planner, he has led several initiatives for introducing
innovative design for Parbati-Il cavity treatment and Subansiri Lower Hydroelectric Projects.
During his tenure in Kishanganga H.E. Project, he was instrumental in adaptation of site
specific designs to expedite the commissioning of the project of National Importance.

Presently in his able leadership, the DPR of various projects in Arunachal Pradesh, Nepal
and various pump storage projects in various parts of the country are under progress. The
detail design of country’s largest hydroelectric project Dibang is also underway.

Shri Saini is holding the position of Nominee Director of NHPC on the Board of the Company
w.e.f. 22.08.2024.




Dr. (Smt.) Kamla Fartyal
Nominee of NHPC Limited
DIN: 08578908

Dr. Kamla Fartyal holds the degree of Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery (MBBS) from University of Medical Sciences,
New Delhi. She has been holding the position of Nominee Director of
NHPC Limited on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 23.06.2021.

Presently, Dr. Fartyal is serving as Chief General Manager (Medical
Services) in NHPC Limited.

Dr. Fartyal has vast experience of more than of 36 years as a General Physician and has
been with NHPC Ltd. for the last 32 years. She has worked in various capacities in NHPC
and played a pivotal role in promoting health care and health education in NHPC. She is also
holding the position of Chairperson of WIPS (Women in Public Sector) in NHPC, Committee
Regarding Prevention, Protection & Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women Employee at
work place in NHPC, Liaison Officer in the Committee for SC/PWD/OBC at NHPC Ltd,
Executive Member & Vice President of AEOHD (Association of Environmental &
Occupational Health Disease), Delhi, Member in “SCOPE Health Committee”. She has been
conferred with various prestigious awards for her exemplary work.

Dr. Fartyal is also serving as Nominee Director on the Board of Lanco Teesta Hydro Power
Limited (a wholly owned Subsidiary of NHPC Limited).
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RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
(A Joint Venture of NHPC Limited and JKSPDC Limited)
Regd. Off.: Room No. 8, Block No. 2, NHPC Regional Office, JDA Commercial Complex,
Plot No. 1, Narwal, Jammu-180006 (UT of J&K)
CIN: U40105JK2021G0I1012380, e-mail id: ceo.ratle@nhpc.nic.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 03" Annual General Meeting of the members of Ratle
Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited will be held on Wednesday, the 18" day of September,
2024 at 04:00 P.M. through Video Conference (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to
transact the following businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be NHPC Office
Complex, Sector-33, Faridabad- 121003 (Haryana).

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the
financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 together with the Board’s report, the report of
auditor’s thereon and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal (DIN: 08645380), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the pleasure of
NHPC Limited.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri H. Rajesh Prasad (DIN:06516512), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the pleasure of JKSPDC
Limited/ Govt. of J&K.

4. To authorize Board of Directors of the company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory

Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, as
Ordinary Resolution:
‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the Board of
Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditor for the
financial year 2024-25;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby

authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors

For Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited

Sd/-

(Abhishek Dagur)
Company Secretary
Date: 07.09.2024

Place: Faridabad
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) has, vide its circular dated September 25, 2023 read
together with circulars dated December 28, 2022, May 5, 2022 and April 8, 2020, April 13,
2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021 and December 14, 2021
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”), permitted convening the AGM through VC/OAVM,
without physical presence of the members at a common venue upto September 30, 2024.
Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC/OAVM.

The instructions for joining the Annual General Meeting are as under:

a. The meeting will be held through Microsoft Teams/Zoom Application.

b. Members can join the meeting either through Microsoft Teams/Zoom app or through
desktop by using the link sent along with the Notice of AGM on the registered email id.

c. In case of android/ iphone connection, Participants will be required to download and
Install the appropriate application as given in the e-mail sent to them. Application may be
downloaded from Google Play Store/ App Store.

d. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet audio settings as
and when asked while setting up the meeting on Mobile App.

e. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi
or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

f. The facility for joining the meeting will be kept open fifteen minutes before scheduled
time for AGM and will be closed at conclusion of the meeting.

g. For any assistance, members may write to Company Secretary at
abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in or contact at +91-8955544403.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since the AGM
is being held in accordance with the Circulars through VC/ OAVM, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the members will not be available.

Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

Since the AGM will be held through VC/ OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal and Shri H.
Rajesh Prasad, Directors. Being eligible, Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal and Shri H. Rajesh
Prasad offers themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors commends their
re-appointment.

(vii) Brief details of directors seeking reappointment at the Annual General Meeting are as under:

Name Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal Shri H. Rajesh Prasad
Date of Birth & Age 08™ August, 1965 01t June, 1967
(59 years) (57 years)
Quialification Associate Member of the institute B. Com, MBA from Indian
of Cost Accountants of India, Institute of Management,
Master’'s Degree in Commerce Bangalore, M.P.M. from

from the University of Rajasthan Pondicherry University & LL.B.
from University Delhi

Terms & Conditions of | As decided by Appointing | As decided by Appointing

appointment or | Authority i.e. NHPC Limited Authority i.e. Govt. of J&K/
re-appointment along with JKSPDC Limited

the details of remuneration

Date of first appointment on 01/06/2021 21/10/2022

Board

Relationship  with  other NIL NIL

Directors, Manager & KMP
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No. of Board Meetings 5/5 4/5
attended and held during the
year 2023-24
Directorship, 1. NHPC Limited (Director-Finance |1.Jammu & Kashmir State
Membership/Chairmanship in and Member of Stakeholders’ Power Development
Committees held in other Relationship Committee, Corporation Limited
Companies Committee of Directors on CSR (Chairman)
& Sustainability and Risk |2.Jammu & Kashmir State
Management Committee) Power Trading Company
2. Chenab Valley Power Projects Limited
(P) Ltd. (Director) 3.Jammu & Kashmir State
3. Loktak Downstream Power Transmission Company
Hydroelectric Power Limited (Chairman)
Corporation Ltd. (Director and |4.Jammu Power Distribution
Chairman of Audit Committee) Corporation Limited
4. NHDC Limited (Director, | 5. Kashmir Power Distribution
Chairman of Audit Committee Corporation Limited
and Member of Nomination & (Chairman)
Remuneration Committee) 6. Chenab Valley Power Projects
Limited
Number of shares held in the 01 (One) Equity Share as 01 (One) Equity Share as
Company Nominee of NHPC Limited Nominee of JKSPDC Limited

(viii) In compliance with the Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

to be sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are available
with the Company.

Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the Board
Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and to vote at the AGM, pursuant to Section
113 of the Act. The said resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Company Secretary by e-
mail through registered e-mail address to abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in.

The voting will be done by show of hands at the first instance unless chairman decides
otherwise or any member demand for poll. In case the poll is decided by the chairman or
demanded, the poll will be conducted immediately and all members are requested to send
their assent or dissent on each business at abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in through the email ids
on which they have received the notice of AGM.

The Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts and
arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the
AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection
without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of the Notice up to the date of
AGM. Members seeking to inspect documents can send an e-mail to Company Secretary at
abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in mentioning their name, folio number and Permanent Account
Number (PAN).

Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 the statutory auditors of a Government
Company are appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
(C&AG). Further, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in a General Meeting or
in such manner as the Company in General Meeting may determine in terms of Section 142(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The members may authorise the Board to fix an appropriate
remuneration of Joint Statutory Auditors to be appointed by C&AG for financial year 2024-25,
as may be deemed fit by the Board.

(xiiiyNone of the Directors of the Company is in any way related to each other except in their

professional/ employment capacity.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting 3" Annual Report of your Company, together
with the audited financial statements, Auditor’'s Report, Report of Secretarial Auditor and
review of financial statements by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the

financial year ended on 315t March 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS
The financial results of your Company for the year ended 315t March, 2024
vis-a-vis year ended 315t March, 2023 are summarized below:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Year ended on | Year ended on
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Revenue from Operations -
Other Income 602.01 904.58
TOTAL INCOME (A) 602.01 904.58
TOTAL EXPENDITURE (B) 46.12 45.83
Profit Before Depreciation, Interest and 555.89 858.75
Tax (A-B)
Depreciation 0 0
Profit After Depreciation but Before 555.89 858.75
Interest and Tax
Interest & Finance Charges 0 0
Profit After Depreciation and Interest but 555.89 858.75
Before Tax
Tax Expenses 151.51 226.90
Profit After Depreciation, Interest and Tax 404.38 631.85
Profit available for appropriations 404.38 631.85
APPROPRIATIONS
Tax on Dividend written back 0 0
Interim Dividend 0 0
Proposed Final Dividend 0 0
Transfer to general reserve 0 0
Balance Profit carried to Reserves and 0 0
Surplus
Surplus of Statement of Profit and Loss of 404.38 631.85

earlier years
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During the year 2023-24, Company has not earned any revenue from
operations. The Company had parked the funds received from promoters
towards equity contribution in fixed deposits with SBI and has earned an interest
of Rs.602.01 Lakh. The Company had earned profit of Rs.404.38 Lakh for the
financial year ended on 31.03.2024, which has been transferred to Reserves and

Surplus account.

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any
dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NET WORTH

The Authorised and Paid up Share Capital of the Company as on 31t
March, 2024 were Rs.1,600 Crore and Rs.664.88 Crore respectively. The Net
worth of the Company as on 315t March, 2024 stood at Rs.674.81 Crore.

STATUS OF RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT (850 MW)

The execution of Ratle HE Project (850 MW) was entrusted to the
company which was incorporated as Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation
Limited (RHPCL) on 01.06.2021. Various clearances like Environmental
Clearance, Forest Clearance, Indus Water Treaty (IWT) Clearance, Central
Electricity Authority (CEA) Appraisal, Defence Clearance which were accorded in

favour of previous developer have been transferred in the name of RHPCL.

The Letter of Award for Turnkey execution of 850 MW Ratle HEP was
issued on 18.01.2022 in favour of Megha Engineering & Infrastructures Limited
(MEIL) at a Contract price of Rs.3,485.14 Crores including all taxes and duties
with completion period of 52 months from date of Award.

Physical Progress at Site:

¢ All the Infrastructure including Roads/ Bridges has been nearly completed.
¢ River Chenab was successfully diverted through DT-2 on 27.01.2024.

e Powerhouse adits have been excavated.

e Excavation in Power House and Transformer cavern is under progress.

e Excavation in Dam abutment area is going on full swing.
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Right Bank Dam Abutment

FINANCING OF THE PROJECTS:

In line with Investment sanction for construction of the Ratle H.E. project
received from the Government of India, the financing of the project shall be
considered in 70:30 Debt to Equity Ratio. The Company is a Joint Venture
Company of NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development
Corporation Limited (JKSPDCL) and equity portion of the project cost shall be
contributed by the Promoters in ratio of 51:49 respectively. As on 31.03.2024, the
Company has not borrowed debt in any form. However, the Company will raise

debt for project financing, as and when required.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION
Your Company uses information technology to communicate with its
Members, Auditors, Directors, etc. The Company had launched its website i.e.

www.rhpcindia.com, which hosts various information for the benefit of its

stakeholders. As per the Government of India directives & policy of the Company,
procurement process is being implemented through e-tendering system on GeM
portal and CPP portal. Further, all communication with Directors related to
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Meetings of Board of Directors is being done electronically and company has

implemented ‘BoardPAC’ system for paperless meetings.

TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The fast changing economic scenario and technological innovations are
creating an increasingly competitive market environment. Your Company
consistently evaluates the training needs of employees deputed by NHPC and
JKSPDCL, to keep them updated with latest changes, thereby improving their
productivity and work efficiency. Based on the evaluation, the employees are
provided training through T&HRD Division of NHPC Limited, nominated for

external training and also conducted in-house training.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year, industrial relations remain cordial and harmonious.

RESETTLEMENT AND REHABILITATION

Govt. of UT of J&K vide order No. 91-PDD of 2013 dated 21.03.2013 (in
terms of their Cabinet decision No. 44/7/2013 dated 15.03.2013) had accorded
sanction to the Rehabilitation & Resettlement (R&R) plan of 850 MW Ratle HE
Project. Subsequently, in line with the provisions contained in the MOU signed
between NHPC Limited, JKSPDC & Govt. of UT of J&K, the estimate of
previously sanctioned R&R plan has been revised as per the rates provided in
case of R&R plan of Kishanganga HEP of NHPC and submitted to
JKSPDC/GoJK on 07.09.2021. The updated R&R proposal of Ratle HE Project
with total cost estimate of Rs.30.3216 Crore was discussed in detail in the
meeting of the Standing Committee held on 29.06.2024 under the chairmanship
of Chief Secretary, UT of J&K.

As per the minutes of aforesaid meeting circulated by Department of
DMRR&R, J&K, the standing committee had accorded the approval to revised
proposal of R&R Plan of Ratle HE Project.
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11.

12.

VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES

As your Company is a subsidiary of NHPC Limited, therefore, the vigilance
function has been assigned to Chief Vigilance Officer, NHPC Limited. A Project
Vigilance Officer (PVO) has also been appointed by Vigilance Division, NHPC.
Further, provisions of integrity pact in line with NHPC have been incorporated in
the EPC contract agreement for turnkey execution of Ratle Hydroelectric Project.
Circulars and guidelines issued by NHPC are invariably followed by the Company
as part of preventive vigilance. As on 31.03.2024, the Board of your company
has not constituted Audit Committee due to non-availability of Independent

Directors.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and

no reportable material weaknesses in the design and operation were observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company is yet to formulate its own Risk Management Policy.
However, the Company has adopted the policies (including HR policies) of NHPC
Limited, therefore, the Company adheres to the Risk Management Policy of
NHPC Limited. The Broad category of risks associated with the project being

undertaken by the Company is as under:

(@) Strateqgic Risk:

Risk of losses resulting from business factors. These risks adversely affect
the achievement of strategic objectives which may impair overall
enterprise value.

(b)  Einancial Risk:

Risk directly impacting the balance sheet and access to capital market.

(c) Operational Risk:

Risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people and
information systems.

(d) Compliance risk:

16 RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24



13.

14.

15.

g~
g O ¥
) >ren

i, &
" s

Risk arising out of non-compliance with/ non-fulfillment of legal, regulatory

and statutory requirements.

PROCUREMENT FROM MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES

Government of India has notified Public Procurement Policy for Micro and
Small Enterprises (MSEs) Order, 2012 to support marketing of products
produced and services rendered by MSEs. Benefits like exemption from tender
fees and earnest money deposit, purchase preference, interest on delayed
payments and exemption from prior experience- prior turnover criteria subject to

meeting of quality and technical specifications are extended to encourage MSEs.

During the financial year 2023-24, your Company has procured goods and
services from MSEs, which constituted 54.45% of the total annual procurement

value.

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION

Efforts were made to improve the use of official language in accordance
with the policy of the Government of India. Your company is committed for the
implementation of Official Language ‘Hindi’ in day-to-day functioning in line with
the provisions of the Official Languages Act, 1963 and Rules notified thereunder.
During the year 2023-24, quarterly meetings, monthly departmental meetings,

Hindi Pakhwara, etc. were organized to encourage the use of Official Language.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year 2023-24, five meetings of Board of Directors were held. A
separate section on Corporate Governance is given at Annexure-A. In
compliance with the guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), a
Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of

conditions of Corporate Governance is placed at Annexure-B.
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19.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
As stipulated under DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs,
a separate report on management discussion and analysis along with financial

discussion and analysis is annexed at Annexure-C to this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Taking note of the initial set up, there is no significant information relating
to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption as required to be disclosed
under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. During the financial year 2023-24, there was
no foreign exchange earnings and outgo of the Company. Details are annexed at

Annexure-D and form part of the Directors’ Report.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not entered into any
material transaction as contract or arrangement with any of its related parties.
The Company’s all related party contracts/ arrangements are generally with
NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development Corporation
Limited (Government Companies) for taking consultancy services, property on
lease and manpower services. These contracts/ arrangements were intended to
further Company’s interests. All the contracts/ arrangements with related parties
were on arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business of the Company.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of particulars of contracts/ arrangements
with related parties as required under section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act,
2013 in form AOC-2 is not applicable.

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) &
SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT (SD)

Although the Company is not carrying out any commercial activity, the
Company is being earning profit due to interest income on equity contribution. As
per the audited financial statements of the Company for the FY 2021-22 and
2022-23, the average net adjusted profit (calculated as per Section 198) of the

Company was Rs.4.03 crore.
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As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, during the FY 2023-24
the Company was required to expend Rs.8.05 lakh on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities. Your company had spent as amount of Rs.21.46
lakh on CSR activities in the field of Health care & Sanitation, Education & Skill

Development and Rural Development.

Since, the amount to be spent by the Company on CSR activities does not
exceed Rs.50 lakh, the functions of CSR Committee provided under Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 are being discharged by the Board of Directors of

the Company, as per provisions of Section 135(9).

The CSR policy of the Company is available on website at

https://www.rhpcindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies. A report on CSR activities

undertaken by the Company during the FY 2023-24 is given at Annexure-E.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
Your company believes that diversity at workplace creates an environment
conducive to engagement, alignment, innovation and high performance. Every
employee in the company is treated with dignity, respect and afforded equal
treatment. A policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013 is in place. ‘Internal Complaints Committees’ have been constituted for the

redressal of complaints against sexual harassment of women at workplace.

Disclosure in respect of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the financial year 2023-24

IS as under:
1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year | Nil
2 Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil
3 Number of complaints disposed off during the financial Year Nil
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the financial year Nil
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule
12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
Annual Return of the Company has been placed on the website of the Company
and can be accessed at

https://www.rhpcindia.com/Investor.aspx?AnnualReports.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT

Right to Information has been implemented in the Company in accordance
with Right to Information Act, 2005. During the year 2023-24, two (02) nos.
applications were received, which were replied and thus 100% applications

received were replied/ disposed off.
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
(@ STATUTORY AUDITOR AND REVIEW BY COMPTROLLER &

AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA (C&AG)

In exercise of powers conferred by Section 139 of the Companies Act,

2013, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India had appointed M/s Sahil
Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the year 2023-24. The reports of the Statutory Auditor along with
financial results of the Company are enclosed as Annexure-F. The Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (CAG) has conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2024 and has not
given any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditor's Report. The
communication received from C&AG on the Financial Statements of your
company is enclosed as Annexure-G.

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditor's Report are
self-explanatory and do not require any further comments. The Auditor's Report

do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
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(b)

INTERNAL AUDITOR

As per section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s GASM DANSR and

Co., Faridabad to conduct the internal audit of the Company for financial year

2023-24. The firm has not reported any significant internal control weakness in

the processes of the company.

(c)

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s A.K. Rastogi & Associates,

Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the

secretarial audit for the year 2023-24. The secretarial audit report is given at

Annexure-H to this report. The Secretarial Auditor, in its report, has made

certain qualifications/ observations. The qualifications/ observations and reply

thereto are as under:

S.

No.

Qualification / Observations

Management Reply

1.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs
vide Notification No GSR 839(E)
dated 5% July 2017 has
exempted a Joint Venture
Company from the requirement
of having independent
Directors as such the Company
is not required to have
Independent Directors on its
Board. However, in the absence
of independent Directors, the
composition of the Board of
Directors is not in Compliance
with  DPE  Guidelines on
Corporate  Governance  for
CPSEs.

As per Atrticle 1l (58) of the Articles
of Association of the Company read
with  MCA notification dated 5"
June, 2015, the power to appoint
Independent Director on the Board
of the Company vests in the
Administrative Ministry i.e. Ministry
of Power. The matter regarding
appointment of Independent
Directors has been taken up with
the Administrative Ministry i.e.
Ministry of Power, Govt. of India.

Ministry of Power vide letter dated
12.07.2022 had communicated the
approval of Competent Authority for
not pursuing the appointment of
Non-official/ Independent Director in
the Board of JVs/ Wholly owned
subsidiaries of NHPC Limited.

The Company has not
constituted Audit Committee as
required under DPE Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for
CPSEs, as the Company does
not have any Independent
Director on its Board.

As per DPE guidelines, the Audit
Committee  and Remuneration
Committee  shall comprise of
Independent Directors. The power
to appoint Independent Directors on
the Board of the Company vests
with the Administrative Ministry i.e.
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The Company has not
constituted the Remuneration
Committee as required under
DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for CPSEs, as the
Company does not have any
Independent Director on its
Board.

Ministry of Power, Govt. of India.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors
of the Company in its 03" meeting
held on 05.10.2021 had decided to
constitute Audit Committee and
Remuneration  Committee  after
appointment of Independent
Directors on Board of the Company
by the administrative Ministry i.e.
Ministry of Power, Govt. of India.

Compliance shall be made after
appointment of requisite number of
Independent Directors on the Board
of the Company.

The ratio of part time directors
representing NHPC Limited and
JKSPDCL/ Government of J&K
is in variance to Article 58 of
the Articles of Association of
the company from 01.04.2023 to
16.08.2023 during the financial
year 2023 24, as the number of
Directors on the Board were not
in proportion of equity portion
of NHPC and JKSPDCL/ Govt.
of UT of J&K i.e. 51% and 49%
respectively.

As per Article 58 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the
Board shall comprise of nominee
Directors nominated by NHPC and
JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K. Further, at
all times, Directors on the Board
(including Chairman) shall be in
proportion of equity portion of
NHPC/ JKSPDCL/ Govt. of UT of
J&K in the Company.

Subsequent to cessation of Shri
Vivek  Bharadwaj (IAS), then
Administrative Secretary (Finance),
Govt. of UT of J&K on 30.09.2022,
the communication regarding
assignment of charge of
Administrative Secretary (Finance),
Govt. of UT of J&K to Shri Santosh
D. Vaidya was received on
16.06.2023. Shri Santosh D. Vaidya
was appointed as Director of the
Company w.e.f. 17.08.2023 after
receipt of necessary disclosures.

Accordingly, during the FY 2023-24,
position of one nominee director
from JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K was
vacant on Board of the Company
from 01.04.2023 to 16.08.2023, due
to reasons not within ambit of the
Company.
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25.

26.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN & GUARANTEE GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE
AND SECURITIES PROVIDED

Your Company has not given any loans, provided any guarantee or
security to any other entity. The same was reflected in Note no. 3.1, 3.2, 10 & 11
of the financial statements for FY 2023-24. Further, Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (except sub section (1) regarding loans made, guarantees
given or securities provided) is not applicable to the Company as it is engaged in
the business of providing infrastructure facilities.

COVID-19:

The Covid-19 pandemic consequences were not restricted to mere health
crisis but also had an unprecedented impact on Indian and global business
environment. Your company has followed all preventive measures as per the
COVID guidelines issued from time to time by Central Government and State
Government/ Local bodies. Since, the Company was incorporated on
01.06.2021, there is no material Impact of COVID-19 on the construction as well

as financial performance of the Company.

DISCLOSURES:

0] As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 5%
July 2017, the Company being a Joint Venture company was exempted
from the requirement of having Independent Directors on its Board.

(i) As per Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company being a joint venture Company is not
required to constitute ‘Audit Committee’ and ‘Nomination and
Remuneration Committee’ of the Board as per provisions of Section 177 &
178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i)  Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated 5" June 2015
exempted/ amended certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
Government Companies. The Directors of the Company are from NHPC

Limited, and JKSPDCL. Their performance is evaluated by the respective
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appointing authority. The performance evaluation of the Board is yet to be

carried out.

All the KMPs and employees of the Company are from NHPC Limited and

JKSPDCL, their performance evaluation is being carried out by their

respective reporting officers. The pay structure, allowances and other

benefits of KMPs and other employees of the Company are governed by
relevant DPE guidelines.

Particulars of employees and related disclosures have not been provided

in the report pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated 5™

June 2015 (exemption of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 to

Government Companies).

Your Directors further state that:

a. There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

b. Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

c. Your Company is not having any subsidiary, joint venture or associate
so far.

d. No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there was no transaction relating to these items during the year
under report:

(i) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting
or otherwise.

(i) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of
the Company under any scheme.

e. No significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

f. No case was filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during
the year under report.
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The Company has not undertaken any recruitment exercise during the
year. Therefore, information regarding percentage employment of
Persons with Disability (PwD) is NIL.

During the year, there were no instances of fraud reported by the
Auditors of the Company under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close
of the financial year till the date of this report, which affect the financial
position of the Company.

There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016.

There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or
Financial Institution.

The provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made there under regarding Cost Audit and maintenance of cost

records are not applicable on the Company.

27. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)

As on 315t March, 2024, the Board comprised of Seven Nominee Directors

as tabulated under:

S. No. | Name DIN Designation

1. Shri Indra Deva Dayal 09189651 | Nominee of JKSPDC
Limited- Chairman

2. Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal | 08645380 | Nominee of NHPC
Limited

3. Shri Raj Kumar Chaudhary | 10198931 | Nominee of NHPC
Limited

4 Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha 09132059 | Nominee of NHPC
Limited

5. Smt. Kamla Fartyal 08578908 | Nominee of NHPC
Limited

6. Shri H. Rajesh Prasad, IAS | 06516512 | Nominee of JKSPDC
Limited

7. Shri Santosh Dattatraya 05340193 | Nominee of JKSPDC

Vaidya, IAS Limited
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As on 31%t March, 2024, the KMPs of the Company are as tabulated

under:

Shri Ashok Kumar Nauriyal Chief Executive Officer
Shri Jai Prakash Chief Finance Officer
Shri Abhishek Dagur Company Secretary

During the financial year 2023-24, following changes took place in the

Directors and KMPs of the Company:

1.

Upon attaining the age of superannuation and ceasing to be Director of
NHPC Limited, Shri Yamuna Kumar Chaubey (DIN: 08492346), Nominee
Director of NHPC Limited ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 31%
May, 2023.

Pursuant to order from NHPC Limited, Shri Raj Kumar Chaudhary, then
ED-NHPC was appointed as Nominee Director of NHPC Limited w.e.f. 13%
June, 2023.

Shri Ashok Kumar Nauriyal, ED-NHPC was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) of the Company w.e.f. 23 June, 2023, in place of Shri Deepak
Saigal, ED-NHPC, who ceased to be CEO of the Company w.e.f. 25" May,
2023.

Pursuant to assignment of charge of Administrative Secretary (Finance) by
Govt. of UT of J&K, Shri Santosh D. Vaidya (IAS) was appointed as Nominee
Director of JKSPDCL w.e.f. 17" August, 2023.

Upon attaining the age of superannuation and ceasing to be Director of
NHPC Limited, Shri Biswajit Basu (DIN: 09003080), Nominee Director of
NHPC Limited ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f. 315t December,
2023.

Pursuant to order from NHPC Limited, Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha, ED-NHPC
was appointed as Nominee Director of NHPC Limited w.e.f. 018t January,
2024.
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After closure of the financial year 2023-24 and upto the date of this report,
the composition of Board and KMPs has changed as under:

1. Upon attaining the age of superannuation Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha (DIN:
09132059), Nominee Director of NHPC Limited ceased to be Director of the
Company w.e.f. 31t July, 2024.

2. Pursuant to order from NPC Limited, Shri Raj Kumar Chaudhary, Chairman
and Managing Director, NHPC Limited ceased to be Director of the Company
w.e.f. 16.08.2024.

3. Pursuant to order from NPC Limited, Shri Sanjay Kumar Singh (DIN:
10718481), Director (Projects), NHPC Limited and Shri Vishal Kumar Saini
(DIN: 10750747), Executive Director, NHPC Limited were appointed as
Nominee Directors on Board of the Company w.e.f. 21.08.2024 and
22.08.2024 respectively.

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated 5" July,
2017, Company being a Joint Venture company is exempted from the
requirement to constitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration
Committee. However, as per the DPE guidelines, Company is required to
constitute Audit Committee comprising of at least three directors, to be headed
by an Independent Director and Remuneration Committee comprising of at least
three Directors, all of whom should be part-time Directors (i.e. Nominee Director

or Independent Directors).

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the power to appoint
Independent Directors on Board of the Company vests with Administrative
Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, Govt. of India. Accordingly, Ministry of Power was
requested to appoint requisite number of Independent Directors. However,
Ministry of Power vide letter dated 12.07.2022 had communicated the approval of
Competent Authority for not pursuing the appointment of Non-official/
Independent Director in the Board of JVs/ Wholly owned subsidiaries of NHPC
Limited.
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30.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Directors hereby confirm the following:

i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

i) Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year 2023-24 and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period,;

iii) Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and

operating effectively.
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The Board of Directors deeply appreciate and acknowledge the
co-operation and guidance received from the Government of India, Ministries of
Govt. of India specially Ministry of Power, Government of UT of J&K,
Departments of Govt. of UT of J&K, NHPC Limited, Jammu & Kashmir State
Power Development Corporation Limited, Office of Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, Auditors and Bankers of the Company for their valuable

guidance and continued support during the year.

The Board would also like to place on record its appreciation for the

significant contributions made by Shri Yamuna Kumar Chaubey, Shri Biswajit
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Basu, Shri Raj Kumar Chaudhary and Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha during their

respective tenure on the Board of the Company.

The Board also expresses its appreciation for the sincerity, hard work,
commitment and contribution of the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Indra Deva Dayal) (Rajendra Prasad Goyal)
Chairman Director
DIN: 09189651 DIN: 08645380

Date: 07.09.2024
Place: Faridabad
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ANNEXURE- A

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Effective Corporate Governance practices are essential to build a strong
foundation for successful operation of a commercial enterprise. Governance
structure identifies the distribution of rights and responsibilities among different
stakeholders in the Company such as the Board of Directors, managers,
shareholders, creditors, auditors, regulators, and others. It also includes the rules

and procedures for making decisions.

The management of the Company recognizes the inherent values of corporate
governance and therefore, takes all possible steps to attain highest level of
governance to enhance the stakeholder's value. The Company follows the
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises
(CPSESs) issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) (DPE Guidelines),

Government of India.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
1) Size of the Board of Directors:

The Company is a Government Company within the definition of
Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. According to the Articles of
Association of the Company, the strength of the Board including the
Chairman shall not be less than 4 (four) and not more than 15 (fifteen)
Directors. NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development
Corporation Limited (JKSPDCL) may nominate ‘Nominee Directors’ for its
respective representation on the Board in proportion of their respective

equity portion.

(i) Composition & Category of Board of Directors:

As on 318t March, 2024 the Board comprised of Seven (7)
non-executive Nominee Directors. Out of which, Four (4) Directors were
nominated by NHPC Limited, two (2) Directors were nominated by JKSPDCL

and Chairman was nominated by Govt. of J&K as nominee of JKSPDCL.
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During the year under report, Company has no Independent Dirqgctor
on its Board. As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated
5% July, 2017, Company being a Joint Venture company of NHPC Limited
and JKSPDCL is exempted from appointment of Independent Director.
However, as per the DPE Guidelines at least one-third of the Board

Members of the Company should be Independent Directors.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, part-time
non-official (Independent) directors are to be appointed by the Administrative
Ministry. Accordingly, Ministry of Power, Government of India has been
requested for appointment of Independent Directors in the Company. In this
regard, Ministry of Power has communicated not to pursue the appointment
of Non-official Independent Director on the Board of JVs/ Wholly Owned
Subsidiaries of NHPC Limited. Compliance in respect of having at-least
one-third of the Board Members as independent directors shall be made

after appointment of independent directors.

The composition & category of the Board, their attendance at Board
meetings/ last AGM and the number of Directorships and Committee
positions (in Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee)
in other companies held by the Directors as on 315t March, 2024 is given
in Table 1.

TABLE 1: COMPOSITION & CATEGORY OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
THEIR ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS/ LAST AGM AND
DETAILS OF DIRECTORSHIPS AND COMMITTEE POSITIONS IN
OTHER COMPANIES HELD BY DIRECTORS AS ON 31T MARCH, 2024

Sr. Name Category Number of | Attend Number of Details of
No. of Director Board ance | Directorship Committee
Meetings at last s held in Positions held in
held and AGM other other Companies**
attended (19.09. | Companies* As As
during their | 2023) Chairman | Member
respective
tenure
1) Shri  Indra | Nominee 5/5 YES NIL NIL NIL
Deva Dayal | Director -
Chairman
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2) Shri Nominee 5/5 YES 8 2 1
Rajendra Director
Prasad
Goyal

3) Shri Raj | Nominee 4/4 YES 1 NIL 2
Kumar Director
Chaudhary?

4) Smt. Kamla | Nominee 3/5 YES 1 NIL NIL
Fartyal Director

5) Shri H. | Nominee 4/5 YES 6 NIL NIL
Rajesh Director
Prasad

6) Shri Nominee 0/3 NO 8 NIL NIL
Santosh Director
Dattaraya
Vaidya?

7) Shri  Vijay | Nominee 1/1 N.A. 2 NIL NIL
Kumar Director
Sinha3?

8) Shri Biswajit | Nominee 3/4 YES N.A N.A. N.A
Basu* Director

9) Shri Y.K. | Nominee 1/1 N.A. N.A N.A N.A
Chaubey?® Director

*Directorship held in Indian Companies has been considered.
**Membership(s)/ Chairpersonship(s) of Audit Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee held in other companies have been considered.

J

LAppointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of NHPC Limited w.e.f.
13.06.2023.

2Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of JKSPDC Limited
w.e.f. 17.08.2023

3Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of NHPC Limited w.e.f.
01.01.2024

“Ceased to be Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 31.12.2023.
SCeased to be Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 31.05.2023.

Notes:

1. None of the Directors holds office at the same time as Director in more
than twenty Companies/ ten Public Companies including alternate
Directorship(s). Further, none of the Director is a member in more than
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ten Committees or is a Chairman of more than five Committees across
all the Companies in which he is a Director.

2. The Directors of the Company do not have any relationship inter-se.

(il)  Number of Board Meetings: Five Board Meetings were held during
the FY 2023-24. The details of the Board meetings held during the year
2023-24 are given in Table 2.

TABLE 2: NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR
2023-24

Sr. |Meeting |[Meeting Date| Board No. of Attendance
No. No. Strength | Directors
Present
1 13 05.05.2023 6 6 100
2 14 23.06.2023 6 3 50
3. 15 05.09.2023 7 6 85.7
4 16 29.11.2023 7 5 71.4
5 17 11.03.2024 7 6 85.7

(iv) Age limit and tenure of Directors: The Directors nominated by
NHPC and JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K shall hold office at the pleasure of
NHPC and JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K respectively. Further, a Director
representing the respective nominating authority/ Department shall retire on

his ceasing to be an official of that Department.

(v) Resume of Directors: A brief profile of directors seeking
re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is appended to the

notice calling the AGM.

(vi) Director’s Compensation & Disclosures: During the year under
review, the Chairman of the Company (Non-Executive Professional) was
paid an amount of Rs.14.50 lakh as remuneration. The Company has also
paid sitting fee @ Rs.20,000/- per meeting to the Chairman of the Company.
No commission or performance linked incentive was paid to any of the

Directors. No stock options were issued during the year either to Directors,
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Key Managerial Personnel or employees of the Company. No severance
fees/ notice period pay is payable to the Directors at the time of separation

from the Company.

(vii) Board Meetings & Procedures:

(A) Decision making process: The Company follows a systematic

procedure for the meetings of the Board of Directors with a view to

professionalize its affairs. These procedures seek to systematize the
decision-making process in Board meetings in an informed and efficient
manner.

(B) Scheduling and Selection of agenda items for Board

meetings:

e Meetings of the Board are convened by giving appropriate notice
after approval of the Chairman. Detailled agenda notes,
management reports and other explanatory statements are
circulated in advance among the members to facilitate meaningful,
informed and focused decisions during the meeting. Whenever
urgentissues need to be addressed, meetings are called at a shorter
notice or agenda notes are placed on table or resolutions are passed
by circulation.

e Whenever it is not possible to attach a document to the agenda
notes due to its confidential nature, or in special and exceptional
circumstances, or in case of additional or supplemental items, such
documents are placed on the table during the meeting with the
approval of the Chairman/ Directors present at the meeting.

e Agenda papers are generally circulated after obtaining approval of
the Chairman.

e The meetings are generally held through Video Conferencing in
Delhi/ NCR.

e As and when required, presentations are made before the Board.

e Members of the Board have complete access to the information
pertaining to the Company. Board members are also free to
recommend any issue that they may consider important for
inclusion in the agenda. As and when necessary, senior

management officials are called during the meetings to provide
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additional inputs on the matters being discussed by the Board.w
e Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is a permanent invitee to all the
Board meetings.

(C) Recording of the Minutes of the Board Meetings: The draft
Minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are circulated to all
Board members for their comments within fifteen days of the conclusion
of the Meeting. The Directors communicate their comments on the draft
minutes within seven days from the date of circulation thereof. The final
draft of minutes after incorporating comments/suggestions, if any, from
board members are placed before the Chairman for consideration and
approval thereof. The approved minutes of proceedings of each Board
meeting are duly recorded in the minutes book within thirty days of the
conclusion of the meeting.

(D) Follow-up Mechanism: Based on the decisions of the Board, an

action taken report on the decisions is presented in subsequent

meetings of Board, which helps in effective follow-up, review and
reporting on decisions.

(E) Compliance: A compliance report of all applicable provisions

and statutory requirements under different laws is placed before the

Board on quarterly basis.

The following agenda items are regularly presented to the Board for its

consideration/ information:

e Annual Budgets/Plans and related updates.

e Disclosure of interest by the Directors about their Directorships,
Committee positions held by them in other Companies/Firms, their
shareholding, etc.

e Award of large value contracts.

e Details of Related Party Transactions with respect to consultancy
services assigned to/ rendered by NHPC Limited.

e Review of Compliance of Laws.

e Information with respect to status of the Projects including new
initiatives.

e Action Taken Report on decisions/ directions of the Board.

e Annual financial statements of the Company.
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e Directors’ Report
e Any other information required to be presented to the Board either for

information or approval as per the requirement of applicable laws.

(viii) Code of Conduct: The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for
Directors and Senior Management Personnel has been implemented in the
Company w.e.f. 10.03.2023. The code was complied by all concerned during
FY 2023-24 from the date of implementation.

Declaration under DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance
All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the provisions of the CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
AND ETHICS FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL for the financial year ending 315t March, 2024.

Sd/-

(Ashok Kumar Nauriyal)

Chief Executive Officer
Date: 21.08.2024
Place: Faridabad

(ix) Risk Management: The risk management is undertaken as a part of
normal business practice in the Company and not as a separate task at set

times.

(x)  Training of Board Members: The Board of the Company comprises of
nominees from NHPC Limited and JKSPDCL, who have adequate exposure
and are well versed with the model and risk profile of the business of the

Company.

(xi) Functional Role Clarity between Board of Directors and
Management: As per Articles of Association of the Company, all the powers
are vested with the Board of Directors of the Company. In order to clearly
distinguish the role of the Board and the management, the Board of the
Company has delegated certain powers to the Management of the
Company. Decision on matters excluded from delegation are taken by the

Board. The Board is provided with detailed information/ progress by the
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Management on various developments.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated 5" July,
2017, Company being a Joint Venture is exempted from the requirement to
constitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee.
However, as per the DPE guidelines, Company is required to constitute
Audit Committee comprising of at least three directors, to be headed by an
Independent Director and Remuneration Committee comprising of at least
three Directors, all of whom should be part-time Directors (i.e. Nominee Director

or Independent Directors)

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2015, the power to appoint
Independent Directors on Board of the Company vests with Administrative
Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, Govt. of India. Accordingly, request has been
made to Ministry of Power for appointment of requisite number of
Independent Directors on Board of the Company. The Board had decided
to constitute the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee after the
appointment of Independent Directors. However, Ministry of Power vide letter
dated 12.07.2022 had communicated the approval of Competent Authority for not
pursuing the appointment of Non-official/ Independent Director in the Board of
JVs/ Wholly owned subsidiaries of NHPC Limited.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 5" June, 2015 had
inter-alia exempted Government Companies from the requirement to specify the
manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and
individual directors and review its implementation and compliance. The said
notification also exempted Government Companies from the requirement of
providing information in the Directors’ report about the manner, in which annual
evaluation of the performance of Board, its committees and individual directors
has been made, in case, the performance of directors is evaluated by the

Administrative Ministry in Charge of the Company.

The performance of Nominee Directors of the Company is being evaluated by the
nominating authority. Performance Evaluation criteria for Board and its

committees has not yet been formulated by the Company.
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4.

GENERAL MEETINGS:

Date, time and location of the last three Annual General Meetings and

special resolutions passed therein are given as under:

Financial Date Time Location Special Resolution(s)
Year Passed
2022-23 | 19.09.2023 | 03:00 | Meeting held | To keep all the statutory
P.M. | through Video | registers  and  returns
Conferencing/ Lequg]ed tg be maintair;ied
: e Company under
\?it:uegl Meaﬁ\sdlo SZ:-ction 88 angJ Sgction 92
of the Companies Act,
2013 at a place other than
registered office of the
Company.
2021-22 | 28.09.2022 | 03:00 | Meeting held | a) To increase Borrowing
P.M. | through Video | Limit of the Company up to
Conferencing/ Rs.3,698 crore.
Other Audio
Visual Means b) To create mortgage and/
or charge on all or any of
the movable or immovable
properties of the Company.

No special resolution was passed through postal ballot during FY 2023-24

and presently no special resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal
ballot during the FY 2024-25.

DISCLOSURES:

() Related Party Transactions: During the financial year 2023-24, the

Company has not entered into any material transaction as contract or

arrangement with any of its related parties.

(i1)

No penalty or strictures were imposed on the Company by any

statutory authority, on any matter related to any guidelines issued by

Government, during the preceding three years.

(iii)

Whistle Blower Policy: The Company has adopted Whistle Blower

Policy of NHPC Limited. Further, no personnel has been denied

access to the board of Directors. During the financial year 2023-24, no

complaint was reported under Whistle Blower Policy.

(iv) There is no independent Director on the Board of the Company, hence
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(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)
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the Company could not comply with the various provisions regaraing
Independent Director as per Guidelines issued by the Department of
Public Enterprises.

The Company is not having any subsidiary Company.

No Presidential Directives have been issued to the Company during
the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24.

No item of expenditure was debited in the books of accounts, which
are not for the purpose of business.

There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Directors
vis-a-vis the Company during the year.

There were no expenses incurred which are personal in nature and
incurred for the Board and Management. None of the Senior
Management personnel of the Company have any financial or
commercial transactions with the Company except their remuneration.
Details of administrative and office expenses as a percentage of
total expenses vis-a-vis financial expenses and reasons for
increase are given below:

The Project of the Company is under construction. Therefore, the
expenditure is being capitalized and charged to Work-in-progress.
Accordingly, no information regarding administrative and office
expenses as a percentage of total expenses vis-a-vis financial
expenses has been provided.

Accounting Treatment:

The Significant Accounting Policies of the Company forming part of the
Financial Statements, as approved by the Board of Directors, are
compliant with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and

subsequent amendments thereto.\

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
The annual financial statement of the Company are provided to members

in physical form as well as in electronic form. The Notice of General

Meetings, Annual Reports (including Financial Statements) of the Company

are also hosted on website of the Company i.e. www.rhpcindia.com. The

Company is not required to publish quarterly results.
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1. INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:
Date of Annual General Meeting: 18" September, 2024

Day and Time: Wednesday, 04:00 P.M. (IST)

In line with the relaxations extended by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
vide circular dated 25.09.2023 read with MCA circular dated 28.12.2022,
05.05.2020, the AGM of the Company for financial year 2023-24 shall be held
through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). The
Notice of AGM may be referred for necessary details/ instructions regarding

participation in the AGM.

8. AUDIT QUALIFICATION:
There are no adverse remarks by the Statutory Auditor. The Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (C&AG) has conduct supplementary audit of
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.
The C&AG has communicated that they have no comments to offer upon

or supplement to statutory auditor’s report.

9. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE:
A Certificate from M/s A. K. Rastogi & Associates, Company Secretaries,
confirming the compliance or otherwise with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for

Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010, is forming part of the Directors’ Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Indra Deva Dayal) (Rajendra Prasad Goyal)
Chairman Director
DIN: 09189651 DIN: 08645380

Date: 07.09.2024
Place: Faridabad
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R-13/69, RAJ NAGAR
GHAZIABAD-201002
UTTAR PRADESH
Mob:9650990414
Mob:9650990614

A.K. RASTOGI & anilrastogi3609@gmail.com
ASSOCIATES anil_rastogi29@rediffmail.com
Company Secretaries

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF DPE GUIDELINES ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

The Members,

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited
Room No. 8, Block No. 2, NHPC Regional Office,
JDA Commercial Complex,

Plot No. 1, Narwal, Jammu- 180006,

We have examined the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public
Sector Enterprises, 2010 as amended from time to time issued by Department of Public

Enterprises (DPE), Government of India with respect to Ratle Hydroelectric Power

Corporation Limited (CIN: U40105JK2021G0I1012380) (“the Company”) for the
Financial Year 2023-24.

The compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company
for ensuring the compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us by
the management, we certify that the Company has complied DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance as referred above during the Financial Year 2023-24, except for the points listed
below-
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1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 5t July
2017 has exempted a Joint Venture Company from the requirement of having
independent Directors as such the Company is not required to have
Independent Directors on its Board. However, in the absence of Independent
Directors, the composition of the Board of Directors is not in Compliance with
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

2. The Company has not constituted the Audit Committee as required under DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, as the Company does not

have any Independent Director on its Board.

3. The Company has not constituted Remuneration Committee as required under
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, as the Company does

not have any Independent Director on its Board.

We further certify that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

For A. K. Rastogi & Associates

Company Secretaries
Anil Kumar Digitally signed by Anil

Kumar Rastogi

Rastogi Tiisos osao
(Anil Kumar Rastogi)
Date: 24/06/2024
Place: Ghaziabad FCS no: 1748
CP no: 22973

UDIN: F001748F000596639
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ANNEXURE-C

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

l. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

Electricity is an important building block in human development and acts as a key
factor in determining the economic development of any country. In view of the pace
of growth of Indian Economy, Power Sector has an inevitable role in country’s
sustained industrial and economic growth. Unlike other commodities, the dynamics
of supply and demand does not apply to power, as it cannot be stored. India has
witnessed a robust growth in power sector since independence. The Installed
Generation Capacity as on March, 2024 was 441.96 GW comprising of 243.21 GW
Thermal, 8.18 GW Nuclear, 190.57 GW Renewables including large hydro of 46.93
GW1L

The Indian power sector has come a long way in the past decade, transforming
from a power-deficit to a power-surplus nation. Hydropower assumes greater
importance to provide stability to the electric grid due to the intermittent availability
of solar and wind to produce power. In addition to reducing carbon emissions,
Local area development, providing employment opportunities, hydropower energy
provides additional benefits from storage projects like flood moderation, Irrigation,

tourism etc. besides water and energy security in long term.

Jammu & Kashmir is bestowed with an estimated hydro-power potential of 20,000
MW, out of which 16,475 MW has already been identified. The Hydropower
Generation Capacity on the UT of J&K is expected to double in next 3 years from
the existing capacity of 3500 MW, which will make J&K power surplus.

To contribute to the capacity augmentation in UT of J&K, your Company is
executing Ratle Hydroelectric Project (850 MW) in the Kishtwar District of UT of
J&K. The 850 MW Ratle Hydropower project is a run-of-river scheme over River
Chenab and falls under the Indus Water Treaty 1960 between India and Pakistan.
The project has an installed capacity of 850 MW (4x205 MW + 1x30 MW) and
shall generate 3,136 million units in a 90 per cent dependable year.

1 Source: Central Electricity Authority
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STRENGTH
We believe that the following are the primary competitive strengths of the

Company:
Power purchase agreements

As per the provisions of MOU, GoJK shall be entitled to have first right of refusal
for purchase of power from the JVC in proportion to the share of JKSPDC in the
equity of JVC (i.e. 49%) at regulated tariff. JKSPDC have given consent for
purchase of 450MW power from the project in addition to 13% royalty free power
(including 1% LADF). Further, NHPC Limited has identified prospective buyers for
purchase of balance power from the project and has already signed PPA with
DISCOMs namely: CSPDCL-Chhatisgarh, GUVNL-Gujarat, MPPCL-Madhya
Pradesh, RUVNL-Rajasthan, and JKPCL-J&K

Competent and committed workforce

In terms of Articles of Association of the Company, the manpower required for the
implementation of Ratle HE Project shall be provided or lend to the Company on
secondment/ transfer/ deputation basis by NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir
State Power Development Corporation Limited (JKSPDCL). The workforce
deputed by NHPC and JKSPDC has extensive experience in the industry. The
skill, industry knowledge and operating experience of these executives provide the

Company with a significant competitive advantage.

OPPORTUNITIES

The Hydro-thermal mix imbalances, ever increasing renewable power, peaking
power shortages and frequency variations have turned the attention of the Indian
Government towards the development of Hydro Power. India has a huge Hydro
Power potential which is still untapped. This gives opportunities to RHPCL for

adding to its capacity in the years to come.

THREATS, WEAKNESSES, RISKS AND CONCERNS
Management perceives following as threats, weaknesses, risks and concerns in

construction of Hydro Power Projects:
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Land Acquisition

Hydropower projects are generally located in hilly, difficult and remote terrains,
which requires substantial area of land for submergence and development of
infrastructure including project's components. The process of land acquisition is

guite cumbersome.
Geological Surprises

Hydropower projects generally involve substantial underground works of
headrace tunnel and surge shaft. Geological surprises associated with

underground work may result in time and cost over-run.
Natural Calamities

As hydropower project are generally proposed in hilly terrains and are generally
subject to associated geological adversities such as hill slope failures, road
blocks, flash floods and cloud bursts etc., which may cause severe set-back in

construction of projects.
Unexpected complexities

Development of a Project may be subject to unexpected complexities and delays
in execution, which may result in time and cost overrun for developing projects,
compared to estimates. The generation capacity may vary substantially because
of variations in hydrology due to climatic conditions, which may cause significant

variation in revenue earnings of the Company.
Long Gestation Period

Hydroelectric Power Projects are capital intensive and have a long gestation

period.
Increase in cost

Hydroelectric power projects have long gestation period and are also subject to
various geological surprises & adversities resulting in time and cost overruns,

compared to estimates. The cost overruns may lead to increase in tariff.
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VI.

SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Development of Ratle Hydroelectric project (850MW) in Chenab river Basin and
any other project which may be entrusted to the Company in the UT of J&K is the
main object of the Company. Further, the Company is having a single

geographical segment as it is operating in the UT of Jammu & Kashmir only.

OUTLOOK

Electricity is critical to livelihoods and essential to well-being. The potential for
growth in energy demand and energy infrastructure in India remains enormous.
The country’s continued industrialization and urbanization will make huge
demands of its energy sector. Your Company is committed to make its
contribution in ensuring availability of reliable electricity to all sections of
consumers in India and particularly UT of J&K. Despite the logistic challenges
due to remote location and the fact that the state has tough terrain, your company

is committed to overcome them.

Considering the high unexploited hydropower potential of the Country, ample
opportunities are available in the field of hydro power development. As the entire
world is now focusing on the ‘net zero’ emissions, there exists a huge potential
for the hydro industry to make use of the emission reduction potential. Further,
Hydro plants can also take care of the variability and resultant requirements of
grid stability due to large scale injection of power from intermittent RE sources
(solar & wind) into the grid. In addition to above, initiatives of Government of India
shall strengthen the road ahead for development of hydro power sector in the

Country.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adopted the Delegation of Powers (DoP) of NHPC Limited.
The Organizational structure is well defined in terms of the structured authority/
responsibility involved at a particular hierarchy level. M/s GASM DANSR and Co.,
Faridabad has been appointed as the Internal Auditor of the Company for FY
2023-24. The efficacy of internal control systems has also been pointed out by

Statutory Auditors in their report forming part of Annual Report.
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited was incorporated on 01.06.2021
and at present, is in the process of development of 850 MW Ratle hydroelectric
power project in the UT of J&K. The 850 MW Ratle Hydropower project is a
run-of-river scheme over River Chenab in Kishtwar district of UT of J&K. The
project falls under the Indus Water Treaty, 1960 signed between India and
Pakistan. The project with an installed capacity of 850 MW (4x205 MW + 1x30
MW) shall generate 3,136 million units in a 90 per cent dependable year. The
sanctioned cost of the project is Rs.5,281.94 crore at November, 2018 Price level.
The project will have a levelized tariff of Rs.3.92 per unit and first year tariff of

Rs.3.62 per unit.

The EPC contract for the construction of Project has been awarded to M/s Megha

Engineering & Infrastructures Limited (MEIL).

At present, construction activities of the Project are going on. During the year
Company has earned an amount of Rs. 602.01 lakh on account of interest on term
deposit of share capital, which is shown under other income. The expenditure
incurred is mainly on construction of Ratle HE Project. The Company has
appointed M/s GASM DANSR & CO., Faridabad to conduct the internal audit of
the Company for the year 2023-24. Management has suitably replied to the
observations of Internal Auditor. Further, compliance of recommendation/

observation is under process.

A. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The company is in initial stage of development of project and as such there is no
sale of energy. The income of the Company during financial year 2023-24
comprises of other income of Rs.602.01 lakh as compared to Rs.904.58 lakh
during financial year 2022-23, on account of interest on share capital deposited
with SBI.
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During the financial year 2023-24 the expenditure was Rs.46.12 lakhs as
compared to Rs.45.83 lakhs during the financial year 2022-23. All the other
expenditure such as Capital works in progress, establishment, survey &
investigation are booked under CWIP/ EAC. CWIP/ EAC added during the year
2023-24 is to the tune of Rs.28,426.10 lakh as compared to Rs.10,656.67 lakh
during the year 2022-23. Total EAC/ CWIP as on 315t March 2024 stands at
Rs.51,441.77 lakh.

B. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The PBT was of the order of Rs.555.89 lakh in financial year 2023-24, as
compared to Rs.858.75 lakh in financial year 2022-23.

C. TAXEXPENSES

The tax outgo on the profits was of the order of Rs.151.51 lakh in financial year
2023-24, as compared Rs.226.90 lakh in financial year 2022-23.

D. SOURCE OF FUNDING

NHPC and JKSPDC has contributed Rs.66,488 lakh towards the equity of the
Company including share application money. The unspent portion of it has been
kept in Fixed Deposits with State Bank of India and is the only source of liquidity
till 31.03.2024. The balance in such fixed deposits as on 31.03.2024 was Rs.7,076
Lakh. Apart from this, a sum of Rs.464.73 Lakh was held as cash in the current

account for day to day requirements.

The net cash flow from operating and investing activities (net effect of inflow due
to Bank Deposits/interest and outflow due to CWIP/ Fixed Assets) was
Rs.7,540.73 Lakh in financial year 2023-24 as compared to Rs.273.11 Lakh in
financial year 2022-23.

48 RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24



E. DISCUSSION OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Balance Sheet Highlights

(Rs. in lakh)

Assets As on 315t As on 318t
March 2024 March 2023

Non — Current Assets
Net Tangible Fixed Assets 51819.52 23240.16
Non-Current Investments - -
Long term loans and advance - -
Net Intangible assets 6.59 7.81
Non-current Tax assets 64.62 63.04
Other non-current assets 11992.21 6938.70
Current Assets
Current Investments - -
Inventories - -
Trade Receivables - -
Cash & Bank Balances 7540.73 10523.11
Short-term Loans and Advances - -
Other Current Assets 3142.31 740.78
Total 74565.98 41513.60

F. FINANCIAL CONDITION
Net Worth

The net worth of the Company at the end of financial year 2023-24 increased to
Rs.67,481.38 lakh from Rs.37,589.00 lakh in the financial year 2022-23.

Net Fixed Assets

The Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) before and after depreciation were
Rs.461.17 lakh and Rs.377.75 lakh respectively as of March 31, 2024 as compared
to Rs.269.47 lakh and Rs.224.49 lakh respectively as of March 31, 2023. Since
the project is at the initial stage of construction, no major assets were either created
or procured till 31.03.2024.

Loans and Advances (Current & Non-Current) - Nil
Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and bank balances consist of cash surplus as on the balance sheet date in

our current account and short term deposits. Our cash and bank balances were
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Rs.464.73 Lakh and Short term deposits were Rs.7076.00 Lakh as on March 31,
2024 as compared to Rs.273.10 lakh and Rs.10250.00 lakh respectively as on

March 31, 2023.

Liabilities and Provisions

(Rs. in lakh)
As of March As of March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings (including Lease 2416.05 2302.98
Liabilities)
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Other Long Term Liabilities 4.17 1.30
Long Term Provisions - -
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings (Lease Liabilities) 24.48 9.13
Trade Payable 77.50 67.47
Other Current / Financial liabilities 4310.6 1331.17
Short Term Provisions & Others 247.80 212.55
Total 7080.60 3924.60

Long Term Liabilities

The long-term lease liabilities in current Financial Year 2023-24 was Rs.2,416.05
lakh (i.e. Rs.2,403.42 lakhs pertains to leasehold land and Rs.12.63 lakh to
building under lease), as compared to Rs.2,302.98 lakh in the previous financial
year 2022-23, which pertains to leasehold land only

Other Long Term Liabilities

Other long term liabilities pertains to lease liabilities on retention money in current
Financial Year 2023-24 was Rs.4.17 lakh as compared to Rs.1.30 lakh in previous
Financial Year 2022-23

Short Term Liabilities

The Short-term lease liabilities in current Financial Year 2023-24 was Rs.28.47
lakh (i.e. Rs.21.39 lakhs pertains to leasehold land and Rs.7.08 lakh to building
under lease) as compared to Rs.9.13lakh in the previous financial year 2022-23

which pertains to leasehold land only.
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VIII.

Trade payable

The trade payables stood at Rs.77.50 lakh in financial year 2023-24 consisting
mainly of Sundry creditors, as compared to Rs.67.47 lakh in financial year 2022-23.

Other Current & Financial Liabilities

Other current liabilities stood at Rs.4,310.62 lakh in financial year 2023-24
consisting mainly of amount payable to major contractor i.e. M/s MEIL against work
done and statutory dues payable, as compared to Rs.1,331.17 lakh in financial
year 2022-23.

DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT,
INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED
The entire workforce of the Company has been deputed by NHPC Limited and

Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development Corporation Limited.
INDUSTRIAL RELATION & STAFF WELFARE

Industrial relations between employees and employer were cordial and
harmonious. No man-day was lost on account of strike / lock-out. Staff welfare
activities were given special consideration. Workers were encouraged to
participate in the areas concerning their working conditions, welfare etc. Some of

the staff welfare activities carried out by the Company are as under:

e Celebration of various festivals like Diwali, Holi, Eid etc.
e Gym, Sports and other Recreational activities etc.
RESERVATION FOR SC/ST/OBC

The Company is making a modest contribution for the socio-economic
development of SC/ ST and other weaker sections of the society. Since, in terms
of the Promoters’ Agreement between NHPC Limited, JKSPDC and Government
of J&K, the staff for the Company is to be provided by promoters, therefore, no
recruitments are being done by the Company. However, both the promoters are
following reservation and relaxation as per guidelines issued by the Government

from time to time.
WELFARE OF PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

There was no physically challenged employee in the Company as on 31.03.2024.
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XI.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGMIPEAL
CONSERVATION, RENEWABLE ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE CONSERVATION

Information regarding technology absorption has been included elsewhere as part

of Directors’ Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Although the Company is not carrying out any commercial activity, the Company
is being earning profit due to interest income on equity contribution. As per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, during the FY 2023-24 the Company was
required to expend Rs.8.05 lakh (i.e. 2% of average net adjusted profit of Rs.4.03
crore for FY 2021-22 and 2022-23) on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities. During the FY 2023-24, your company had spent as amount of Rs.21.46
lakh on CSR activities in the field of Health care & Sanitation, Education & Skill
Development and Rural Development, as compared to Rs.35.09 lakh spent during
FY 2023-24.

The CSR policy of the Company is available on website at

https://www.rhpcindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The views and forward-looking statements contained in this report are based on
reasonable assumptions and subject to certain risks and uncertainty that could
cause actual results to differ from those reflected in such statements. Readers
should carefully review the other information in this report and in the Company’s
periodic reports. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or
revise any of these forward-looking statements whether as a result of new

information, future events or otherwise.

The financial figures shown above are based on the audited results of the

Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Indra Deva Dayal) (Rajendra Prasad Goyal)
Chairman Director
DIN: 09189651 DIN: 08645380

Date: 07.09.2024
Place: Faridabad
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ANNEXURE-D

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 ON ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTYS)
RULES, 2014.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION.

0] the efforts made towards technology absorption - NIL

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution - NIL

(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned

from the beginning of the financial year)-

a.

b
C.
d

the details of technology imported - Not Applicable

. the year of import - Not Applicable

whether the technology being fully absorbed - Not Applicable

. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place and the

reasons thereof - Not Applicable

(iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - NIL

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO.
The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the foreign

exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflow - NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Indra Deva Dayal) (Rajendra Prasad Goyal)
Chairman Director
DIN: 09189651 DIN: 08645380

Date: 07.09.2024
Place: Faridabad
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Annexure-E
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Your Company has formulated a CSR & Sustainability Policy in line with Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Schedule VIl of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 read with its amendments & General Circulars issued on
CSR by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; and Guidelines/ Office Memorandums of
Department of Public Enterprises. It includes the guiding principles for selection,
implementation and monitoring of activities as well as formulation of Annual Action Plan. The
CSR Policy of your Company, broadly includes the following:

» In terms of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company shall spend, in financial
year, at least two percent of the average net profits of the Company during the three
immediately preceding financial years. This amount is kept as annual budget for CSR &
SD works during the year and approved by the Board Directors.

» Preference to the local area around Ratle Hydroelectric Project is given for needy section
of the society and environmental sustainability.

» The CSR initiatives include programs on promoting Education & Skill development, Heath
care & Sanitation, Rural development, Environmental Sustainability, Women
empowerment, Sports, Art & Culture etc. in accordance with Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

» Selection of CSR & Sustainability schemes ensures the outreach of maximum benefits to
the needy sections of the society and environmental sustainability.

» CSR & Sustainability schemes for implementation are made in consultation/association
with various Stakeholders, Administrative Authorities of District / Sub-division / Blocks/
Panchayats etc.

» A management structure exists in your Company for selection, implementation and
monitoring of CSR & Sustainability schemes/activities.

» If an unspent amount does not relate to an ongoing project, the referred amount shall be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months of the expiry
of the financial year. The reasons for the non-utilization will be specified in Board’s Report.

2. Composition of Below Board Level CSR Committee:
The amount to be spent by the Company on CSR activities does not exceed Rs.50 lakh.
Accordingly, the functions of CSR Committee provided under Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are being discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company, as per provisions
of Section 135(9).

3. Provide the web-link(s) where CSR Projects approved by the board are disclosed on
the website of the company.

https://www.rhpcindia.com/CSR.aspx?Policies
https://www.rhpcindia.com/CSR.aspx?CSRAnnual
https://www.rhpcindia.com/CSR.aspx?CSRGallery
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link (s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

No Impact Assessment of CSR Project carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as the expenditure is

less than one crore.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.4,24,49,478.

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
Rs.8,48,990

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous

financial years: Nil
(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs.8,48,990

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects. : Rs.21,45,898
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads. - Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. - Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] : Rs 21,45,898
(e) CSR amount spent erunspentfor the Financial Year: : Rs.21,45,898

Sl. | Name of Programme /activities Amount

No. (in Rs.)

A Promoting health care including preventive health care and sanitation.

1 Registration of ambulance made as per request of DC, Kishtwar, 2,03,932
which was earlier handed over by RHPCL

2 Supply of RO / Water Filters to Govt Primary, Middle and High 87,599
Schools adjoining ratle Hydroelectric Project.
Sub Total (A) 2,91,531

B Promotion of Rural Sports, Nationally recognized sports
Sponsorship of Volleyball Tournament organized by Local PAF 59,000
Peace & Development Society, Drabshalla

2 Sponsorship of Dangal Festival organized by Local PAF Peace & 59,000
Development Society, Drabshalla

3 Co-sponsor Football Cup tournament-2023 held at historic 1,50,000
Chowgan Ground, Kishtwar
Sub Total (B) 2,68,000

C | Promoting Education, skill development and livelihood enhancement

1 Distribution of indoor sports materials Carom boards, Badminton 40,348
Rackets with Shuttle Cocks to Govt. Primary/Middle/High Schools
adjoining Ratle Hydroelectric Project

2 | Distribution of Heat Pillers and Buckets to Palsh Orpganage, 18,400
Kishtwar

3 Construction of Toilet at Govt. Primary School, Lohar Basti Tehsil 3,17,692
Drabshalla

4 Construction of Boundary Wall in the Govt. Primary/High School, 7,44,001
Drabshalla
Sub Total (C) 11,20,441
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D Promotion and development of traditional art, culture and handicrafts

1 Sponsorship of Kishtwar Idol-2 organised by District 73,750
Administration, Kishtwar
Sub Total (D) 73,750

E Improvement in Infrastructures in villages / schools in project area.
1 Installation of 20 Nos. integrated white LED type solar Street lights 2,60,525
in Drabshalla market area

2 Pucca Path between Lower block and upper block at Govt. High 1,31,651
School, Drabshalla

Sub Total (E) 3,92,176
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C+D+E) 21,45,898

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. Particular Amount (in

No. Rs.)

1 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per 8,48,990
Section-135(5)

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 21,45,898

3 Excess amount spent for the Financial Year {2-1} 12,96,908

4 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 12,96,908

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Amount
Amount transferred to | Amount
Balance -
transferred . a Fund as | remainin
Amount in | Amount s
to Unspent : specified g to be
: Unspent CSR | Spent in :
Preceding | CSR under spent in -
. . Account the .| Deficienc
Financial | Account . . Schedule VIl | succeedi .
under sub- | Financial y, if any
Year(s) under sub- : ; as per second | ng
; section (6) | Year (in . . :
section (6) . proviso to sub- | Financial
: of section Rs) . i
of section 135 (in Rs.) section (5) | Years (in
135 (in Rs.) ' of section 135, | Rs)
if any
2021-22 Nil
2022-23 Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: Yes (4 Nos.)

The details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year are as under:
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Q)

o\
NG
Pin code Det_allls of
Short particulars of | of the Amount entity/
Sl. Date of | of CSR | Authority/
the property or | property . .
No. creation amount beneficiary of
asset(s) or .
spent the registered
asset(s)
owner
Installation of 20 Nos.
integrated white LED
type solar Street lights Sarpanch
1 in Drabshalla market | 182204 08.05.2023 2,60,525 | Tehsil
area, Drabshala, Drabshalla
District-Kishtwar, UT
of J&K
Construction of Pucca
Path between Lower Principal,
block and upper block Govt. High
2 at Govt. High School, 182204 31.03.2024 1,31,651 School,
Drabshalla, Distt- Drabshalla
Kishtwar, UT of J&K
Construction of Toilet
at Govt. Primary Headmaster,
School, Lohar Basti Govt. Primary
3 Tehsil Drabshalla, 182204 31.03.2024 317,692 School, Lohar
Distt-Kishtwar, UT of Basti
J&K
. Principal, Govt.
Construction of High School,
Boundary Wall / hall
Fencing in the Govt Drabshalla and
4 ) " | 182204 31.03.2024 7,44,001 | Headmaster
High School and Govt. :
. Govt. Primary
Primary School, School
Drabshalla, UT of J&K ’
Drabshalla.

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Not Applicable.

Sd/-
(Ashok Kumar Nauriyal)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Date: 07.09.2024
Place: Faridabad
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Sd/-

(Indra Deva Dayal)
(Chairman)
(DIN: 09189651)
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Annexure-F

UDIN:24519405BKAVPF4944 - Mobile: +91-9419115178
Email: caguptasahil@gmail.com

Sahil Gupta& Associates

Chartered Accountants
29-C, Sector-7 extension, Vaishnavi Enclave, Channi Himmat,
Jammu-180015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Ratle Hydroelectric
Power Corporation Limited (“the Company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss(including OtherComprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,and
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies andOther Explanatory Notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to
as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaidStandalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) in themanner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedin India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit, changes ‘in equity and its cashflows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10)of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities forthe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together withthe ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
theAct and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with theserequirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

We did not find any key audit matter required to be communicated.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information to be included in the Annual Report, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after
thedate of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when' it becomes available, and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and describe necessary actions required as per applicable
laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
Profit or Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for

assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a.going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
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accounting unless management either intends to liqu_ida'te the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management; :

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and,based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
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date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or inaggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalonefinancial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect ofany identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit. A

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

s

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

)As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

I) Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to
information and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure B” a report on the
Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of Section
143(5) of the Act;
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1) Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as
required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c)the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income),the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) in terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding disqualifications of the
Directors, are not applicable as it is a Government Company;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”. Our report expressgs an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses against long-term contracts
including derivative contracts and thereby requirement for making provision in this respect is
not applicable to the Company;

ii) There have been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iiiy As per notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act as regards the managerial remuneration is not
applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company.

iv (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
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from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures we consider reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

(v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, all
accounting transactions are routed through ERP system implemented by the Company
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

UDIN: 24519405BKAVPF4944

For Sahil Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 024041N)

[Zal o
& }N«///

CA Sahil Gupta Date: 30-04-2024
(PARTNER) Place: Jammu
M No 519405
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Annexure-A
(Annexure “A” Referred to in paragraph | under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Disclosure for reporting of matters to be included in Auditor's Report as per
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020.

Place:

(a) (A) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment;

REPLY:Yes. the company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant
and Equipment;

(B) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets;

REPLY: Yes. The company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets;

(b) whether these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals; whether any material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification and if so, whether the same have been properly
dealt with in the books of account

REPLY: As per the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant
and Equipment have been physically verified by the managementonce during
the year which in our opinion is reasonable considering that company has
been incorporated on 01.06.2021 only andno significant transactions have
taken place so far. No discrepancies have been reported on such verification.

(c) whether the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are

duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the company. If not, provide the details thereof in the format
below: -

REPLY: According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records examined by us, we report that there is no immovable property with
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the Company as on 31.03.2024 described as Land-Freehold except for the
following where the title deeds are not in the name of the Company:

Releva | Descrip (Gross Area | Title | Whether | Prope | Reason
nt Line | tion of [carrying in Dee | title deed | rty for not
Item in | item of |value Hegt | ds | holderis | held being
balanc | Propert (Gross are held | a since | held in
e y Block at in promoter, | which | the name
Sheet deemed the | director | date of the
cost as at nam | or relative Company
31.03.2024) e of. | of
(Amount in Promoter/
Rs in Lacs) director
or
employee
of
promoter/
director ]
Propert | Land - | There is no immovable property with the Company as on
y Plant | Freehol | 31.03.2024.
and d
Equip
ment
Right | Land- 6667.03 289.4 | Not | One of 18-01- | Lease
Of Use | Lease 8 yet | the 2022 | deedin
Assets | Hold Hect | exec | promoters respect of
are uted | of the the land
company has been
transferre
d by
JKSPDCL
to RHPCL,
is under
finalization
and yet to
be
executed.

d) Whether the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and, if so, whether
the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer; specify the amount
of change, if change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of
each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets;

REPLY :According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or
Intangible assets or both during the year

(e) Whether any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company
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(i)

(iii)

for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and Rules made thereunder; if so, whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in its financial statements;

REPLY: According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(a) whether physical verification of inventory hasbeen conducted at reasonable
intervals by the management and whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; whether any
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed and if so. whether they have been properly dealt with in the books of
account;

REPLY: As informed, the inventories of the Company except for inventories in
transit, have been physically verified by the management internally once during
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that
were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) whether during any point of time of the year, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets; whether the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company. If not, give details.

REPLY: No, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets

whether during the year the company has made investments in, provided any

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
If so,

(a) whether during the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in
the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity [not
applicable to companies whose principal business is to give loans], if so, indicate-

REPLY: As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis

of our examination of the records of the Company during the year the company
hasnotprovided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood
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guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

REPLY: Not applicable to company *

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties
other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

REPLY: Not applicable to company

(b) whether the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

REPLY: Not applicable to company

(¢) in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans whether the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and whether the
repayments or receipts are regular;

REPLY: Not applicable to company

(d) if the amount is overdue, state the total amount overdue for. more than ninety
days, and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of
the principal and interest; o

REPLY :Not applicable to company

(e) whether any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties; If so, specify the aggregate
amount of such dues renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans and the
percentage of the aggregate to the total loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted during the year. [Not applicable to companies whose principal business is to
give loans];

REPLY : Not applicable to company
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(f) whether the Company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment;
if so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total loans granted,
aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

REPLY : Not applicable to company *

in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security whether provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. If not,
provide the details thereof.

REPLY : Not applicable to company

in respect of deposits accepted by the Company or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, whether the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where applicable, have been complied
with? If not, the nature of such contraventions be stated; If an order has been passed
by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal, whether the

same has been complied with or not?

REPLY : Not applicable to company

whether maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and whether such
accounts and records have been so made and maintained

REPLY : Not applicable to company

(a) whether the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities and if not, the extent of the arrears of outstanding statutory dues
as on the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable, shall be indicated;

REPLY :According to the information and explanations given to us, during the

year, the Company has generally been regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
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(viii)

(ix)

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues as applicable to it. -

(b) where statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, theh the amounts involved and the forum where
dispute is pending shall be mentioned. (A mere representation to the
concerned Department shall not be treated as a dispute).

REPLY : Not applicable in case of company

whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been
surrendered ordisclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961; if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has been
properly recorded in the books of account during the year?

REPLY : No
(a) whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings

or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender? If yes, the period and the
amount of default to be reported as per the format below:

Nature of | Name of | Amount Whether No. of | Remarks,
borrowing | lender* not paid on | principal days delay | if any
S, due date or interest | or unpaid
including
debt
| securities

*  lender
wise
details to
be
provided
in case of
defaults to
banks,
financial
institutions
and
Governme
nt.

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender.

(b) Whether the company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender?
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(%)

(xi)

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender.

(¢c) Whether term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained; if not, the amount of loan so diverted and the purpose for which it is
used may be reported

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender.

(d) whether funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term
purposes? If yes, the nature and amount to be indicated

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender.

(e) whether the Company has taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures? If
so, details thereof with nature of such transactions and the amount in each case

REPLY : No funds have been taken from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) whether the Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies? If so,
give details thereof and also report if thecompany has defaulted in repayment of
such loans raised.

REPLY :Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year were applied for the purposes for which
those are raised. If not, the details together with delays or default and subsequent
rectification, if any, as may be applicable, be reported;

REPLY : No money has been raised by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) whether the Company has made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year and if so, whether the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised. If not, provide details in respect of
amount involved and nature of non-compliance

REPLY : No preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) has been made
during the year

(a) whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed
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(xii)

(xiii)

or reported during the year; If yes, the nature and the amount involved is to be
indicated;

REPLY : No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year .

(b) whether any report under sub-Sectién (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government?

REPLY :- No

(c) whether the auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints, if any, received
during the year by the Company?

REPLY : No whistle-blower compliant has been reported during the year

(a) whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned Funds to
Deposits in the ratio of 1:20 to meet out the liability

REPLY : Not applicable to company

(b) whether the Nidhi C ompany is maintaining ten per cent unencumbered term
deposits as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability;

REPLY : Not applicable to company

(¢). whether there has been any default in payment of interest on deposits or
repaymentthereof for any period and if so, the details thereof

REPLY : Not applicable to company

whether all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

REPLY: Yes. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards; :
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(a) whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business?

REPLY: The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business

(b) Whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were
considered by the statutory auditor?

REPLY :We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under
audit, submitted by Internal Auditors in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

whether the company has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him and if so, whether the provisions of section 192 of
Companies Act have been complied with;

REPLY : The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him.

(a) whether the company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and if so, whether the registration has been
obtained. '

REPLY : The company is not required to be.registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) whether the Company has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

REPLY :The Company has notconducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities.

(¢) whether the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the
Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India? If so, whether it continues to fulfil
the criteria of a CIC and In case the company is an exempted or unregistered
CIC, whether it continues to fulfil such criteria

REPLY : No, the companyis not a Core Investment Company.' (CIC) as defined
under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of: India.

(d) Whether the Group has more than one CIC as part of the Group, If yes, indicate
the number of CICs which are part of the Group.
REPLY : No.

whether the Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the
immediately preceding Financial year? If so, state the amount of cash losses
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(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

REPLY : No

whether there has been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year? If
so, whether the auditor has taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors?

REPLY : No, there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year

on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, whether the auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

REPLY :In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management of the company, the company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date

(a) whether, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has transferred
unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

REPLY : Not applicable to company with respect to financial year 2023-24

whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements? If yes, indicate the
details of the companies and the paragraph numbers of the CARO report containing
the qualifications or adverse remarks

REPLY :Not applicable to company

UDIN: 24519405BKAVPF4944

For Sahil Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No. 024041%

CA Sahil Gupta // Date: 30-04-2024
(PARTNER) - _ Place: Jammu

M No 519405
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Annexure-B

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

(Annexure “B” Referred to in paragraph Il under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course
of audit of annual accounts of RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION
LIMITED for the year 2023-24 issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of india under
Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:

Sl

No.

Directions

Auditors' Reply

1

Whether the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outsides IT
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on our audit, all
accounting transactions are routed through
ERP system implemented by the Company.

We have neither been informed nor we have
come across during the course of our audit any
accounting transactions having impact on the
integrity of the accounts along with the
which have been

financial implications

processed outside the IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of
an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the Company due to the
Company's inability to repay the loan?
If yes, the financial impact may be
stated. Whether
properly accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government company,
then this direction is also applicable
of

such cases are

for statutory auditor lending

company).

According to information and explanations
given to us and based on our audit, there is no
case of resfructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts / loans /
interest etc. made by lender to the Company.
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’7 company).

3 Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.)| Acgording to information and explanations
received/receivable for specific| given to us and based on our audit, no funds
schemes from Central/State| (grants/ subsidy etc.) from Central/State
Government or its agencies were| Government or its agencies has been
properly accounted for/utilized as per| received/receivable to the company.

its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation.

UDIN: 24519405BKAVPF4944

For Sahil Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn: No. 024041N)

ho A
G AW
_/'" A
CA Sahil Gupta Date: 30-04-2024
(PARTNER) Place: Jammu
M No 519405
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Annexure-C

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Annexure “C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph Iil (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ratle
Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited (“the Compa.ny”) as of 31st March, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completéness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
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reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an ddequate internal financial controls system
with reference tofinancial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial reporting were operating effectively during the FY ended on March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

UDIN: 24519405BKAVPF4944

For Sahil Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 024041N)
£ g
(G2
W25

CA Sahil Gu;fﬁ Date: 30-04-2024
(PARTNER) Place: Jammu
M No 519405
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0
RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

(0}

{Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

l‘""-_ TR e Nots No. An at I1at March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
ASSETS
(1) NON-GURRENT ASSETS
- @) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 2.1 377.75 22449
b) Capital Work In Progress ~ 2.2 61,441,77 23,015.67
©) Righl Of Use Assels 23 7,808.57 6,485.73
d) Investment Property 24 - -
o) Intangible Assels 2.5 6.59 7.81
n Inlangible Assets under development 2.6 - .
8) Financlal Assets
i) Investmants 3.1 - .
Il} Trade Receivables 3.2 - -
ill) Loans 3.3 - -
Iv) Others 34 425,16 425,16
h) Nen Current Tax Assets (Nat) 4 1.70 0.12
) Deferred Tax Assets (Nel) 18.1 82.92 62,92
ily Other Non Curment Asasts 5 3,780.48 27,81
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 3,882.94 30,249.72
{2) CURRENY ASBETS '
a) inveniories 4] - -
b) Pinanoisi Awsets
i) Investments 7.1 - -
Il) Trade Recsivables 1.2 = -
lii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 7.540.73 273.11
Iv) Bank balancas other than Cash and Cash Equivalents ] - 10,250.00
v) Loans 10 - -
vl) Others 1 3,087.96 830.38
) Curent Tax Assats (Net) 12 - =
d) Other Current Assels 13.1 74.36 110.38
TOTAL CURRENT ABBETS 10,883.04 11,283.88
(3)  Aszels Held for Sas 13.2 - -
(4)  Regulatory Deferral Account Deblt Balances 141 - -
TOTAL ASSETS 74,585.00 41,813,080
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) EQUITY
(a) Eqully S8hare Capitsl 16.1 68,488.00 27,000.00
(b) Other Equity 162 993 18 10,580 .00
TOTAL EQUITY §7,481.38 37,580.00
1
(2)  LIABLITIES
a) g
i) Borrowings 16.1 - -
ls) Leass Lisblities 16.2 2,416.06 2,302,98
I} Other financia! Uahilities 18.3 417 1.30
b) Provistons 17 - -
c) Defored Tax Liabillyes (Net) 18 - =
d) Other non-current Lisbifities 19 = e
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,420.22 2,304.28
3) ' CURRENT LIABILITIES
) Financial Liabilitiss
i} Borrowings 201 - -
ig) Lease Liabilities 20.2 28.48 9.13
ii) Trade Payables 20.3
Tolal outstanding duas of micro enterprises and amall enterprises 52.56 43.84
::;sl’;\:t;imm:m::;o of Creditors other than micro enterprises 24.94 2363
ill) Other financtal llabllities 204 3,996.90 1,184.50
b} Olher Current Liabilitles 21 313.70 13668
©) Provisions 22 247.80 212.55
d) Curment Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 - e
(4} FUND FROM C.0. 153 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,664.38 1,620.32
(5) Regulstory Deferral A t Credit Bal, 142 - -
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 74,665.98 41,613.60
Accompanving notes to the Financlal Statements 1-34
For and on b Board of Directors

For Szhil Gupta & Associates
Chariered Accounignls
(Firm Regn. No,02R041N)

X
Pl

(CA Bahil Gubtal
Partner
M.No.519405

Date! -

s
@Qﬁb@?ﬁ?g
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Chie cutive Officer mpar - f
{Ashok Kumar Nauriyal) (Abhisiak Dagur) “v;:‘\(: PO 5';3'_."9
Place: - ng Y LALL \35-' % .
- ) L2 WP & -
o=y~ = @
=] g
= 5
< =7
Q“)\( I '\éc
” % o
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RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

{Amount In T Lakhs)

e For the Year ended For the Year ended

PARTICULARS
| Nate No. et Maroh, 2024 31st March, 2023

INCONME

1) Revenue from Oparations 241
i 1) Other Income 242 802.01 904.68
TOTAL INCOME 802.01 904.58

expensEs
i) Purchase of Power - Trading 25.1

i) Generation Expenses 252 - .

) Employee Bansfits Expense 26 -
v} Finance Cosls 27 0.21 3.08

v)  Depreciation and Amortization Expense 28 0.00 0.00

vl)  Other Expenses 20 4590 42.75
TOTAL EXPENSES 46.12 465.83

PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT 556.89 58876
BALANGES AND TAX .

Exceptional ems - -
PROFIT BEFORE REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT BALANCES AND TAX 688.88 868.76

Tax Expenses 30.1
i) Curment Tax 161.61 239.48

i) Defeed Tax = {12.60)
Total Tax Bxpanses 161.51 226.80
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE NET MOVEMENTS IN REGULATORY DEFERRAL 404.38 831.85
ACCOUNT BALANCES 2
Movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (Net of Tax) 31 - =
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (A) 404.38 631,85

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (B) 30.2
{}) kmmas that will not be recissaliied to profit or loss {Net of Tax)

(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations . .

Less:-Movement In Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of tax on - .
defined beneflt obiigations
M | in Reguistory Detacral A { Balar R 't of post R
employment dalined banefit obillgations -

Less: Impact of Tax on Reguiatory Deferral Accounts - | 2

Sub totsl (a)

(b)invasiment In Equity Instruments

Sub total (1) . .
Total {i}={a}+{b) . .

(L)) toma that will be ruclassified to profit or loss (Net of Tax)
- b in Debt | - -
Total (i} - a

Other Comprehensive Income {B)s{i+Ii} - =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A+B) (COMPRISING PROFIT AND 404.98 631,85
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR) ) '

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted)
(Equity shares, fuce value of ¥ 10/- each)

Before movements in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 0.08 0.27
ARer movements In Requiatory Deferral Acoount Balances 0.08 0.26

34(10)

Accompanying notes to the Financlal Statemaents 1-34

For Sahll Gupta & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No.gZ4041N)

{CA Sahil Gup! - /

Partner
M.No.519405

Plage: - £,

Date: . g ~ 2 §s

20 =225

Chig utive Officar
(Ashiok Kumar Nauriyal)
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ﬁ"‘"“\ RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

§ :mSmm 3 STATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

% e {Figures in T Lakhs)
\»«_,_, P For tha Yaar onded For the Year ondod”

L1 318t March, 2024 318t March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit bofore tax for the year including mevements In 555 90
Reguiatory Deferral Account Balancs

Less: Movement in Regulalory Deferral Account Balances - =
Profit before Tax 555.90 858.74

ADD;

Deprecialion and Amorlizalion - .

Finance Cost (Nel of EAC) 021 308

Provision for Diminulion in value of investmenl = .

Pravisions Others (Nel of EAC)

Exchange rate varialion (Loss) s

Tariff Adjustment (loss) -

Sales adjustment on accounl of Exchange Rate Varialion - -

LoseAProfil) on sale of assets/Claims writlen off 118 .

Fair value Audjustmenis - -

PR 3.08
§57.29 881.83

LESS:

Advance agains! Deprecialion wrillen back

Provisions (Net gain)

Nel GainfLoss on sale of Inveslmels

Adjuslment againe! Consullancy Charges from Subsidiary

Companies

Dividend Income -

Interest Income & Guarantee Fees 904.58

(including Late Payment Surcharge) 602.01

Exchange rato variation {Gain) .

Cther Adjusimenls - .

Fair value Audjustmenls - -

Amoriisalion of Government Grants - -

602.01 904.58

Cash flow from Operating Actlvities before Operating Assots
& Liabllities adjustments 472 4275

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabllitles:
Inventories - +
Trade Receivables
Other Financial Assels, Loans and Advances 0.12 012)
Other Financial Liabilities and Provisions 44381 224339
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances - s .
4439 — 224327
Cash flow from operating actlvities before taxes 399.21 2,200.52

Less: Taxes 163,31 24323
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 24580 185738

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Properly, Plant and Equipmenl, |nwe.
Properly, Other Inlangible Assels, CWIP (including epar
allribulable lo conslruction forming part of CWIP for the year) |
Movement in Regulalory Deferral Accounl Balances forming part
of Project Cost- Nel of Grant -33323 49 [#4,05.00)
Sale of Assets -
Invesment in Joint Venlure (including Share Application Money
pending allotment)
I in Subsidiaries (including Share Application Money
pending allotment)
Loan lo Subsidiaries -
Ri of Loan by Subsidiari -
Interes! on Loan to Subsidiaries/Joint Veniures - -
Net Investment in Term Deposits 10250.00 -6,574.13
Proceeds from Sale of Invastment . .
Dividend Income - -
Interest Incoma & Guarantee Fees 904,42
{including Lale Payment Surcharge) 609 66 '

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) -22,463.83 -33.684.73
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue & Buyback of Equily Shares including Securily Premium 29,488.00 18,330.00

Dividend Paid = =
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - -
Proceeds from Shorl Term Borrowings - -
Repayment of Borrowings .
Interes! & Finance Charges
Principal Repayment of Lease Liabilily 11026
Inlerest paid on Lease Liability -11270 -
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 29,485.56 18,330.00

NET INCREASE{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH )
D. EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 7.267.63 il
Cash & Cash Equlvalents {Opening Balance) 27311 13,680.55

Cash & Cash Equivalants (Closing Balance) 7,540.73 273.11
0.00

The above Statement of Cash Flows is prepared In accardance with the Indirect method prescribed in 1nd AS 7 - -Stalement of Gash FIows:,

Afrarlacefiad urh o

*Previous year figures have been regroup q
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Cash and Cash equivalents consists of Cash in hand, cheques/drafts in hands and Bank Balances including Short Term Deposils with original maturity of
less than three months. The detail of Cash and Cash equivalents is as under:

Balances with Banks

With scheduled Banks:
- In Current Account
- In Deposits Account

(Depoasils with original malurity of less than three moniths)

Cash on Hand

Cash and Cash equivalents

at 31st March,

464.73
7076 00
0.00
000
0.00
000
754073

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

202

21
0.00
0.00
000
0.00
0.00

27311

2 Interest and finance charges in Cash Flow from Financing Aclivilies includes borrowing cosl of € NIL (Previous year ZNIL.} capilalisad during lhe period on account of

Expendilure altributable to construction (EAC),

3 Amount of undrawn loan as on 31.03.2024 ; € NIL (Previous Year ZNIL ),

4 Company has incurred ¥ 9 54 lakhs in cash on accounl of Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure during the year ended 31.03.2024 (Previous Year Z 30.07 lakhs)

5 et Dabt Recongiliation :

(¥ in Lakhs)
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Borrowings (Current & Non-Current) - *
Lease Liability 2444 52 231211
Total 244452 2312.11
l_ For the year anded 31t March,2024 For the year ended 31t March,2023
Particulars **Borrowings **Borrowings
(Current & Non- |Lease Liability Total {Current & Non- Lease Liability Total
Current) Current)

Opening Net Debt as on 1st April - 2,312.11 21201 - 0.00
Proceeds from Borrowings - = = 0.00
Repayment of Borrowings/Lease Liabilitv - (2.44) (2.44) 0.00
Interest paid - {0.00) (0.00} 0.00
Other Non-Cash Movements ; = 0.00
-Increase in Lease Liability - 22.1. 22.15 2177.03 2177.03
-Foreign exchange adjustments - - - 0.00 0.00
-Interest and Finance Charges - 112.70 112.70 13508 135.08
-Fair value adjustments - - o 0.00
Closing Net Debt as on 31st March . 2.444.52 2.444.52 2312.11 2312.11
**For Borrowings refer Note Na.16.1, 20.1 and 20.4 (Item namely Interest Accrued on Borrowings - due & not due)

For Sahil Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No.024041N) W

\ =, ,p S
/ Foron A1)
4 f‘_...\ Director

(CA Sahil Gupts . K pr Q"’ 2

Partner 0 o { % M

M.No.519405 W .

Place: ;ZQU) (=74%7¢
Date: 206 L, P‘D—(/

Chief
{Ash

utive Officer
umar Nauriyal)
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Company 5 Ty
{Abhishek Dagur)
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NHPC LIMITED
(A Government of India Enterprise)

NOTE: 161 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Nos Amount Nos Amount
i f 160
?g)thorlzed Share Capital (Par value per ghare Rs. 16000.00 160000.00 16000.00 000G 65
- —
Equity shares [ssued, subscribed and fully paid (Par 6648.80 66488.00 2700.00 27000.00
value per share Rs. 10)
— |
16.1.1 |R liation of equily shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
Opsning Balance 2700.00 27,000.00 1861.40 1851400
Add: No. of shares/Share Capital Issued/ 39,486.00 8488,00|
subscribed during the year 3848.80 848.60
Less:-Buyback of shares during the year = s z 0.00
Closing Balance 6648.80 66,488.00 2700.00 27000.00
The Company has issuad only one kind of aquily shares with voling rights proportionate to the share holding of the shareholders. These

16.1.2

16.1.3

vating rights are exercisabie at mesting of shareholdars. The holders of the equity shares are aiso entitied to receive dividend as deciared
from time to time. in the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of aquity shares will be enditied 10 receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential smounts. The distribution wili be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by he

shareholders.

Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent spacifying the number of shares held : -

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 318t March, 2023
Nurmber In (%) Number In (%)
- NHPC Limited 3648.80 | 54.88% 1377.00 | 51.00%
- JKSPDC 3000.00 | 45.12% 1323.00 | 49.00%
18.1.4 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2024
8.No |Promotaer Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |% Change during
the year
- NHPC Limited 3648.80 54.88% 3.88%
- JKSPDC 3000.00| 45.12% -3.88%
16,1.6 Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2023
S.No |Promotar Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares |% Change during
the year
- NHPC Lmited 1377.00 51.00% 0.00%
- JKEPDC 1323.00 49.00% 0.00%

Note

As per promoter agreement, the ratio of equity shall be 51% & 48% of NHPC and JKSPDC respectively.
Howsver, due to delay in reimburesement of equity from JKSPDC, the ratio is 54.88% and 45.12% of NHPC
and JKSPDC respectively as on 31.03.2024
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NHPC LIMITED
(A Govemment of Indfa Enterprise)

NOTE NO. 15.2 OTHER EQUITY

(Amount in ¥ Laihs)

PARTICULARS

As at ¥1st March,
2024

As at 31st Margh,
2023

(i) 8hare Application Monev Pendina Allot t
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Recaived During The Year
Less: Shares Issued during the Year

10,000.00
29,488.00
39,488.00

156,00
18,330.00

JAx at Balance Sheet dats

B,485.00
10

(il) Surplus/ Retalned Eamings
As por last Balance Shest
Add: Profit during the year
Add: Other Comprehensive Income during the year
Add: Transfer from Bond Redemption Reserve

Less: Dividend (Final and Intarim)

569,00
404,38

-42.85
631.85

As at Balance Sheet date

—_—
589.00

(iii) Falr value through Other Comprehensive incoms (FVTOC!)-Debt Instruments

Aas per last Balanos Shoet

Add: Change it Fair value of FYTOCI [Net of Tax)
As ut Balance Shest dsts

) Fair value through Other Comprshensive income {(FYTOCI)-Equity Instruments

As per last Balanoe Shest
Add: Change in Fair vaiue of FVTOCI (Net of Tax)

As at Balance Shoet date

TOTAL

$03.38

10,589.00

18.21  Nature and Purpose of Rasorves
Surplus/ Retained Eamings : Surplus/ Retained sarnings generaily represent the undistributed profit/ emount of accumulated earnings

0]

of the company and includes remeasurement gein/ lossea on defined benefit cbligations.
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NOTE NO. 1: COMPANY INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICYgg
(I) Reporting entity

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a Company domiciled in yndis
and limited by shares (CIN: U40105JK2021G01012380). The shares of the Company are not Jisted
on any Stock Exchange of India. RHPCL is a Joint Venture of NHPC Limited (51%) and Jammy and
Kashmir State Power Development Corporation Limited i.e. JKSPDC (49%) and also subsidja_ry of
NHPC Limited. The address of the Company’s registered office is Room No.8, Block-2, NHpPC
Regional office, JDA commercial complex No.1, Narwal, Jammu, J&K-180006. The Company 1s
primarily involved in the generation and sale of bulk power to various Power Utilities.

(II) Basis of preparation
(A) Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent
amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act,
2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 29-04-2024
(B) Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for:
o Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
« Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans measured at fair value
o right of use assets — measured at present value of future cash outflows at initial recognition
« assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell
The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in Note 33.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds
received in exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected
to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

(C) Application of new and revised standards

Vide notification dated March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends certain
Indian Accounting Standards, and are effective from April 1, 2023. The summary of the
major amendments and its impact on the Company are given hereunder:

i) Disclosure of accounting policies — amendments to Ind AS 1 -
Presentation of financial statements: This amendment requires the entities to
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. These amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’
(being information that, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements) and explain how to identify when accounting policy
information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy
information do not need to be disclosed. If disclosed, they should not obscure
material accounting information.
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The Company has evaluated the amendment and suitably modified its Materig
Accounting Policies. However, impact of the said amendment on the Colhpany’s
financial statements is not significant.

ii) Definition of accounting estimates — amendments to Ind As g .
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errox-s; The
amendment clarifies how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes
in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions and other
future events, whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past events (as well as the current
period).

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s

financial statements.

iii) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a sgingle
transaction — amendments to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: This amendment has
narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

iv) Amendments/ revisions in other standards are either not applicable or do not have any

material impact on the financial statements.

(D) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the
nearest crore (upto two decimals) except where indicated otherwise.

(E) Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the application of accounting
policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures
including contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates
and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors considered
reasonable and prudent in the circurastances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
may have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
included in the following notes:

Critical judgments and estimates
a) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements
of Ind AS 116- Leases. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.

The Company also uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
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b)

)

d)

e)

Y]

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are baged
on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition apq
other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technologica]
advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

Recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in
Progress and Intangible Assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions, in particular the expected
market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any changes in
these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable
amount resulting in impairment.

Post-retirement benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions in respect of future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increase, inflation rate and expected rate
of return on plan assets. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions
may have an impact on the resulting calculations.

Revenue

The Company records revenue from sale of power based on tariff approved by the CERC,
as per the principles of Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers. However, in
cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted considering
the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Further, where revision in tariff due to revision in
cost estimates are pending, tariff is computed based on the parameters and methods
prescribed under the CERC Tariff Regulations and an estimated amount of revenue is
recognised when an application is made to the CERC after obtaining necessary approvals
to the extent it is highly probable that there will be no downward adjustment to the
revenue recognised.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has been made on the basis of
best judgment by management regarding probable outflow of economic resources. These
estimates can change due to unforeseeable developments.

Recoverable Amount of Rate Regulated Assets

The operating activities of the Company are subject to cost-of-service regulations whereby
tariff charged for electricity generated is based on allowable costs like interest costs,
depreciation, operation and maintenance including a stipulated return. Guidance Note on
Rate Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI (previous GAAP) and Ind AS 114- ‘Regulatory
Deferral Accounts’ permits an entity to include in the rate base, as part of the cost of self-
constructed (tangible) PPE or internally generated intangible assets, amounts that would
otherwise be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company estimates that items of regulatory deferral accounts recognised
in the financial statements are recoverable as per the current CERC Tariff Regulations
2019-24. However, changes in CERC tariff regulations beyond the current tariff period
may affect the recoverability of such balances.
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h) Impairment of Trade Receivables

Considering the historical credit loss experience for trade receivables, the Company qgeg
not envisage either impairment in the value of receivables from beneficiaries or loss dye to
time value of money owing to delay in realization of trade receivables, except to the extent
already provided for. CERC Tariff Regulations provide for recovery of Late Payment
Surcharge for delayed payments which compensates for loss due to time value of money,
except to the extent already provided for.

i) Insurance Claim Recoverable

The recoverable amount of insurance claims in respect of damages to Property, Plant and
Equipment and Capital Work in Progress is based on estimates and assumptions as per
terms and conditions of insurance policies and management estimate of amount
recoverable from the Insurance Company based on past experience.

j) Cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified
Carbon Units (VCUs)

The cost of Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon
Units (VCUs) are measured as per Management estimate.

k) Assets classified as held for sale

Management judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for
sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, In
assessing the applicability, management exercises judgment to evaluate availability of the
asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and probability of sale
within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.

(IIT) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Summary of the material accounting policies for preparation of financial statements as given below
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. These accounting
policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing relevant and
reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. These
policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

Up to March 31, 2015, Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress, Intangible Assets
and Investment Property were carried in the Balance Sheet in accordance with Indian GAAP. The
Company had elected to avail the exemption granted by IND AS 101, “First time adoption of IND AS”
to regard those amounts as the deemed cost at the date of transition to IND AS (i.e., as on April 1,
2015). Therefore, the carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work in Progress,
Intangible Assets and Investment Property as per the previous GAAP as at April 1, 2015, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

1.0  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

a) An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

b) PPE are initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including decommissioning or
restoration cost wherever required. The cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. In cases where final settlement of bills with
contractors is pending, but the asset is complete and available for operating in the manner
intended by the management, capitalisation is done on estimated basis subject to necessary
adjustments, including those arising out of settlement of arbitration/court cases.
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c)

d)

e)

g

h)

i

3

k)

D

a)

b)

Subsequent costs is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probahyje that
future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise a4 tje
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure incurred on renovation and modernization of power station on completion of
the originally estimated useful life of the power station is added to the cost of the yejated
asset when it meets the recognition criteria. PPE acquired as replacement of the existing
assets are capitalized and its corresponding replaced assets removed/ retired from actjve yse
are derecognized. ~

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Deposits, payments made/ liabilities created provisionally towards compensation (including
interest on enhanced compensation till the date of award by the Court), rehabilitation &
resettlement and other expenses including expenditure on environment management plans
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

Assets over which the Company has control, though created on land not belonging to the
Company, are included under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Standby equipment and servicing equipment which meet the recognition criteria of Property,
Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Spares parts (procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently) which meet the
recognition criteria are capitalized: The carrying amount of those spare parts that are
replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon disposal. Other spare parts are treated as “stores and spares” forming part of inventory.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it
meets the asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the
previous inspection and overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been
depreciated separately. If it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the
replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost
of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
as and when incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Capital work in Progress (CWIP)

Expenditure incurred on assets under construction (including a project) is carried at cost
under CWIP, Such costs comprise purchase price of assets including import duties and non-
refundable taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), expenditure in relation to
survey and investigation activities of projects, cost of site preparation, initial delivery and
handling charges, installation and assembly costs, etc.

Costs including employee benefits, professional fees, expenditure on maintenance and up-
gradation of common public facilities, depreciation on assets used in construction of project
including Right-of-Use assets, interest during construction and other costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management are accumulated under “Expenditure
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3.0

¢)

Attributable to Construction (EAC)” and subsequently allocated on systematic basis gver
major immovable assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning 55
projects. Net pre-commissioning income/ expenditure is adjusted directly in the cqgt of
related assets.

Capital Expenditure incurred for creation of facilities, over which the Company does not
have control but the creation of which is essential principally for construction of the project
is accumulated under “Expenditure Attributable to Construction” and carried under “Capital
Work in Progress” and subsequently allocated on a systematic basis over major immaovable
assets, other than land and infrastructure facilities on commissioning of projects, keeping in
view the “attributability” and the “Unit of Measure” concepts in Ind AS 16- “Property, Plant
and Equipment”, Expenditure of such nature incurred after completion of the project, is
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment Property

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Company measures investment property using cost based measurement and fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when
they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from
their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of derecognition, Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition/ disposal of the asset is included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Transfers to or from investment property is made when and only when there is a change in
use supported by evidence.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development

a) Expenditure on research is charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Expenditure on
development is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset.

b) Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Cost includes any directly attributable expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use. After initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

¢) Intangible assets under development represent expenditure incurred on intangible assets
which are in the development phase and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

d) Subsequent costs are recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

e) An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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5.0

6.0

7.0

Foreign Currency Transactions

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. At each reporting date, Monetary
items denominated in foreign currency are translated at the functional currency exchange
rates prevailing on that date.

Exchange differences relating to PPE/capital work-in-progress arising out of transaction
entered into prior to April 1, 2004 are adjusted to the carrying cost of respective
PPE/capital work-in-progress.

Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign currency borrowings entered into
prior to March 31, 2016 recoverable from or payable to beneficiaries in subsequent
periods as per CERC Tariff regulations are recognised as “Deferred Foreign Currency
Fluctuation Recoverable/ Payable Account” and adjusted from the year in which the same
is recovered/ paid.

Exchange differences arising from settlement/ translation of monetary items
denominated in foreign currency entered into on or after April 1, 2016 to the extent
recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff
Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory Deferral Account Balances’ during construction
period and adjusted from the year in which the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Where the Company
has paid or received advance consideration in a foreign currency, the date of transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is the date when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Where an item of expenditure incurred during the period of construction of a project is
recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss i.e., not allowed to be
capitalized as part of cost of relevant PPE in accordance with Ind AS, but is nevertheless
permitted by CERC to be recovered from the beneficiaries in future through tariff, the
right to recover the same is recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

Expense/ income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent recoverable
from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations
are recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Account balances.”

These Regulatory Deferral Account balances are adjusted from the year in which the same
become recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances are evaluated at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that the underlying activities meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with such balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are
not met, the Regulatory Deferral Account balances are derecognised.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances are tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet
date,

Fair value measurement

At initial recognition, transaction price is the best evidence of fair value. However, when the
Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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9.0

a)

b)

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or discloseq iy, the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. This categorisation is
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a Whg)e.

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognised at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any in the value of the investments. Where an indication of impairment
exists, considering entities with common line of activities as a single cash generating unit, the
carrying amounts of investments are assessed and written down to its recoverable amount at
the end of reporting period. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

A financial asset includes inter-alia any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity
or contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial asset or
financial liability under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Company. A
financial asset is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets of the Company comprise Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances,
Investments in equity shares of companies, Trade Receivables, Loan to employees, security
deposit, claims recoverable etc.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

. At amortised cost,

. At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
. At fair value through profit and loss

The classification depends on the following:

(@ The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or under Other Comprehensive Income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
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c)

acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fajy yajye
through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures trade receivables at their transaction price, if the trade recejyaples
do not contain a significant financing component.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditiong are
met:

" i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows, and

ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both the following criteria are met:

i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).

Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses,
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the EIR method.

Equity investinents:

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading, if any, are classified at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The Company classifies all other equity instruments at

FVTOCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

All fair value changes of an equity instrument classified at FVTOCI, are recognized in OCIL.
There is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Dividends from such investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as “other income” when the company’s right to receive payments is established.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables containing a significant financing component are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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d) Derecognition

e)

10.0

A financial asset is derecognised only when:
i) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

ii) Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assymes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not derecognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control
of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount and the amount of
consideration received / receivable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets:

i) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
ii) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

iii) Contract Assets and Trade Receivables under Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

iv) Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116- Leases.

The Company follows the ‘simplified approach’ permitted under Ind AS 109, “Financial
Instruments” for recognition of impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit
loss from initial recognition on contract assets, lease receivables and trade receivables
resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 and Ind AS 115.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. Any increase
or reversal of loss allowance computed using ECL model, is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories mainly comprise stores and spare parts to be used for maintenance of Property,
Plant and Equipment and are valued at cost or net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.
The cost is determined using weighted average cost formula and NRYV is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Carbon Credits / Certified Emission Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which write-down or loss occurs.
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11.0

12.0

13.0

Dividends

Final dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are recognigeqd
as change in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s Shal‘eholders
and the Board of Directors respectively.

Financial liabilities
The Company’s financial labilities include loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, A

financial liability is recognized when and only when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

a) Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the fair value at initial recognition is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion, over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

b) Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion, when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c¢) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments that are held by the Company to hedge the foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures and are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Government Grants

a) The benefits of a government loan at a below market rate of interest is treated as a
Government Grant. The loan is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
grant is measured as the difference between the initially recognized amount of the loan
and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial liabilities and the grant is recognized initially as deferred
income and subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.
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b) Monetary grants from the government for creation of assets are initially recognised as

c)

deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be receiveq anq
the company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The deferred
income so recognised is subsequently amortised in the Statement of Profit and Losg over
the useful life of the related assets.

Government grant related to income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Logg on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

14.0 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

15.0

a)

b)

c)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constryctive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Such provisions are determined
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision net of any
reimbursement is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss or in the carrying amount
of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of
judgment of management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Other Income

Company’s revenues arise from sale and trading of energy, project management /
construction contracts/ consultancy assignment services and other income. Revenue from
other income comprise of interest from banks, employees, contractors etc., dividend from
investments in joint ventures and subsidiary companies, dividend from investments in equity
in other bodies corporate, interest from investrment in bonds, surcharge received from
beneficiaries for delayed payments, sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, etc.

a) Revenue from sale of power

i)  Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revenue from contracts for sale of power over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company.
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iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

Revenue from sale of power (except minimum lease receipts in respect of power
stations considered as Finance Lease/Operating Lease) is accounted for as per tariff
notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the CgRrC
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations as modified by the orders of Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable. In the case of Power Stations where
provisional/ final tariff is yet to be notified or where incentives/disincentiveg are
chargeable/ payable as per CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations,
revenue is recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. Rebates given to
beneficiaries as early payments incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue,

Customers are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date,
revenue from sale of power includes an accrual for sales delivered to customers but
not yet billed (unbilled revenue).

Recovery/ refund towards foreign currency variation in respect of foreign currency
loans and recovery towards Income Tax are recognised on year to year basis based on
regulatory norms. Recovery towards deferred tax items recognized till March 31,
2009 are accounted for when the same materialises.

Adjustments arising out of finalisation of Regional Energy Account (REA), though
not material, are effected in the year of respective finalisation.

Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) considered as deferred income up to 3ist
March 2009 is included in sales on straight line basis over the balance useful life after
a period of 12 years from the date of commercial operation of the Power Station.

b) Revenue from Project Management / Construction Contracts/ Consultancy
assignments

i)

ii)

Revenue from Project Management / Construction Contracts/ Consultancy
assignments is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract
with a customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the services and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises
revenue on the basis of input method. Input method recognises revenue on the basis
of the costs incurred towards the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to
the total expected costs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings
on contracts. Contract assets are transferred to trade receivables revenue when there
is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance
consideration received from the customers.

iii) Contract modifications, if any, are accounted for when there is a change in the scope

or price (or both) of a contract that is approved by the parties to the contract and
when the parties to a contract approve a modification that either creates new or
changes existing enforceable rights and obligations of the parties to the contract.
Accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services
added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone
selling price. Contract modifications are recorded on standalone basis when the
scope of the contract increases because of the addition of promised goods or services
or the price of the contract increases by an amount of consideration that reflects the
Company’s standalone selling prices of the additional promised goods or services and
any appropriate adjustments to that price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a
cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for

. prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the
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standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of 5
new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

¢) Revenue from trading of power

i) Accounting for revenue from trading of power involves assessment of the contract
conditions to determine whether the Company is required to act in the capacity of a
principal or as an agent. The Company acts in the nature of a principal in case it
obtains control of the electricity before transferring it to the customer. Indicators of
control includes assessment of whether the company is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the electricity, it has the discretion to establish the
price or whether it bears the inventory risk. Where the Company does not obtain
control of the electricity before transferring it to the customer and its performance
obligation is to arrange for the supply of electricity by another party, it acts in the
nature of an agent.

ii) Where the Company acts as a principal in a contract for trading of power, the amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation that is satisfied is
recognised as revenue.

iii) Where the Company acts as an agent in a contract for trading of power, the net
consideration retained after paying the supplier for the electricity provided to the
customer is recognised as revenue from operations. Financial assets and liabilities
arising out of these transactions are not set off.

d) Other income
i) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.

ii) For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

iii) Interest/Surcharge recoverable from customers including those arising out of
contracts for trading of power and liquidated damages /interest on advances to
contractors is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of revenue recognised will not occur in the future.

e) Revenue from sale of carbon credits/ CERs/VERs

Revenue is recognized on transfer/ sale of Carbon Credits/ Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs)/ Verified Carbon Units (VCUs) to the extent it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognized will not occur in the
future.

16,0 Employee Benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed or included in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such
inclusion as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term performance
related cash bonus if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
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ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into separate trusts and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plang are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss or inclyded
in the carrying amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion ip the
periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributiong are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction from fyuture
payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are
discounted to their present value.

Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme (EDCSS) for providing pension
benefits and Social Security Scheme administered through separate trusts are accounted
for as defined contribution plans.

iii) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s Gratuity Scheme, Retired Employees Health Scheme
(REHS), Provident Fund Scheme, Allowance on Retirement/Death, Memento on
Superannuation to employees and Employees Family Economic Rehabilitation Scheme
are in the nature of defined benefit plans. All these plans, other than Allowance on
Retirement/Death, Memento on Superannuation to employees and Employees Family
Economic Rehabilitation Scheme are administered through separate trusts.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity and Retired
Employees Health Scheme is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

In respect of Provident Fund Scheme, a liability is recognised in the Balance Sheet where
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is
higher than the fair value of plan assets. Any surplus of fair value of plan assets over the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is not
recognised as an asset since the Company does not have any right to the benefits either
in the form of refunds from the Plan or by way of lower contribution to the Plan.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by the actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion.

Remeasurement gains (except in the case of Provident Fund Scheme) and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
directly in Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur and are
included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

iv) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitute other long term
employee benefits.
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17.0

18.0

The Company’s net obligation in respéct of long-term employee benefits is the am ount of
future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current ang
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fajr yyye
of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market
yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, Contributions to the scheme and actuarial gaing or
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss or included in the carrying
amount of an asset if another standard permits such inclusion in the period in which they
arise.

v) Termination benefits

The expenses incurred on terminal benefits in the form of ex-gratia payments and notice
pay on voluntary retirement schemes are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year of incurrence of such expenses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
as described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116— ‘Leases’ and(c) exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily
take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When the Company borrows funds
generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of
the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that
are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset are excluded from this calculation,
until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale
are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation and amortization

a) Depreciation on additions to /deductions from Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)
during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from / up to the date on which the asset is
available for use / disposal.

b) (i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of Operating Units of the Company
capitalized till five years before the end of the useful life of the Power Station is charged
to the Statement of Profit & Loss on straight-line method following the rates and
methodology notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 18.0(d).
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c)

d)

e)

g)

h)

i)

)

(ii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment capitalized during the last five years
of the useful life of a Power Station is charged on straight-line method for the period
of extended life as per CERC Tariff Regulations/Orders, from the date on which guch
asset becomes available for use.

(iii) Where the life and / or efficiency of a Power Station is increased due o ren ovation
and modernization, the expenditure thereon along with its unamortized depreciable
amount is charged prospectively on straight-line method over the revised / rermaining
useful life.

i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (except old and used) of other than
Operating Units of the Company is charged to the extent of g0% of the cost of the asset
following the rates notified by CERC for the fixation of tariff except for assets specified in
Policy No. 18.0(d).

ii) Depreciation on old and used items of PPE of other than Operating Units is charged
on straight-line method to the extent of 90% of the cost of the asset over estimated useful
life determined on the basis of technical assessment.

i) Depreciation in respect of following items of PPE is provided on straight line method
based on the useful life and residual value (5%) given in the Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013:

- Construction Plant and Machinery
- Computer and Peripherals

ii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Mobile Phones is provided on straight
line basis over a period of three years with residual value of Re 1.

iii) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on Roof Top Solar Power System /
Equipment is provided on straight line basis over a period of twenty five years with
residual value of 10%.

(iv) Based on technical assessment, depreciation on furniture & other equipment
provided at residential office of employees is charged on straight line basis over a period
of five years with residual value of 10%.

Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of acquisition
/capitalization by retaining Re. 1/- as WDV.

All assets valuing Rs. 5000/- or less but more than Rs. 750/~ are fully
depreciated/amortised during the year in which the asset becomes available for use with
WDV of Re. 1/- for tangible assets as-WB¥ and NIL for Intangible Assets.

Low value items, which are in the nature of assets (excluding immovable assets) and
valuing up to Rs. 750/- are not capitalized and charged off to expenditure in the year of
use.

Leasehold Land of operating units is amortized over the period of lease or over the life of
the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and 25 years in case of Solar & Wind
Projects) whichever is lower, following the rates and methodology notified vide CERC
tariff regulations.

Leasehold Land and buildings of units other than operating units, is amortized over the
period of lease or over the life of the Power Plant (40 years in case of Hydro Projects and
25 years in case of Solar & Wind Projects), whichever is lower.

PPE created on leasehold land are depreciated to the extent of 90% of original cost over
the balance available lease period of respective land from the date such asset is available
for use or at the applicable depreciation rates & methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations for such assets, whichever is higher.
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19.0

k)

Y

Land-Right of Use is amortized over a period of 30 years from the date of cormmercial
operation of the project in line with CERC tariff regulations notified for tariff fixation,

Cost of software recognized as ‘Intangible Assets’ is amortized on straight line method
over a period of legal right to use or three financial years, whichever is earlier, starting
from the year in which it is acquired. Other intangible assets are amortized on straight
line method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant, whichever is
less. The period and method of amortization of intangible assets with finite useful life is
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.

m) Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to

n)

o)

increase/decrease in long term liabilities on account of exchange fluctuation, price
adjustment, settlement of arbitration/court cases, change in duties or similar factors, the
unamortized balance of such assets is depreciated prospectively over the residual life of
such assets at the rate of depreciaion and methodology notified by CERC tariff
regulations.

Spare parts procured along with the Plant and Machinery or subsequently which are
capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the
residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the rates and methodology
notified by CERC.

Useful life, method of depreciation and residual value of assets where depreciation is
charged as per management assessment are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted prospectively over the balance useful life of the asset, wherever required.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets of the Company. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. The resulting impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies
or other available fair value indicators. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined only
in case carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds the value in
use.

In case of expenditure on survey & investigation of projects, if it is decided to abandon
such a project, expenditure incurred thereon is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which such decision is taken.

In case a project under survey and Investigation remains in abeyance by the order of
appropriate authority/ by injunction of court order, any expenditure incurred on such
projects from the date of order/ injunction of court is provided in the books from the date
of such order till the period project is kept in abeyance by such order/ injunction.
Provision so made is however reversed on the revocation of aforesaid order/ injunction.
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20.0

e)

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment Jlogg ig
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recavergple
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

a)

b)
i)

ii)

iii)

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year on the basis of
the tax laws applicable at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in
previous years. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years (temporary differences) and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible (permanent differences).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the Balance
Sheet method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction
that at the time of the transaction affects neither the taxable profit or loss nor the
accounting profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would flow in the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case it is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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21.0

22.0

23.0

vi) Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent the qeferred
tax for the current period forms part of current tax in the subsequent periods anq affects
the computation of return on equity (ROE), a component of tariff.

vii) When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses
whether a tax authority is likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. If it concludes that
the tax authority is unlikely to accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the
uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax losses and unused tax credits is
recognised. The effect of the uncertainty is recognised using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the
expected value. For each case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunction with another or several other
uncertain tax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of

uncertainty.
Compensation from third parties

Impairments or losses of items, related claims for payments of compensation from third
parties including insurance companies and any subsequent purchase or construction of
assets/inventory are separate economic events and are accounted for separately.

Compensation from third parties including from insurance companies for items of property,
plant and equipment or for other items that were impaired, lost or given up is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the compensation becomes receivable. Insurance claims
for loss of profit are accounted for based on certainty of realisation.

Segment Reporting

a) In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segment, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating
Decision Maker” or “CODM” within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

b) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company. Other operations
viz., Contracts, Project Management, Consultancy works and Trading of Power do not
form a reportable segment as per the Ind AS -108,

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, whether the Company has the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of lease and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. If
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. Where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company
has the right to direct the use of the asset if it has the right to operate the asset, or the
Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will
be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.
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i. Company as a lessee
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commen cement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial anyount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is locateq, less
any lease incentives received.

Land taken for use from State Government (without transfer of title) and expenses on relief
and rehabilitation as also on creation of alternate facilities for land evacuees or in lieu of
existing facilities coming under submergence and where construction of such alternate
facilities is a specific pre-condition for the acquisition of the land for the purpose of the
project, are accounted for as Right of Use Assets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
by the end of lease term or if the cost of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option
will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are depreciated/ amortized from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments;
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate. Future lease payments comprise of the fixed
payments, including in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise or
the penalty for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or when a lease contract is modified,
and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the face of the Balance Sheet.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in respect
of short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases where the
underlying asset is of low-value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
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ii. Company as a lessor

24.0

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it trangfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

Where the Company determines a long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be or to
contain a lease and where the off taker has the principal risk and rewards of ownership of the
power plant through its contractual arrangements with the Company, the arrangement is
considered a finance lease. For embedded leases in the nature of a Finance Lease, the
investment in the power station is recognised as a Lease Receivable. The minimum lease
receipts are identified by segregating the embedded lease receipts from the coniract amounts
(including Advance Against Depreciation (AAD) recognised in accordance with CERC Tariff
regulations 2004-09 up to 31st March 2009 and considered as deferred income). Each lease
receipt is allocated between the receivable and finance lease income (forming part of revenue
from operations) so as to achieve a constant rate of return on the Lease Receivable
outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated
unguaranteed residual value and applies the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109-
Financial Instruments for recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease
receivables.

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease
receivables, except for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated
with reference to their amortised cost (i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance).

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS
115- Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

In the case of Operating Leases or embedded operating leases, the lease income from the
operating lease is recognised in revenue over the lease term to reflect the pattern of use
benefit derived from the leased asset. The respective leased assets are included in the Balance
Sheet based on their nature and depreciated over its economic life.

Business combinations

(i) Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at
the date of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognized at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initdally
measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceed the consideration transferred, after reassessing the
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognized as capital
reserve. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

(ii) Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method wherein the assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts and no adjustments are made to
reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are
made are to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as
if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated
only from that date.
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The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the
transferee. The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become
the reserves of the transferee. The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded ag ghare
capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets gnd the
amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented
separately from other capital reserves.

25.0 Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the
comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

26.0 Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year.

b) Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

¢) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are also presented using the earnings
amounts excluding the movements in regulatory deferral account balances.

27,0 Statement of Cash Flows
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. However, for Balance Sheet presentation, Bank
overdrafts are shown within “Borrowings” under Current Liabilities.

b) Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Ind AS 77- ‘Statement of Cash Flows’,

28.0 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

a) An assetis current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

« Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
b) Aliability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
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« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Tt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

¢) Deferred tax assets /liabilities are classified as non-current assets / liabilities.

29.0 Non -Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. Indicators in this regard include whether
management is committed to the sale, whether such sale is expected to be completed within
one year from the date of classification as held for sale and whether the actions required to
complete the plan of sale indicates that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn. Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal
groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value. Cost of
disposal is deducted from the recognized value, if significant. Property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

30.0 Miscellaneous

a) Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements.
Items of a dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are
immaterial.

b) Liabilities for Goods in transit/Capital works executed but not certified are not provided
for, pending transfer of ownership, inspection and acceptance by the Company.

LA s 2 8
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Annexure to Note 2.1 & 2.5 as at

31.03.2024
1.1 Addition f Fixed asuats on sccount of Others {New Purchases & CWIP Capltalized)
S, Partlcular of assets Head of Gross block
No. account Adjustad (In Lakhs)
|__1| Mixer and Grinder 412022 0.04
24-PORT MANAGED NON-POE
GIGABIT SWITCH D-LINK DGS-
| _211520-28 411306 2.68
24-PORT MANAGED POE
GIGABIT SWITCH D-LINK DGS-
___3 1620-28MP 411808 1.77
50 INCH LED TV SAMSUNG,
4|MODEL- UAS0CU7700KLXL 412501 1.03
5| Alr Conditioner 442021 0,74
AIR CONDITIONER 2.0
TON,SPLIT TYPE, HOT & COOL
6{WITH CORDLESS REMOTE 412008 0.4¢
AIR FRYER 4.1 LTR PHILIPS,
7!MODEL- HD9200/80 412503 0.20,
_“illmmr 412021 0.07
AUTOMATIC WATER LEVEL
9/RECORDER AWLR 001 412503 3.97
AUTOMATIC WEATHER
STATION INCL. SENSORS,
ACCESSORIES AND
DATALOGGER LYNX & LM-14-
10|AWS-GPRS 412503 B.AT
11|Bed 411702 0.26
12|CEILING FAN 411710 017
CENTRE TABLE PLASTIC
13/(36"%23"X4 B‘XAVRO 411710 0.38
CENTRE TABLE WITH FLAT
GLASS TOP MAKE: NA,
MODEL:CENTRE TABLE WITH
GLASS TOP 8IZE
14[1219X711X610 MM 411710 0.26
15| Chair 411702 0.17
CUP TYPE CURRENT METER-
18{AT & 258 412802 4.50
Domestic Solar Thermal Water
17|Heater, Solar Cooker. 412021 028
18|Easy Chalr 411702 0.19
18] UST FAN 411770 0.08
20|Florence LED 412021 0.26
21|Fridge 412021 0.25)
Y AUTOMATIC, TOP
LOADING WASHING MACHINE
22(0.0 KG SAMSUNG 412503 0.01
23/HP 245 GBusiness Leotop 411011 0.53/
pJ LAPTOP15 FQb11 411811 0,50
25/HP Laplop15-ew0040TU 411811 0.60
HP Notebook Envy 16-
28| aw0043TUXIBO 411811 0.55
27|HP Pavilion 14-Dv2014TU-HP 411811 080
INDUCTION COOKTOP
28|HAVELLS, MODEL INSTA COOK 412801 0.07
IPAD AIR 10.9 WIF| + CELL
29|256GB S, G. (MM713HN/A) 411801 3.04
30|King Size Bad 411702 0.43
Laptop HP Envy 13-ay 1000x360
31|Sr No, CND2180RNR 411811 0.60,
32|LCD TV Unit 412021 0.16
33|LED 412021 0.31
LED TV 32 INCH SAMSUNG
34| MODEL- UA32T4360AKXXL 412501 0.65
LED UHD TV 43 INCH
SAMSUNG MODEL -
35| UA43AU7600KXO(L 412501 1.28
36|Lenovo Yoga7 82NCOOEWIN 411811 0.60
37|LG SMART LED 412021 0.21
LG TOP LOADING WASHING
38|MACHINE 412021 0.38
39|MATTRESS ECHO 78°60*06 411707 0.11
40| Microwave 412021 0.18
MICROWAVE 32 LTR
SAMSUNG, MODEL- CE117PC-
41(B3 412503 0.44
42|Microwave Oven 412021 0.18
MINI REFRIGERATOR 45 LTR
KALVINATOR, MODEL- KRC-
43|BOBOSGP 412013 0.08|
ONLINE UPS 3KVA MICROTEK,
44| MODEL- MAX+ 3KVA 411804 0.38|
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[~ [PLASTIC CUSHIONED GHAIR-
|_45|Refrigerator

|48 Samsung LED
49]Shoe Rack

Sy PuptogSysien
AND DRY VACCUM

MAKE-SUPREME, MODEL
45|ORNATE

411710

0.65

412021

0.12

47| Revolving Chair

411702

0.11

412021

0.41

411702

0.08)

£018Side Table

411712

0.04

SINGLE BED BOX TYPES SIZE-
51)exa

411707

235/

52[Sofa Set

411702

0.38

Sony 5.1 Ch Soundbar HT-
53| S40R(234636)

412021

0.23

54|Sony LED TV

412021

0.68

VOLTAGE STABLIZER FOR 2.0
TON AC, § KVA, VOLTAGE
RANGE-130V TO 300 V MAKE-
VOLTAS, MODEL -VA5130

411804

0.05

412021

0.48

55
58] Washing Machine
57{WaterPurifier

412021

0.13

WatesrPurifier, AirP urifier/Stesilizer/
Humidifier, UV Disinfectant,RO

412021

0.18

CLEANER MAKE- KENT,
58| MODEL- KSL-812

412503

0.18

2 DOOR STEEL WARDROBE
WITH 22 GAUGE SHEET, SIZE
34"X76" , FRONT MIRROR AND
60| LOCKER.-LOCAL MAKE 2 DOOR

411707

225

BACK UNIT ARISTO BCKUNIT
1800W 750H
(1800WX500DX750H)-MM,

61| GODRE.J INTERIO

411701

BAJAJ 650W SPLENDORA 3
JARS MIXER GRINDER BAJAJ,
82|SPLENDOR

412801

0.04

CEILING FAN 1200MM-
ANCHOR, MODEL : MODEL :
83]COOLKING STAR

411710

0.08

CENTRE TABLE PLASTIC
64 (36"™X23"X18"-AVRO.

419710

0.28

|OOFFEE TABLE-MAKE-GODREJ
66| MODEL-ARBOR

CHAIR MAKE-GODREJ, MODEL 4
66/BEAT MID BACK

411701

5.32

411707

0.11

COLOUR PHOTOCOPIER-
67| CANON (R-ADV DX C5840!

412003

3.68

CORNER TABLE-MAKE-
68| GODREJ MODEL-SKYLIGHT

411707

011

DINING CHAIR-MAKE- GODRE.
68/ MODEL-MUNA

411707

018

DINING TABLE SET (WITH SIX
70| CHAIRS)

411707

0.32

DOUBLE ROD HEAT PILLAR ,
71]1500 WATTMAKE: GOPI

412801

0.67

72| SQUADRQ PREMIUM

73|STEEL

DRESSING/DRESSER TABLE-
MAKE-GODREJ MODEL-

411707

028

ELECTRIC KETTLE STAINLESS

412801

0.03

ENTERPRISES -1500, SIZE-
1500MM X 750 MM X 728 MM,
74| WITH CPU HANGER - GODREJ

411701

3.23

EXHAUST FAN 300MM
HAVELLS-HAVELLS, MODEL :
75|D8P

411710

0.08

GEYSER 25 LITRE-MAKE- V-
76| GUARD MODEL-SIETA PLUS 25

412503

0.83

GODREJ FINESSE TABLE-5026
77|SIZE (1500X750X740)

411701

226

GODREJ HI-BACK REVOLVING
78| CHAIR MODEL 'VERSA NEQ'

411701

0.80

GODREJ PISA 2 SEATER SOFA
79|(BLACK LEATHERITE)

411701

0.77

GODREJ STOREWELL PLAIN 4
80|SHELVES

411701

4.30

81|GODREJ TABLE T9

411701

5.59

HIGH BACK CHAIR -MAKE :
GODREJ MODEL:MARVEL HIGH
82|BACK CHAIR

411701

0.48

KENT RO WATER PURIFIER
WITH B LTR STORAGE, MODEL-~
83|ELIGANT LITE

411707

4.76

KING SIZE BED-MAKE-
84| GODREJ MODEL-EDEN

411707

0.42

LED TV 32 INCH SAMSUNG

85|MODEL- UA32T4360AKXXL

412501

1.11
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LED TV 32 INCH-SAMSUNG
86| UA32T4310BKXXL

412501

0.32

MULTIMEDIA PROJECTOR,
STANDARD THROW WITH 1620
X 1200 (WUXGA) RESOLUTION
MAKE EPSON, MODEL EB-

87| 530U

412501

1.85

PABX SYSTEM-EPABX
COMPLETE, EXT16 ANA.TRUNK
FXQ8, MATRIX ETERNITY
GENX128AC MATRIX-
B|ETERNITY-GENX128A

411903

4.13

PLASTIC EXHAUST FAN WITH
FLAP SWEEP 250MM-MAKE-
HAVELLS MODEL-THRILL AIR-
88|DX

411710

0.5

Puchase of Leptop HP14-
80/dv2041TU serial No.5CD32288H6

411811

0.60

Puchase of Laplop HP14-
9v2041TU-Wndow11

411811

060

of Laplap Lenavo
B82RKO0ROIN-Wndow1 1

411841

0.80

Puchase of sofs Set from Unique

Fumniture

411702

1.08

Purchase of CCTV Camera al

411702

0.41

84|residence Balasore, Odisha
auipummn of Gayser_

413021

0.08

‘Purehm of LED-Light 4 nos
86| under Furiniture Scheme

412021

0.08

Purchase of Recliner-Brown 2nos
97 {under fumniture Sch

411702

0.40)

RECLINER 1 SEATER-MAKE-
88/ GODREJ MODEL-THAMES

411707

037

SHOE CABINET-MAKE-GODREJ
69| MODEL-MERAKI

411707

0.19

|~ [SIDE TABLE-MAKE-GODREJ

411707

0.07

100! MODEL-QUARTZ
SINGLE BED BOX TYPES SIZE-
101/8X8’

411707

1.71

STEAM IRON 1400 W-MAKE-
BAJAJ MODEL-BAJAJ MX 16
102/ (4408500}

412801

0.13

103[BTEAM [RON-BAJAJ MAISN

412801

0.0§

DLV NI S A T
TABLE-ARISTO TBL 1660 RH
104|RU 800

431701

1.80

THREE SEATER SOFA, MODEL
: CONFORTQ, MAKE : GODREJ
105/ {NTERIO MODEL : CONFORTO

411707

0,62

108 TWO SEATER SOFA, MODEL :
CONFORTO, MAKE : GODRE.

INTERIO MODEL : CONFORTO,
MAKE : GODREJ INTERIO

411707

0.85

707| VISITOR CHAIR -MAKE :
GODRE.) MODEL:MARVEL

411701

1.03

1081.0 YON SPLIT HOT AND COLD
INVERTER AC LLOYD
GLS12HIFWRHC MAKE LLOYD

412008

4.15

| __AND MODEL GLE12HIFWRHC
109|2.0 TON SPLIT HOT AND COLD

INVERTER AC LLOYD

GLS24H3FWRHC MAKE LLOYD

412008

3.83

|AND MODEL GLE2AHIFWRHG
20KVA 1- PH HARISON DURKATO

DG SET WITH AMF PANEL CHEM
EARTHING _ HADISONHAINKN/A

-
=y
o

411002

4.11

|

260KVA 3- PH DG SET WITH

-
ury
pry

SYS CABELS, CHEM EARTHING)
IMODFEL . HARISONHG

ACCESSORIES (ACDB, AMF PANEL,

411002

27.50

85 INCH LED TV BAMSUNG
UARECLIZTO0KL Xt

-y
jry
L)

412014

0.73

-
ry
£

B PORT GIGABIT POE ETHERNET

NETWORK SWITCH UNMANAGED

(120 WATTS) MAKE D-LINK MODEL
GS-F1010R-F

411903

0.10

4|8 PORT GIGABIT POE ETHERNET
NETWORK SWITCH UNMANAGED
{120 WATTS) MAKE D-LINK MODEL
NGS-F1010P-E

1

ry

411910

0.10

115|82.5 KVA 3 PH DG SET WITH
ACCESSORIES (AMF PANEL, CHEM

EARTHING, SYS CABELS) MODEL -
HARISONHGA? §

411002

770

R 1t 8 v e
116|Almirah/ Wardrobe(M-2023000227)

411702

0.27

117|ASUS X 1500EA LAPTOP(M-
2023000247)

411811

0,33

1

AUTOCAD-LT 2024 SINGLE USER 3
YEAR SURSCRIPTION

"

@

412201

2.60

145 |Batlery for AC 250Amp V Guard (M-
202300022 1)

412021

0.42

120(BED SIDE TABLE MAKE GODREJ
MODEL MORF BED SIDE TABLE

411707

0.18
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121|BHATTI GAS, MEDIUM §IZE 412801 0.03
122|Carrler WIN AC 1.6TR.5S ESTRELLA 411811
—__[DZ(M-2023000247) 0.38
123[Carrler WIN AC 1.5TR.5S ESTRELLA 412021
52} 0.38
124|CENTRE TABLE WITH GLASS TOP 411707
(2'X4") 0.66
125/COFFEE TABLE GLOW MODIFIED 411707 0.14
128|COLOUR PHOTOCOPIER-CANON 412003 o
IR-AL .
127|COOK TOP LPG GAS 4 BRASS 412007
BURNER (GAS STOVE) MAKE GLEN
F——MODEL 1041 0.06
128|DINING CHAIR 411707 0.85
125|DINING TABLE 411707 068
130|DOUBLE BED (6’ X 6.5') 411707 0.68
131/DOUBLE BED MAKE GODREJ 411707
L ___IMODEL ASTRA KING S|ZE 1.29
132|DRESSING TABLE WOODEN. 411707 0.27
133{DRESSING/ORESSER TABLE-MAKES 411707
GODRB MODEL- SQUADRO N
134 ELECTRIC KETTLE STAINLESS 412801 04
411710 0.1¢
412201
2.47
B3 MM ('H) 412503
0.08
130 GAS HEATER (TWO IN ONE)-MAKE 412503 0.1
ALV & .
138 GEYBER CAP 26LTR, MAKE AO 412007
BMITH MAKE AD SMOTH MODEL 0:5i
72| itach! 15 TR A Condliorer(- 412021
023000; 134) 0.39
141|HP Laplop 155-EQ2084AU(M- 411811
023000251} 111
142|HP Smaritank Printer Wirelass(M- 412021
0230007234 024
Gaming Laplop (M- 411011
61} G 0.60
144|IPhone 15 Piys 128GB Blue- 411911
MUMAIHN/AIML 202300004 T) 0.5
146 | Juicer/ Grinder-Presitge(M- 412021
0230002734 0.07
145 KENT RO GWD PLUS 412007 0.32
147|KITCHEN CHIMNEY MAKE GLEN 413007 o1
WOEL 608 .
LW'MOONI'HMOM(M- 411011 ok
148 Llplnp-Appl. M1/RAM & GB/SSD 1811
SROAMA.2MAONNIE1Y 0.50]
160{Laptop-Apple Mlabook Alr M1(M- 411311
20NNN9IRY 0.60
151| Laplog-ABUS ZENBQOK 41811
14X/LIMAD1 D AIM-202000228) 0.60|
152| Laplop-HP PAVILION AERO(2023)(M- 411811
HPANNVIZRY 0.60,
153{Laptop-Hp Pavition Intel Core I5{(M- 411311
207000224} 0.50|
154 |Laplop-HP 14-dv2041TU(M- 411811
2023000328) 1.20
| —— o nhE S e
156/ Laptop-LENOVO RS 82XX0070IN(M- 411811
2N200N22A8Y 0.80
1 LED TV 43 INGH MAKE SONY 412501
MODEL KD-43X70L MAKE S8ONY
IMQDE) ¥n-43x70; 2.38
157|LLOYD 1.5 TON 5 STAR HOT & 412008
COLD INVERTER SPLIT AC MODEL
G S4AHEFWRHC 21.00
158 |LOGITECH- GROUP CONFERENCE 411804
SYSTEM (CAMERA +
SPEAKERPHONE + REMOTE
CONTROL+HUB }-LOGITECH
RROUR 1.46
158|LPG GAS GEYSER 8 LTR KENSTAR 412503
KOMFORT-MAKE KENSTAR MODEL
KOMFQRT 0.20
160|LPG Gas Slove(M-2023000234) 412022 0.03
161|MIXER GRINDER MAKE-CELLO, 412801
MODEL. LEVANTE PRO 0.04
162 |MIXER GRINDER SUJATA 900W 412007
POWERMATIC PLUS MAKE SUJATA
MODEL POWERMATIC PLUS 800W 0.0
163|QLED 412021 1.77
164|Phillps Air Fryer(M-2023000234) 412021 0.11
165|PRESSURE BOOSTER PUMP 0.5 412503
HP - CROMPTON MINIFORCE-II 0.21
166|Samsung M34 5G 8 +128GB 411911
Aohila({M-2023000247) 0.18
16?|SIDE TABLE 411707 041
168|SINGLE BED WITH 8°X3' 411707 0.36)
169|SCFA TWO SEATER 411707 0.35
170|SOFA TWO SEATER MAKE 411707
GODREJ MODEL REJOICE 2
|SAETER SOFE 0.88
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171|STABILIZER 4 KVA MAKE 412503
SERVOKON MODEL SKSGA80C
M.AKE BERVDKQN AND MODEL 2.5l
172 muuy 'mh (M-2023000227) 411702 0.06
173{USHA NUTRIPRESS CPJ 382F 412021
r{M-2022000734 0.10
174|VIP BRIEFCASE-KNIGHT 8W EXP. 412001
5TR {H} 85 aw:r: nw:e o.04
175 VOLTM;E sna:uzen 3 u KVA £12007. 024
178 VOLTAS AC HOT & COLD 1.5 TON 412021 !
) 5
177 v::msm HOT & COLD 2.0 TON 12021 o
221) :
411707
GOI:IREJ MODEL ASTRA 3 DOOR !
411707
auane.n MODEL KALISTA 3 DOOR e
mwu-wmw SIR 0.47
189 \ma&mm BOWT TP LINK | 4118l ou
182 Woodm Dining Sel (M-2023000327) aym 0.5
163 XR-E6X0L. LED TV(MJ023000247) |  e12021 Lol

|Total
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Particuler of assots Gross block Net Block Addition
No, account (Lakhs) {Lakhs) Accumulated |Grosa g 0,
Name of Subsidiary Depreclation |Additic, o
c Advice b till 31.03.2015|Decrmiay Cost
Total 0
————
13 _Addition on acoount of Inter unit transfors
S, Particular of assets Head of Gross block Detail of the Unit/ Company from where Advice number
No, aceount of Assets (Lakhs) Assets Racelved (Transferred in)
Accumulated| Grossg glock
Nama of Unit/ Code of Unit/ Depreclation | Addition at
Company Company 41l 34.03.2018| Doemed cont. |
.0 100 . 101
Total [
2.1 Deductions on sogount
8. Particular of sssels Head of Gross block
Accumulated Gross Black
No, account Additlon {Lakhs) Deprsclation till o lon at
31.03.2016 |Desmed Cost.
1 |BLANKETS-DOUBLE BED- 412801
___|BLEEOWEI [ -0.61 0 0.81
2 [CONTAINER 8B 20LTR 412801 0.0 o 2.03
3_|GAS BHATTI 412801 -0.02 0| .02
4_|LPG Stove 412001 0.02 v .02
§_|MATTRESS ECHO T4°80°08 a1irar 489 0 BET]
6 |Monte Carlo Blanket sigle Bed 1.6 412801
.. Om el -0.25 ) 0.25
7 [NINDIYA APGARA MATRESS 412801
4ING RED JFTXE -0.68 0 -0.69
8 |NINDIYA QUILT DOUBLE BED 412801
: 0.23 0 0.23
9 |PRE-SEDIMENT FILTER 411707 0.02 0 £0.02
10 [PRESSURE COOKER HAWKINS 413801
5 p -0.02 ] -0.02
11 [PRESBURE COOKER HA! 412801
st WIKINS 002 [} -0.02
12 |PREABURE COOKER HAWKING 412801
s 0,03 0 0.03
13 |QUILT-DOUBLE BED-!_{__.EEFWELL 412801 0.56 0 0.58
14 FETY SHOES LIBERTY 412801 0.6 Q £0.98
15 |YOOA'NMAT 412801 016 [ 0.1
1i |IRAD Z 411801
e 082 [ £0.82
17 |IPAD AR FCELL 254 411801
ROREY RRNOOMPGIOLIMG185 -0.82 Q -0.82
13 |IPAD AIR WIFI+CELL 288GB- 411801
BOREY SEHNO QGTGFIXPO14S ‘082 o .O.EZ
19 [{PAD AIR WIF+CELL 26608
IARFY SR NO GATAFNVEN1aA 411801 -0.82 0 -0.82
20 | PORT GIGABIT POE ERNET
NETWORK SWITCH UNMANAGED
W, ) E D
“l?. E.A.IT...)L‘AK iKMo .EL 411903 -0.05 0.05
21 |8 PORT GIGABIT PQE ETHERNET
NETWORK BWITCH UNMANAGED
0 TT8 E
B g EDLINKMODEL| 414905 005 0,05
22 |Carrier WIN AC 1.6TR.58
EQTAEL| A NZ(L_2051001247) 411811 -0.38 -0.38
23 |LAPTOP Dell 14 Insp 5420 12GI5
|1aGAN 411811 -0.60 -0.60
24 |Sound System with Speaker,JBL
z ,pT“ ' 412021 0,23 .23
25 |Moblie Phone 412024 -0.18 -0.18
26 |LG TV make 43UQE0S0 412021 -0.34 -0.34
27 [Geysser, Room Haatar, Ol filter
lnr(i:h"l Room Haster! Rinwar 412021 -0.11 -0.11
28 |WaterPuriflsr,AlrPurifieriStsriiizeriH
\ditier,UV Disinfectant,
uT.ma...’n......." nt,RO Water 412021 019 049
Total -10.72 0 -10.72
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2.2 Deduction on account of others (Tranefor out to Subsidiary companles)
LR Particular of assets Head of Gross block Net Block Dedustion Accumulated |Gros
| = Block
No. kh Lakhs
o account (Lakhs) ( ) Name of Subsidlary Dopreciation |Deducygy, at
Comp Advice b tif 34.03.2018 | ooy gy Cost,
Total 0 —_— |
2.5 Deductions on account of Inter-unit Transfer
ETH Particular of assats Head of Gross block Datall of the Linit | Company to which Advice number | Accumulated| Gromg Block
No. D ion (Lakhs) Asnsets Bant (T i Out) Depreciation | Deduction at
Name of Unit/ Cods of Unit/ till 31.03.2016| Deemed Cost.
ol [
Yolai g
3. Addition / Dedustion of Fxad sseets on secount of Adjustments
(FERV, Raclagsifisation, Ca Lzation , © In Head of A )
8l Partlculsr of aseets Head of Groes block Accumulated Gross Block Nature
Arlhusad (1 lation il Adjusted at
(v} or Aasrum. | 31.03.2018 Deemed Cost,
{ - ) for Daduction)
Tatal v
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Note NO. 22 capital Work In Progress

~—{Amountin ¥ Lakns)

Particulars = .gl at| Addition A t Gag d at 31gt March, 2024
-
i 0ads and Bridges 6885.07 786.26
- 7831.34
i Bliidings 168815 4800.74 860680
iii)y___{Huilding-Under Leass - v
[ [Rallvay sidings - —
V) Hydraulic Works(Dams, Water Cenductor systam, 6814.00 o =
SR nij ta X i 27410.
vi) 8naraling Plant and Machinery - E
vii Plant ard Machingry - SUB statlon - B
vill Plantand Machinery - Trar ion lines - e
ix) Plani and inery - Cthers 5 Y
) Congtrystion Equipmant . 2
) Walsr SUpply SystemiDralnage and Seweraga - R
i) cnl'nEEgn - 5
xily Communication Equipment - g
xiv flice Equipments: = =
%xv) Assots awalting Installation . =t
xvl CWIP - Assats Under 5 KM Scheme Of the GOI - -
Vi) Survay, Investigation, consultancy and supervision charges 875.82 1475.84 2451.46
wviii) _{Expenditure on compensatory Afiarestation - 3
iX E%’m atirlbutabla to construction (Refer Note-32) 4274.73 2786.48 706118
Less: Capital Work in Progress Provided (Refer Note 2.2.4) % -
Sub II018.8T 1 - 5 51441.77
Construction Stores 1 . - .
T conalruction stores = i . - =
Sub totai (b ol - - 2 []
AL | 301687 .10 - 3 51441.77
Prisvious yaar 1 12350.00 1085867 2301567
221 (8) CW aging schedule 8 on 3168 March 3034 —
Amount in fora Mod of
— Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ?:::: otal
|Etwiscts in Progress 28,426.10 1085867 | 12.368.00 §1,441.77
Ta 28 426.10 10,658.67 12,350 00 - 51 ,441i77
(i) WP Schudule 23 on 29st March 2624 for
To be Completad in | Total
il Lass than 1 Year, 12 Years 23 Years Hors '3'" 3|
ot . = = ; s
222 (8) CWIP aging schaduls as on $1st March 2023
it in CWIP for a pariod of ]
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo 'c‘" 3 Tl
Erojects in Progress 208,89 10898 ! 2301567
| Prolocts wmporgrly Suspandsd .
Yousl 22.508.68 108,88 - | 23.015 67
[b) CWAP Complenl a8 on 31et March 2033 fer
Yo B Conpreied 1 _
CYar Less than 1 Year 1-2 Yours 2-3 Years Nore thap L
Tom = = :

2.2.3 Expandiure atibiiatis o Consirucian (EAC) Includes © Ra.112.70 Wkdvs (Pravious year Fe. 105,00 180 |

{Also Refer Note-32)

T n ing cost

v ¥

d during the year. - Gy for construction peojects.

1.2.4 Underground Works umountiing to ¥ 26,161.80 lakhs (Previous year € 8,113.82 lakhs) created on "Land -Right to Use" classifisd under Right of Use Assets, are inciuded under respactive heads

of Capltal Work in Progress (CWIP).

1.2.8 Refer Note no. 34(6) of Financial Statements for information of non-current assets pledged with banks as security for related borrowings

2.2.6 Refer Note no. 34(17) of Financlal Statements for Information regarding impalment of Assets.
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CUMMULATIVE EDC

Annexure to Note 2.2
{Amount in Rupees

Particulars Linkag 31032024 | 31033033
S ———
A. EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSES
437501 & 437589
& 437505 &
Salaries, wages, allowances 437500 3177.76 1675.20
Gratuity and contrlbution to provident fund (including administration 437502
fees) 409.22 200.78
Staff welfare expenses 437503 243.38 118.90
Leave Salary & Penslon Contributlon 437504 0.00 0.00
Sub-total(a} 3830.36 1994.88
Liss: Capitalized During the year/Period 438103 0.00 0.00
Sub-total{A) 3830.36 1994.88
B. GENERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
EAC-WATER USAGE CHARGES AT PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 437506 0.00 0.00
CONSUMPTION OF STORES AND SPARES AT PROJECTS GENERATING 437507
INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE- DAM/WATER REGULATING SYSEM AT 437508
PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE- GPM/ OTHER POWER PLANT SYSTEM AT 437509
PROJECTS GENERATING INFIRM POWER 0.00 0.00
Repalrs-Building 437510 34.74 27.25
Repalrs-Machinery 437511 0.00 0.00
Repairs-Others 437512 56,30 38.69
Rent 437514 & 437588 1.85 1,20
Rates and taxes 437515 83.87 44.16
Insurance 437516 0.94 0.15
Security expenses 437517 260.46 134.34
Electricity Charges 437518 17.64 8.49
Travelling and Conveyance 437519 92.90 57.59
Expenses on vehicles 437520 9.04 2.59
Telephone, telex and Postage 437521 34.94 9.78
Advertisement and publiclty 437522 0.00 0,00
Entertainment and hospitality expenses 437523 0.00 0.00
Printing and stationery 437524 13.75 9.84
Remunaration to Auditors 437552 2,05 1.22
Design and Consuttancy charges: 0.00
- Indigenous 437526 169.71 167.32
- Foreign 437527 0.00 0.00
Expenses on compensatory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/ 437531
environmental expenses/development expenses 0.00 0.00
Expenditure on land not belonging to corporation 437532 0.00 0.co
Land acquisition and rehabilitation 437533 0.00 0.00
EXPENDITUR ON WORK OF DOWNSTREAM PROTECTION WORKS 437536 0.00 0.00
EAC - LEASE RENT 437534 279.02 136.92
Loss on assets/ materlals written off 437528 1.18 0.00
Losses on sale of assets 437530 0.00 0.00
Other general expenses 437525 & 437535 1464.07 1278.59
Sub-tatal (b) 2562.45 1918.13
Less: Capltalized During the year/Period 438102 0.00 0.00
Sub-total(B) 2562.45 1918.13
C. FINANCE COST
i) Intereston :
a) Government of India loan 437540 0.00 0.00
b) Bonds 437541 0.00 0.00
¢) Foreign loan 437542 0.00 0.00
d) Term loan 437543 and 44 0.00 0.00
e) Cash credit facilities /WCDL 437545 . 0.00 0.00
g) Exchange differences regarded as adjustment to interest cost 437554 0.00 0.00
Loss on Hedging Transactions 437555 0.00 0.00
i) Bond issue/ service expenses 437546 0.00 0.00
iil) Commitment fee 437547 0.00 0.00
iv) Guarantee fee on loan 437548 0.00 0.00
v) Other finance charges 437549 0.00 0.00
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vi) EAC- INTEREST ON LOANS FROM CENTRAL GOVERNMENT-
ADJUSTMENT ON ACCOUNT OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST

vii} EAC- INTEREST ON SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY-
ADJUSTMENT ON ACCOUNT OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST

viii} EAC- COMMITTED CAPITAL EXPENSES- ADJUSTMENT FOR TIME
VALUE

Ix) EAC- INTEREST ON FC LOANS - EFFECTIVE INTEREST ADJUSTMENT
x) EAC- INTEREST EXPENSES - UNDER LEASE (IND AS)
Sub-total (c)
Less: Capitolized During the year/Period
Sub-total (C}

D. EXCHANGE RATE VARIATION (NET)
1) ERV (Debit balance}
Less: i) ERV (Credit balance)
Sub-total (d)
Less: Copltalized During the year/Period
Sub-total(D)

E. PROVISIONS
Sub-totalfe)
Less: Copltalized During the year/Period
Sub-total(E)

F. DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

Sub-total (f}
Less: Capitailzed During the year/Period
Sub-total(F}

G. PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSES [NET)
Prior period expenses
Less Prior period income
Sub-total (g)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total (G)

H. LESS : RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
i) income from generation of electricity ~
precommissioning

ii} Interest on loans and advances

iil} Miscellaneous receipts

iv) Profit on sale of assets

v) Provision not required written back

vi) Hire charges/ outturn on plant and machinery
vll) EAC-FAIR VALUE GAIN - SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY
viit) EAC-MTM Galn on derlvatives
Ix) EAC- FAIR VALUE GAIN ON PROVISIONS FOR COMMITTED CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE

Sub-total (h)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
Sub-total (H)

1. C.0./Regional Office Expenses (i)
Less: Capltallzed During the year/Perlod
Sub-total(l)

GRAND TOTAL ( atb+c+d+e+f+g-h+i)
Less: Capitalized During the year/Period
GRAND TOTAL { A+B+C+D+E+F+G-H+1)

437581

437583

437585

437590
437587

438105

437550
437551

438108

437561

438106

437560
437586

438104

437565
437579

438107

437570

437571
437572
437573
437574
437575
437582
437580
437584

438101

437599
438109

0.00 0.00
0.11 0.05
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
247.78 135.08
247.89 135.13
0.00 0.00
247.89 135.13
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
279.80 229.26
154.37 0.31
434.17 229,57
0.00 0.00
434.17 229.57
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
771 2.91
0.00 0.00
0.07 0.07
5.89 0.00
0.00 0.co
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
13.68 2.98
0.00 0.00
13.68 2,98
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
7061,19 4274.73
0.00 0.00
7061.19 4274.73
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Annexure to Note 2.3 as at

31.03.2024
1.1 Addition of ROU on aceount of Others (Now Purchases & CWIP Capitalized)
al. Particular of assets Headof |  Grose block
No account Adjusted {Lakhs)
LAND LEASED FROM JKSPDC
|_1/TO RHPCL 410121 1452.74
Long Term Lease building -
|__|Transit camp Jammu 413402 2215
Total T474.50
12 on on nl i 1 In Bubsldla
s Particular of asests Head of Gross block Net Blook Addition
No agoount ({Lakhs) {Lakhs) Accumulated |Gross Block
. Name of Subsidiary | Depracistion |Addiion at
[ Advice b il 31.03.2018 | Dssmed Cost.
Total 0
';IA‘ Addition on gczount of inter unit transfers
Bl Purticular of ussets Head of Gross block Detail of the Unit / Company from where Advics number
Ne account {Lakhs) Assets Racsived (Transferred In)
% Accumulated | Gross Block
Nama of Unit / GCode of Unit/ Depreciation | Adcdition at
Company Company til 31.03.2018 | Dsemad Cost.
|e.g 100, 101
Total [
Accumulated Gross Block
No. socount Addition {Lakhs) D {ation il Deduction at
i 31.03.2018 Desmed Coat.
otal [
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lli Deduction on account of others {Transfer out to Subsidiary companies)
::; Partioular of assets Head of Graes block Net Block Deduction Accumulated Gr;:‘;[;
account {Lakhs) (Lakhs) \ati Ded
h Name of Subsidlary Depreclation UCStion at
Company Advice number il 31,03.2016 | Deemag g Cost,
- ——r
—— = |
- ———— |
e ————
Total 0
——
2.3 Dsductions on sceount of Inter-unit Transfer
8l Pariicular of assets Head of Gross block Detall of the Unit / Company to which Advice number | Accumulated | Grosa Bjock
No account | Deductlon (Lakhs) Assets Sent [Transferred Out) Depreclation | Deduction at
. Name of Unit/ Coda of Unit/ till 31.03.2016| Deemeg Cost,
(o] Comoany
|__[Towl ¢
3. Addltlon / Deduction of Fixed ssseta on agcount of Adjustments
FERV, Reclassification, Capiwlization wiments, Chunge in Hoad nh\m#j_
[ Particular of assets Houd of Grose block Accumulated Gross Block Nature
L i) Il Depreciation till Adjusted at
Rl 31.03.2016 Dasmed Cost.
{ - for Deduotion)
Total [1]
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NOTE NO. 3.1 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASBETS - INVESTMENTS

(Amount In T Lakha)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
e |
Total —

NOTENO. 3.2 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amount In T Lakhs)y

PARTICULARS

As st d1at March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Trada Recelvables - Considersd Good- U d

Total

=
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Annexure-| to Note No-3.2

As at 31st March 2024
Trade Receivable due and outstanding for following perlod
Particulars from due date of payment
Less than 8 6 months-1 More than
Unbilled  NotDue e year 1-2years  2-3years 3 Years Total
{!) Undisputed Trade recelvables-Considered Good -
(i) Undisputed Trade recelvables-which have
significant increass In credit risk -
(iil) Undisputed Trade receivables-Credit Impalred -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables-Considered Good -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which have significant
Increase In credit risk L
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables-Credit Impaired -
Total - - - - - 2 < =
As at 31st March 2023
Trade Receivable due and outstanding for following period
from due date of payment
Pariculars Unbilled  Not Due Less then 6 6 months-1 More than
g months year 1-2 years 2-3years 3Years Total

{1y Undisputed Trade receivables-Considered Good =
(if) Undisputed Trade receivables-which have

significant mcrease in credit risk B
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables-Credit Impalred 5
(iv) Disputed Trade recelvables-Considered Good =
(v) Disputed Trade receivables-which have significant

increase n credit risk -
(vi) Disputed Trade racelvables-Credit Impaired -

Total - = & a = - = -
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NOTE NO. 3.3 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amouint In 2 Lakhsy

PARTICULARS

As at 3ist March, 2024

As at 313t March, 2023

At Amortised Cost
A Loan to Related Party - Credit Impaired- Unsecured

Lens: Loss Allowancas for doubtful loan to Related Party {Refer Note 3.3.4)

Sub-totsl

B Loans to Employ (including accrued | ) (Refer Note 3.3.2 and
33,3)
- Cansldered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowancas for doubtful Employees loans {Refer Note 3.3.5)

Sub-total

TOTAL

3,3.2|Loans and advances n the nature of loan that are rapayabls on demand.

Loans and advances in the nature of loan that are without specifying any

tarma or padad of repaymant

3.3.3 Dua fram direciors or other officers of the company. (Refer Noln 34(8) of
Financial Statements).

Balance

3.3.4 doubitiul losn to ld P
|Opaning Balance

the yuar

Aciifion dudog s yeat
Used duting the year

[Roversed durng the year
Closing balsnce

3.3.5 Loss All for doubtful Employses toans
Addition during the yeer

Closing

3.3.6 Loss for tful ad to Contractor/ Supplier
Additlon during the year

Liosing balance

3.3.7 Loss Allowances for doubtful Loan to State Governmaent
Addition during the year

Ciosing bal

3.2.8 Leans sre non-durivaiive financial assets which ganeraie a fixed or variable Interest incoma for the company. The Carrying value may

be affected by the changes in tha credit risk of the counterparties.
3.3.9 Advanos due by firms or private companies in which any Director of the
Company |s a Diractor or member .

3.3.10 Particulars of Loans as required in terms of Seclion 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosad under Note 3.3 above

3.3.11 Refer Nots 34(11) of the Financlal Statements with regard ta confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 3.4 NON-CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

T
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | As st 31st March, 2023
A Seourity Depasits N
- Consldered good- Ur d 0 o
- Credlt Impalred- Unsecured - =
Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 3.4.1) - = ]
Sub-total '] 0 |
B Bank Deposits with more than 12 Months Maturity (Refer Note 3.4.2) 426.00 425.00
c Lease Rent recelvable - -
o Amount Recoverable on account of Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of ; .
Indla
E Interest recelvable on leuse S "
F Interest accryed on:
- Bank Daposits with more than 12 Months Maturity - -
G Derivative Mark to Market Asset - 5
H Receivable an of Late pay & pe - o
] Amount Recoverable - =
J Share Application Money Pending Aliotment . <
- Subsidiary Noint Venture
Loew:-Lovs sliowanioss for Shere appiication money pending aliotment = -
TOTAL [T 42418 |
3.4.1 Loss Aliowances for Doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance =
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Hevarsed during ihe year
Cloging balsnce B iy
3.4.2 Bank Depasiis of mare than 12 menths maturity includes FOR of Ra. Rs.425 lakha which has been taken to provide 100% margin
money for Bank Guarantes issued by the Company for obtaining electricity connection.
3.4.3 Refer Nots 34(11) of the Financial Statements with regand to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 4 NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

(Amount in ¥ Lakhg)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Advance Income Tax including Tax Deducted at Source
Less: Provision for Current Tax
Non Current Tax (Refer Note No-23)

1.70

0.12

Total

1.70

0.12

NOTENO. § OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 313t March, 2023

A. CAPITAL ADVANCES
- Considered good- Secured
- Consldered good- Unsecured

— Against bank guaraniee 3,227.88 -
— Others 532.80 27.70
Less : Expenditure booked pending utilisation ceriificate = =
- Considered doubtful ~ Unsecured - =
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 5.1) = -
Sub-total 3.780.48 21.70
B, ADVANCES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ADVANCES
i) DEPOBITS
- C( good- U d 011
Less : Expenditure booked against demand ralsed by Government _ R
Depariments.
- Considered doubtful - Unsecured = -
Less : Al for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Nots 8.2) - =
Sub-total - OL_‘
c Intsrest accrued
Others
- Comidered Good - -
D. Others
3 Advance agsinst arbitration awards towards ocapital works {Unsecured)
Released to Contractors - Against Bank Guarantee - E
Reloased to Contractors - Others - -
Deposlted with Court - -
Sub-total - =
) Prepald Expenditure - -
1il) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets/ Expenditure
Defarred Forelgn Cumency Fluctuation Assets -
Detferred Expendlture on Forelgn Currency Fluctuation = -
Sub-total = -
iv) [ d Cost on Empk Adh -
TOTAL 3,760.48 27.81

§.1 Allowances for doubtful Advancss
Opaening Balance
Addltion during the year
Used duning the year

Revursnd uring ho vour .

Closng balunce

8.2 Allowsnces for doubtful Deposits
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the vear

i

Closing balance

5.3 Advances due from Direclors or other officers.

5.4 Advances due by Firms or Private Companles in which any director of the
C y I8 a di or b

p

5.5 Refer Note 34(11) of the Financlal Statements with regard to confirnation of balances
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NOTE NO. 6 INVENTORIES (Amount in T Lakhs)
===

PARTICULARS As at 31et March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023

(Valued at lower of Cost or Net Reallsable Valus}

Stores and spares -
Stores and spares-Stores in transit/ pending Inspection - -
Loose tools - -
Material at site = 5
Material Issued to contractors/ fabricators = -
Carbon Cradits / Certifled Emission Reductions (CERs) / Varified Carbon
Unlts (VCUs)

Less: Allawances for Ob 1ce and Diminution in Value (Refer Note
6.1)

TOTAL : = b

6.1 All for Ob and Diml in Value
Opening Balance -
Addition during the year {Refer Note 6.1.1)
Used during the vear
Reversed during the year {Refer Note 6.1.2)

Closing balance - =

6.1.1 During the year, Inventories writtan down to net realisable vaiue (NRV) and

ised as an axp In the State of Profit and Loss. - -

8.1.2 Allowances for Obsolence and Diminution In value of Inventory booked In
sarfler years snd reversad during the year.

NOTE NO. 7.1 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ABSETS - INVESTMENTS (Amaunt in T Lakha)
PARTICULARS As at 31t March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023

TOTAL . -
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NOTE NQ. 7.2 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Amount In T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

- Trade Recselvables- Considered Good-
7.2.2,7,2.3,7.2.4 and 7.2.7)

- Trade Recelvables-Unbillad- Consld
7.2.4 and 7.2.6)

- Trada Recelvables- Credit iImpaired {Refer Note 7.2.2,7.2,3 and 7.2.4)
Less: Loss allowances for Trade Receivables (Refer Note 7.2.1)

Unsecured (Refor Note

d Good- Unsecured {Refer Nate

TOTAL

S —

7.21 Loas all

Opening Balance
Additlon during the year
Used during the year

Reversed during the year

for Trade Recelvabl

Closing balance

7.2.2 Dabt dus by directors or athar officers of the company or any of them either
severally or jointly with any other person or debts dus by firms or private
companies respectively in which any director of the Company Is a partner or
a director or a member,

7.2.3 Debt-due by subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures and athers related parties of the
company.
7.2.4 Refer Annaxure-| to Note No-7.2 for Ageing schedules of Trade Reowivables.

7.2.§ Repi ivable on of :
Groasing up of Retum on Equity
Water cess
Unbilled sale for the month of March
Annual Fixed Charges pending revislor approval -Parbat-lll Powar Station

Annual Flxed Charges pending revision/ app Ch Il Power Statlon

Ravision in NAPAF for 2000-14-Sewa-li Power Station

Annusl Fixed Charges pending revision/ spproval-TLDP-IV Power Station
Saving due to refinancing & Bond lssue

Tax adjustment Inciuding Deferred Tax Materialized

Energy Shortfall

Additional impact of Gooda and Servioss Tax

O tion and A oe E - Bairssiul
Foreign Exchange Rate Varlation

O & M and 8acurity Expenses-incresae as per new Tariff Regulution 2019-24

Deprecistion on account of change In project lifa
Wage Revision

Unbilled Debtor- Power Trading Business
Revision Of Annusl Fbxaed Charges -Sewa-li, Uri-ll, Chamere-iil and TLOP-Il| |
Power Station |
Impact of Truing up 2014-19 and Petition fled for 2019-24.
Rate Revision -TLDP-1I! Power Bletion

Others

Tokal

7.2.6 Dus 1o the short-srm nature of the current recsivables, thelr canrying amount is sssumed to be the same as their fair valus

7.2.7 Refer Note 34(11) of the Financial Gtatsments with regard 1o confimation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 8 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount In T leh.)

PARTICULARS

As at 315t March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

A Balancaes with banks
With scheduled banks
) - InCurrent Account
i) - Indeposits account
(Deposits with original maturity of less than three months)
I} - In Cument Account -Other Earmarked Balances with Banks

With other banks
- In current account
Bank of Bhutan
e Chegques, drafts on hand
[o4 Cash on hand (Refer Note 8.1}

404.73

7.076.00

273.14

TOTAL

7,540.73

273.11

8.1 Includes stamps on hand

NOTE 9: CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - BANK BALANGES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS An ot 31ot March, 303¢ | As 8¢ Otut Maveh, 2023
A Bark Dapoults fer original maturity more then 3 monthe upte 12 monthe s 10,260.00
8 Earmariied Bslances with Banis
- Deposit -Unpald Principal/ Interest = =
- Othar = x
YOTAL - 10,280.00
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NOTE NO. 10 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023

A

B

dl.

laied Parties - Unsecured (Refer

Loans (incl Interest ther ) to
Note 34(6),

Loan Recelvable - (Considered Good)
Loan Recelvable-Credit impalred

—_

Sub-total

Loans to Employees (Including acerued Interest) (Refer Note 10.4)

- Conaldered good- Secured
- Considered good- Unsecured
- Credit Impaired- Unsecured

loans (Refer Note 10.4)

Less : Loss All

Sub-total

TOTAL

101 Loans and advances In the nature of laun that are repayable on demand.

Loans and advancos in the nature of loan that ane without specifying any
terms or period of repayment

10.2 Do from directors or other officers of the company.

10.3|Loss Allowances for doubtful loan to Related Party
QOpening Balance
Addition during the year

Used during the yeer

Clesing balance

10.4 Loss All loans

Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Rayarsed during the year

for doubtiul Employe

Closing balance

10.5 Advance due by firms or privats companles In which any Diraclor of the
Campeny is 8 Director or member .

income for the company, The Carrying value may

10.6 Loans are non-derivative financlal assets which g & fixed or
be affected by changes In the credit risk of the counterparties.

10.7 Particulars of Loans as required in terms of Gection 186 (4) of ihe Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed undur Note 10 above.

10.8 Refer Note 34(11) of the Financial Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 11 CURRENT - FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

(Amount In ¥ Lakhg)

PARTICULARS As at st March, 2024 | As at J1st March, 2023y
A Security Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured - -
- Cradit Impaired- Unsecured
Less : Loss Allowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 11.1) - -
Sub-total . =
B Amount recoverable 3,022,74 577.52
Less: Loss Allowances for Doubtful Recoverables {Refer Note 11.2) x s
Sub-total 3,022.74 577.52
c Recaivable from Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures = =
D Recaivable on account of Late Payment Surcharge - -
Less: Loss allowances for Recelvable on account of Late Payment N -
Surcharge
Sub-total - =
E Lease Rent receivable (Finance Lease) T
F Interest Income accrued on Bank Deposits 4522 52.88
[« interast receivable on Finance lease ¥ -
H trowm inry :
! Interest Aocrued on Investment (Bonds) L
J4 A t R on rt of Bonds Fully Serviced by Govemment of
india
-Principsl E -
- Interest accrued - &
Intereat acorued on Loan to State Govemment in sattiement of duas from .
customers
L Derivative MTM Asset a &
L) Claim recoverable from parent company - NHPC LTD. - -
TOTAL 3,087.98 830.38
11.1 Loss Allowances for Doubtiul Deposits
Opening Balance =
Addition during the yesr
Usad during the year
ring the year
Closing bajance . -
11.2 Loss Allowancss for Doubtful Recoverables
Opening Balance =
Addition during the yesr
Linod during the year
Rewaedduinathevosr — = = =
Lloaing balence
11.3 Refer Note 34(11) of the Financial Gtatements with regard to confirmation of balances.
NOTE NO. 12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) {Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
PARTICULARS As ol Jini March, 2024 | As at 31st Mareh, 2023
Current Tax Assets
A Advance income Tax Including Tax Deductad at Source . x
B Less: Provision for Current Tax
Nat Cwrent Tax Asssis (A-8) . -
Income Tax Refundable *
Total . N
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NOTE NO. 13,1 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount In ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

A

Advances other than Capltal Advances
a) Deposits
- Considered good- Unsecured
Less : Expenditure booked against demand ralsed by Government
Departements
- Consldered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Aliowances for Doubtful Deposits (Refer Note 13,1.1)

Sub-total
b) Advance to contractors and suppliers (Refer Note 13.1.8)

- Consldered good- Secured
- Consldered good- Unsecured

— Against bank guarantee

~ Others
Less : Expenditure booked pending ulilisation certificate
- Considered doubtful- Unsecured
Less : Allowances for doubtful advances (Refer Note 13.1.2}

Sub-otal

c) Other advancss - Emplayees
- Considered good- Unsecured (Rafer Nots 13.1.7)

d) intarest socrued
Othens
- Considered Good
- Considersd Doubtful
Less: Allowances for Doubtful Interest (Refer Nots 13.1.3)

Sub-total|

Othere

a) Expanditure awalting adjustment
Less; Aliowances for project axpsnses swalting write off sanction (Refer
Note 13,1.4)

Sub-total|

b) Losssa/Assets awaiting write off sanction/pending investigation
Less: Allowances for losses/Aseats pending Investigation/awalting write off /
sanction (Refer Note 13.1.5)

Sub-total

) Work In Progress
Caonstruction work in progress(on behalf of cllent)
Consultancy work In progress(on behaif of cllent)
d) Prepald Expenditure
o) Deferred Cost on Employses Advances
Foreign Curvency Fluctustion
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctustion Assets
Deforred Expenditure on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
0) Gaods snd Services Tax nput Recsivable
w;mmmmmrnmnmmmm
13.1.8)
Sub-total
h) Others (Mainly on zccourt of Material lssued to Contrectors)

TOTAL

110,38

13.1.4 Allowancas for Doubtful Deposits

13.1.2 Allow

Adgition during the year
Used duwring the year
Bevarnad during the

ing the year
Clesing balance

for { advances (Contract
Cpening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
tha

and s}

Closing bal
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13.1.3 Allowances for Doubtful Accrued interest
Opaning Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance
13.1.4 Allowinces for project axpenses awaiting write off sanction
Opaning Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year
Reversed during the year

Closing balance

1318 pllowances for loases psnding Investigation/ awaiting write off / sanction
Opsning Balance

Addition during the year

Used during the year

Revarsed during the year
Closing balance

13.1:6 Allowances for Goods and Services Tax Input Recelvable
Opening Balance
Addition during the year
Used during the year

ar

Revpaied during Ihe ve
Cissing balunce

13.1.7  Due from Direciors or ather offtosre of the company.

13.1.8  Advance due by Firma or Private Companies in which any Directar of the
Compeny is @ Director of member,

Refer-Note 34(11) of the Financial Statemants with regard to confirmation of batances,
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NOTE NO. 13.2 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

(Amount In ¥ Lakha)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Nots 13.2.1)

TOTAL - -
13.21 Property, Plant and Equipment Incudes Plant and equipment and Other assets (Office equipment, vehicles,fumiture and fixtures,etc y
have been Identified for disposal due to repl W of assets which happens In the normal course of operations.

NOTE NO. 14.1 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT DEBIT BALANCES

(Amount In € Lakhe)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

141 NIL

NOTE NO. 14.2 REGULATORY DEFERRAL ACCOUNT CREDIT BALANCES

(Amount In ¥ Lakhg)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

WRY Credit to &8 pazsed on fo bensficiarion
QOpaning Ralance

Addition during the year (Refer Note 31)

Used during the year (Refer Note 31)
Raversed during the yedr (fafer Note 31)

Closing balunce
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NOTE NO. 16.1 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

(Amount In T Lakp, =)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 202y

At Amortised Cost
- Sacured Loans
-Bonds
-Tarm Loan
- from Banks
- from Other (FInancial Institutions)
- Unsecured Loans
-Bonds
-Term Loan
- from Bank
- from Government of Indla {Subordinate Debts)

- from Other (In Foreign Currency)

TOTAL

NOTE NO. 16.2 NON CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES

—

(Amount In T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
Lease Liabliities 2,416.06 2,302.98
TOTAL 2.410.08 2,302.98
10.21 Mnturity Analysls of Laase ilsbitty
The isbie below summarises the maturity profile of the company's borrowings
and lesse llabliity based on contrectual payments (Undiscounted Cash
Fliws) :
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
More than 1 Year & Less than 3 Yeare 500.00 481.25
More than 3 Year & Less than 5 Years 242.50 242,80
Mors than § Years 4,971.25 4971.28
TOTAL 0.08 0.06
18,2.2 Movemant in Lsase Liablity As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
Opening Balancs 2,312.11
Addition in lease labdijes 2215 €,867.03
Finance Cost accrued during ths year 112.70 135.08
Lass; Payment of leass labilites 2.44 4,480.00
Claaing Balance 282002 2312.11
Current maturitiss of iease obllgations (Refer Note 20.2) 2848 9.13
Long term maturities of lease obligations 2,418.08 2,302.98
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NOTE NO, 16.3 NON CURRENT - FINANGIAL LIABILTIES - OTHERS

(Amount In ¥ Lakha)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 313t March, 2023

16.3.1

Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Govemment of indla
- Princlpat
Retention Money
Liability against capital worka/suppli
Payable for Late Payment Surcharge
Derivative MTM Llability

TOTAL

Maturity Anslysis of Note No-16.3

The table beiow summarises the maturity profile of the deposita/retention
money based on contractual payments {Undiscounted Cash Flows) ©

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2024

As at 31st
March, 2023

More than 1 Year & Losa than 3 Years
More than 3 Year & Lass than 6 Years
More than 5 Years

4.87

148

TOTAL

4.87

1.48
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NOTE NO. 17 PRQVISIONS - NON CURRENT

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
—.

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

A PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Provision for Long term Bonefits (Provided for on the basis of actuarial
) valuation)
As per |ast Balance Sheat
Additions during the year

Amount used during the year

Amount reversed during the year

Closing Balance
17.1 Information eboul nature and purposs of Provisions Is given in Note 34 (17) of

Financlal Statements.

As at 318t March, 2023

NOTE NO. 18.1 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) - NON CURRENT As at 31st March, 2024
PARTICULARS
Deferrad Tax Assets 62,92 62.92
Total 62,92 62.92

Deferred tax sssets has been crestad in compiiancs to IND AS 12 on "Income|

18-17| Taxas” notified under the Companies Act, 2013,

18.1.3 | Movemim in Deferred Tax Assets are shown in Annexure to Note No. 18.1

NOTE NO. 1.2 NON GURRENT - DEFERRED TAX LIABIITIES (NET)

(Amount in € Lakhs)

As at 31s¢ March, 2023

Add: Recagnised during the year
Laas: Ulllised during the yesr

PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024
Deterred Tax Liability

" Froparty, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use, Investment Property and d
Intangible Assets. -

b) Financial Assets st FVTOCI - .

c) Other ems v -
Deferred Tax Liabllity - -
Less:-Set off Deferred Tax Assets p to set off provi

a) F ton for amployse bensfit sch doubtful debts, | y and others - .

b) Other ltems 62,92 62,82

c) MAT cradit entitement (Refer Note 18.2.2) . P
Dotyrrpd Tax Assots a6 202 |

82,531 ©282)]
)i g by 62.92 6282
18.2.1 Movement in Deferred Tax Lisbility/ (Assets) is given as Annexure to Note 16.1
18.2.2 Delgil of MAT Credit i (Amount in ¢ Lakhs)
Particulars As out 3st March, 2024 | As st 318t Maroh, 2023
Oponing Balance 0

Closing Bal
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NOTE NO. 18 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount In € Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Income received In advance-Advance Against Depreclation
Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Llabliities

Deferfed Income from Forelgn Cuirency Fluctuation Account
Granls [n ald-from Govemmani-Delerred Income

TOTAL

NOTE NO. 20.1 BORROWINGS - CURRENT

(Amount In ? Lakhs)

As at 315t March, 2024

As at 318t March, 2023

PARTICULARS
A Loan Repayable on Demand
From Banks-Secured
B Other Loans
From Bank-Secured
[ Current maturities of lang term debt
- Bondwe-Secured

- Term Loan -Banks-Secured

- Term Loan -Financial Institutions-Secured

- Tarm Loan -Basks-Unsscunad

- Unsscured-From Govemment (Subordinate Debts)
- Othar-Linsscured (In Foreign Gusesnty)

ok Total (C )

v W

TOTAL

NOTE NO. 20.3 CURRENT - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILTIES

(Amount In € Lakhs)

uumuum,mj

PARTICULARS As st 318t March, 2024
Lesse Ligblities (Rifer Note 34(14) 2648 8.13
TOTAL W40 "1
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NOTE NO. 20.3 TRADE PAYABLE - CURRENT (Amount in ¥ Lakhg)

oy
PARTICULARS As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
To—
Totil outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small sntarprises (Refer 52.56 4384
Note 20.3.1) } :
Total outstanding duas of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small 23
enterprises {Refer Note 20.3.3) 28,84 83
N |
TOTAL 77.60 07.47
-
20.3.1 Disclosure regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprize :-
(o] ding Lisblittes Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 52.56 43.84
Disclosura of amount payable to Micro and Small Enterprisas ls based on the ir jlable with the Comp regarding the

siatus of suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprise Dovolopmont Acl, 2008 (the Act). Additional disclosure
es required under Section 22 of the Act |s given under Note No.34(14) of Financial Statements.

20.3.2 Refer Annexure-| to Note No-20.3 for Ageing schedule of Trade Payables.

20.3,3 Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small - =
enterprises inciudes Re. NIL (Pevious Year Rs. NIL) due to Parent Company.-

(Applicable to SVe evwd Subsidiery Company)
20.3.4 Rufor Niste $4{11) of the Finandal Statamonits with regend to confirmation of balences.

0 ]
%270 df/
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NOTE NO. 20.4 CURRENT - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Amountin T Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Bond application money

Liabliity against capital works/supplies other than Micro and Small Enterprises

(Refer Note 20.4.5)
Deposits

Liabllity against capital works/supplles-Micro and Smail Enterprises (Refer

Note 20.4.1)

Liability against Corporate Social Responsibility

Interest accruad but not due on borrawings (Refer Note 20.4.3)
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer Note 20.4.4)
Payable towards Bonds Fully Serviced by Government of India
- Principal

= Interest

Eamest Money Deposit/ Retention Monay

Due fo Subsidiaries

Liabillty for share application money -to the extent refundable
Unpaid dividend (Refer Note 20.4,2)

Unpald Principal/ Interest (Refer Note 20.4.2)

Payable for Late Payment Surcharge

Derivative MTM Liabllity

Payable to Employees

Payebie 1o Othera

1,872.16

12.28

1,765.29
351,68

868.42

18.52

TOTAL

3,998.80

20.4.1 Disalosure regarding Micro, Smail and Madium Enterprise :-

Outstanding Lisbllities towards Micro, Small sand Medium Enterprise

Outstanding Interest towsrds Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Disclosurs of amount payable 1o Micro and Small Enterprises is based on the Ir i jlable with the C g the
status of suppliers as defined undar the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprise Development Act, 2008 (the Act). Addl!lcnll dsnclosure

12,28

a3 required under Section 22 of The Act is given undar Note No.34(13) of Financial Statements.

20.4.2 "Unpaid Dividend" and “Unpaid PrinclpaV/ interest" Includes the amounts which have not besn claimed by ths Inveslors/holders of the
equity sharas/bonds. During the year, unpaid dividend of ¥ NIL ( Previous Year € NiL) has been puld to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund. There is no amount due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund

20.4.3 interest accrued but not due on borrowings ncludes Interest amounting to Ra.NiL payable to Parent C

and Subsidisiries Companies.

20.4.4 (nterest accrued and due on borrowings includes Interest amounting to Rs. NiLpayable to Parent Company.-Applicable to JVs and

Subsidiairies Companies.

20.4.6 Liabllty against capital works/supplias other than Micro and Smail Enterprises includes Rs.185.22 lakhs. Payable to Parent

Company.- Appiicable to JVs and Subsidialries Companies.

Applicabie to JVs

20.4.6 Refer Note 34(11) of the Financlal Statsments with mgard to confirmation of balances

p

e u ol

NOTE NQ. 21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

As zt 31st March, 2024

As st Y1t March, 2023

! tved in ad (Adv agalnst d lation)
Defered income from Forelgn Currency Fluclustion Accolint
Deferred Foreign curmncy Fluctuation Liabililies

Ui of d Y basis works

Waler Usage Charges Puyables

Contract Lisbilities-Project Mesnagement/ Consuitancy Work

Provislon toward amount recoverable in respect of Project Management/

Consuitancy Wark
Advanca from Customers and Others

Grants in aid-from Govammant-Dafamad incoma

TOTAL

J13.70

136.58

21.1 Rafer Note 34(11) of the Financlal Statements with regard to confirmation of balances.
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NOTE NO. 22 PRQVISIONS - CURRENT

(Amount in ¥ Lakha)

-

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 313t March, 2023

A, PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

) Provision for Long term Benefits (Provided for on the basis of actyarial
valustion)

As per last Balance Sheet
Addltions during the year
Amount used during the year
Ameunt reversed during the year

Closing Balance
1) Provision for Porformance Related Pav/incentlve

As per last Balance Sheet 212,65 71.48

Additions during the ysar 24068 21255

Amount used during the year 206,43 71.48

Amount reversed during the year -

Closing Balance 247.80 212.55

Less:-Advance Pald - -

Ciosing Balance Net of Advanca 247,80 212.65
TOTAL 247.80 212.58

———
2.1 informution sbeut nature shd purpese of Provisians is given in Nole 24 (17) of Finenolal Stalements.
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NOGTENO. 23 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) {Amaunt in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Asat YistMarchy 2024 | As at ITst March, 2023
Curront Tax Liability as per last Balance Shaat 22768 D054
Additans guring the year 151.51 22768
Amourt adusted during tho yaar o
Amount used during tho yoar 22756 054
Ameunt reversed during the yoor
Closing Balance of Current Tax Liablity (A) 151.51 227.66
Less: Current Advanca Tax inclucing Tax Daducted at Source (8) 153.22 221.19
Net Current Tax Liabilities (A-B} (1:70) (6212)
{Disclosed under Note No-4 above) 170 0142
TOTAL - -
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NOTE NO. 24,1 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
J1st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31at March, 2023

o@

Openating Revenus

SALES
Sals of Power
Advance Against Depreclation -Written back during the year
Performance based Incentive
Sub-total (i)
iess:
Sales adustment on account of Forelgn Exchange Rate Variation
Tarltf Adjustments
Regulated Power Adjustment
Income from generation of elsctricity — precommissioning
(Tranaferrad to Expenditure Attributable to Construction) (Refer Note 32)
Rebatle to customers

Sub-total (I

Sub - Tatal {A) = (i)

Incoma from Finance Losse

neome from Operating Lesss
R From C: Project M and C Kancy Works
Contract Income
Revenue from Projoct manag Consullancy warks - =
- Total (P) . =
Revenue from Power Trading
Sale of Power
Loss:-Rebate to customors =
JYraging Margin - -
Sub - Total (E) - -
8Bub-Totall (A+B+C+DHE) = .
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Income From Sale of Self Generated VERW/REC - -
[ on of ganet | based incentive (GBI) - -

Interest from Beneficiary States -Ravislon of Tarilf
Income on account of Sale of Serap

Sub-Yotaldl

TOTAL ()
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NOTE NO. 24.2 OTHER INCOME

(Amount In ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31at March, 2024

——

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

A) Interest Income
- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Non Taxable ”
- Investments carried at FVTOCI- Taxable - =
- Interest - Government Securitles (8.5% tax fres bonds Issuad by z e
the State Governments)
- Loan to Government of Arunachal Pradesh - =
- Deposit Account 602.01 904.68
- Employee's Loans and Advances (Net of Rebate) - .
- Advance to contractors = B
- Unwindling of Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets - L
- Others - ¥
B) Dlvidend Income
- Dividend from subsldiaries - -
- Dividend - Cthers - -
C) Other Non Op ing (Net of Exp directly attributable to
such income)
Late-peyment mircharge =
Regiigation of Loss Due To Business Interruption -
Priityon shis of investments = .
Profit an sale of Assets (Net) g
Lisbities/ impsirment Allowances/ Provisions ot required written back (Refer ) 0.07
Notp 34.2.1) '
Usigria) issued to contractor
() Sale on account of materia) issued to contractors N i
(i) Lews: Cost of | issued to contractors on recoverable basis . =
(M) Net: Adjustment on socount of material issued to contractor - -
Amoriization of Grant in Ald - -
rete variation (Net) - .
Mavrk to Market Galn on Dervative - -
Othars 10.68 213
Sub-total 812,70 908.78
Add/(Less): C.O. Income Aliocation - -
Add/(Less): Regional Office Incoms Allocation = *
Sub-total #12.70 908,78
Less: Trensfeired to Expenditure Attributable to Construction 10.68 220
Less: Transferred to Advance/ Deposit from Client/Contraciees and sgainst = :
Works
Less: Transfer of other income ko grant = -
Yatal 0801 20448
Sy —— - = N
34.2.1 Detall of Lisbilitiessimp "t MProvisions not required
writinn beek
s) Omhens . )
TOTAL - ]
e L,
(/_,.\-\1\': !-‘031'5 _
\J/—NQ
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NQTE NO. 25.1 Purchase of Power - Trading

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Purchase of Power & ~
Less : Rebate from Supplier b -
Total » *
NOTE NO. 28.2 GENERATION EXPENSES {Amount In ¥ Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
PARTICULARS 318t March, 2024 318t March, 2023
Water Usage Charges - -
Consumption of stores and spare parts s —
Sub-total -
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Constructian - =
Total . -
NOTE NO. 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Amount in € Lakhu)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
P ULARS
ARTIC st March, 2024 31t March, 2023
Salaries and Wages 1,503.00 1,162.00
GContribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 26.2 and 28.4) 208.00 139.00
Staff welfare expenses 124.00 81.00
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution L =
Sub-total 1,035.00 1,362.00
Add/(Less). C.O. Expenses Allocation = s
Add/(Less). Reg Offics E A 1 - .
Sub-total 1,038.00 1,382.00
Less: Transferred to Expenditurs Attributable to Construction 1,836.00 1,362.00
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works 5 =
Total : :
26.1 Disciosure about ieases d dation for empioyess are given in Note 34 (18) (A) of Financlat Statements. ]
26.2|Contribution to provident and other funds include contributions: For the Year ended For the Year ended
Jtet March, 2034 J1at March, 2023
I} towards Empioyeas Providen! Fund T8.78 .78
fi) iowards Employses Ceofined Contridusion Buparannustion 116.64 7284

20,3 Salary and wages includes axpanditure on short term luases as per [ND AS-
118" Lsasas"

26.4 Employse bansfit expenditure includes an smount of Re. Re.NIL (Previous year Nil.) n respact of employees engaged in R&D
the Company.

Aclivitiss of

152

RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24



NOTE NO. 27 FINANCE COSTS

(Amount in T Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the Year snded
PARTICULARS 318t March, 2024 318t March, 2023
A Interest on Financlal Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Bonds - -
Term loan - a
Foreign loan - -
Govemment of India loan = =
Short Term Loan = o
Cash credit facliities AVCDL = iy
Other interest charges . .
Lease Liabllities 112.70 135.08
Unwinding of discount-Government of India Loan - 3
Sub-total 112.70 136.08 |
B Other Borrowing Cost
Call spread/ Coupon Swap = s
Bond issue/ service expenses . ¥
Commitment fee - -
Guarsntes fee on forelgn loan g -
Other finance charges . .
Unwind! i t-Provision & F ial Lisblitles 0.07 0.08
Sub-total 0.07 0.08
c Applicable nat {gainy loss on Foreign owrency transactions and
transistion
Exaly L garded ss o interest cost =
Less: Trensferred to Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation Assets -
Sub-total
.
o] interest on Income Tax 0.2% 3.08
Tota! (A+B+C+D) 112.07 138.29
Add/(Less). C.O. Expenses Allocation * -
Add/(Less). Regional Office £ Allocat - 2
TOTAL 112,07 138.21
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Atiributable to Construction 112,76 136.13
Less: Recoverable from Deposlit Warks - =
Total 0.21 J.0a
NOTE NO. 20 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES (Amount in T Lakhs)
TICULARS For the Year ended For the Year ended
Gas 31st March, 2004 3ist March, 2029
Depreciation -Property, Plant and Equipment 44.24 28.18
Depreciation-Right of use Assets 154.08 181.30
Amortization -Intangible Assets 8.29 3.24
Dapraciation acjusiment on account of Foreign Exchange Reta Varistion }
{Rfer Note 10 end S{DYH)
Add{Less). C.0. Expenses Allocation - =
Add/(Less): Regh Offios E All - -
Add/(Lass). Depreciation aliocatad toffrom other units # s
Sub-total| 204.58 212.73
Leas: Transferred to Expanditure Attributable to Construction 204,59 21273
Less: Recoverable from Depowit Works = :
Total 0.00 0.00
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NOTE NO., 28 OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year endad
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Direct Expenditura on C t, Project Manag tand C ltanoy
Works

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
- Bullding
- Machinery
- Others
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent (Refer Note 20.4)
Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Security expenses
Electriclty Charges
Travelling and Conveyance
Expenses on vehicles
Telephone, telax and Postage
Adverisemant snd publicity
E j and hospi oXpenses
Printing and stationery
l‘:nul Expsnees s

Consuitancy charges - Forsign

Audit expenses (Refer Note 29.3)

Exper on pensatory affi lon/ catchimant area treatment/
environmental axpenses/developmint expenses

Expenses on work of downstream protection works

Expenditure on land not belonging to company

Loss on Assets (Nel)

Losses out of Insurance claims

Donation

Corporate soclal respensibility (Rafer Note 34(14))

Community Deveiopment Expanses

Diractors' Sltting Fees

Interest on Arbltration/ Court Cases

Compensation on Arbitration/ Court Cases

Interest to beneficlary

BExpenditure on Self Genemted VER'WREC

Exchange rate varation (Net)

Treining Expanses

Patition Fea /Reglstration Fee /Other Fes — To CERC/RLDC/RPC/IEX/PXIL

Operational/Running Expenses of Kendriya Vidyalay
Operational/Running Expense: of Other Schools
Operational/Running Expanses of Guast House/Translt Hostel
Opemting Expenses of DG Set-Other than Residential

Fair Value Loss on Financial Assets

Change in Falr Value of Derivalves

Other ganeral expenses

7.49
57.60

142,10
0.85
38,71
0.79
128.12
9.15
51,32
6.46
25.18
0.08

3.60
018
221

0.83

1.18

2148

0.68
30.e8
104.92

8.97
0.15
112.54
6.83
27.04
2.59
8.08
1.58

5.84
0.08
226

hub-total

Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation
Add/{Less): Reglonal Offica Expensas Allocation

Sub-total
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Lusss: Recoverabis from Deposit Works
Less: Trunsfer to General Reserve for Expenses on Buyback

Sub-total (i)

EROVISIONS! IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE

Loss sl for trade ivabl

Loss Aliowance for Expecied Credit Loss -Trade Receivables
Allowanice for Bad and doubtful advances / deposits
Allowance for Bad and doubtful claims

Allowance for Bad and Doubtul Loan

Allowancs for Doubtful Interest

Allowanoe for stores and spares/ Construction stores
Allowance for Shortage in store & spares provided
Allowance againat diminution in the value of investment
Allowance for Project expenses

All

for losses p 9 g Iting write off /

Allowance for Diminution in value of Inventory of Self Generated VER's Provided
for

All for hment area tr plan

Interest to Bensficiary {Refer Note 29.2)

Interest against court/arbitration award

Others

Sub-total
Add/(Less): C.O. Expenses Allocation
Add/(Less): Regional Office Expenses Allocation

Sub-total|
Less: Transferred to Expenditure Attributable to Construction
Less: Recoverable from Deposit Works

Sub-total {ii)

Total {i+ll)

154

RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24




29.1 Disclosure about ieases are glven in Note 34 (14) of Financial Statements,

.2

29.3

294
o

O]
(i)

—_—

(Amount in ¥ L’-’i"!l

Particulars

Fer the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Yoar ended
J1st March, 2023

Pending nofification of ravision ordar by CERC In respect of tuing up
appiication filed by the company under CERC netification dated 21.02.2014,
stalod amount has been provided in the bocks during the year towards
Interest to Beneflalary States, which may have to be paid in case of raduction
in tariff a5 & rosult of said revision ordar.

(Amountin T Lakhs)

Detall of audit expenses are as under: -

For the Year ended
313t March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

i) Statutery auditors

As Auditor

- Audit Fees

- Tax Audlt Faas

In other Capacity

- Taxation Matters

- Company Law Matiers

- Management Services

- Othar Maltere/sarvices

- Reimbureement of expenses
i) Cast Auditors

- Audit Fees

- Relmbursement of expanses
ill} Goods and Service Tax (G8T) Auditors
- Audit Feos

- Reimburssmant of expenses

040

0.40

Tatal Audit Expenses

0.75

Rent Inciudes the following sxpendIture as per IND AS-116 " Leases".

Expenditure on short-term lsases other than lease term of one month or less

104.82

Expenditure on long term lease of ow-value asseis

Variable laase payments not included in the measursment of lease labliities
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NOTE NO. 30.1 TAX EXPENSES

Amount in ¥ Lakhs

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
313t March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

Currant Tax
Pravision for Current Tax

ustment Relati lor years

151.51

227.68
11.82

Total Current Tax expanses

151.51

239.48

Deferred Tax

Decrease (increase) in Deferred Tax Assets

- Relating to crigination and reversal of temparary differences
- Relating to change in tax rate

- Adjustments In respect of deferred tax of earlier years

- Adjustments on account of MAT credit entitiement

Increase (decreass) In Deferred Tax Lisblities

- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
- Relating to change In tax rate

- Adjustments in respect of defarred tax of earier years

(12.58)

Total Defarred Tax Exponses [banefiis)

(12.58)

Net Doferrod Tax

(12.58)}

Total

181.51

Fssonailistion of ks exp wnd the ting profit multiplied by|

India’s domestic rate.

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year eanded
J1st March, 2023

Accounting profivioss before income tax including movement in Regulatory
Deferral Account Balance

Applicable tax rate (%)

565.80

0.26168

868.75

0.25168

jEempyted L expanse

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (Taxable) in calculating
|taxable incoms.

Mon Deductible Tax Expenses

Tax Exempt income

Tax Incerdlvas (80-IA Deductions)

Adustmant for currant tax of earior years

Mini Al Tex Adjustments

Change in rate of tax

Change In rate of tax
| Adlusimen) Relsiing To Eatlior your,

11.60

10.77

lincome tax P In Bt

of Profit and Loss

151.84

226.90

Amountc recognisad diracily In Equity

Aguregals current and deferred lax arsing in the reporting year and nol
|racognised in net profit or lose or other comprehensive income but diracily
| debitediicredited) to equity

Curment Tax

Defored tax

Tolal

Tax lossss and oredits

() Unused tax losses for which no defesTed tax asset has been recognised
| Petontia! tax benefit @ 30%
(fi) The datalls of MAT Credit available to the Company in future but not

|racognised in the books of

Unrecognisad temporary differonces

Temporury differences relating io Investmants [n subsidlarias for which
|deferred tax liabliities have not been recognised

Undlstributed Eamings

Unrecognised defemred tax liabilities relating to the above temporary

differences
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NOTE NO. 30.2 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Amount In ¥ Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year endad
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

{I) Items that will not be reclassifiad to profit or ioss
(a) Remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit obligations

Less: Income Tax on remeasurement of the post employment defined benefit

obligations
B
R of the post employ t o d benefit [ {net . .
of Tax)
Less:-Movement In Regulatory Deferral Account Balances in respect of tax on
defined benefit obligations - "
-Mavement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances-Remeasurement of <
post employ defined benefit obligations )
Less: Impact of Tax on Regulatory Deferral Accounts = -
Sub total (a) - =
(b) Investment in Equity Instruments & =
Less: Income Tax on Equlty instruments - -
Sub total (b) - -
Total (Iy={a)}+{b) . .
(i) ams that will be reciassified to profit or loss
- In Debt instruments - -
Less: Income Tax on investment in Debt Instrumenta -
Totat () - -

Total =(iHl)

NOTE NO. 31 M in

¥ Deterral A nt Bal

- —|

{Amount in € Lakhs)

PARTICULARS

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

() Wage Revision ss per 3rd Pay Revision Commitise

(i) Depreciation dus o modsration of Tasiif

(IH) Exchange Differsnces on Manatary ltams

{iv) Intersst Payment on Court/Arbitration Cases

(v} Adj against Dx d Tax R bie for tarff perlod upto 2009

(vi) Adj against D Tax Lisbilties for tariff period 2014-2019 and

(vHl} Regulstory Lisblifty on account of recognition ot MAT Credit

TOTAL PG+ +{vI) +wl)

fmpeot of Tax on Hagulalary Duferral Acssunts
Less: Deferred Tax on Reguiatory Deferal Account Balances
Add: Deferred Tax rable from Beneficlark

Totat

31.t Refer Note 14 of Standulone Finansis! Statements.
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NOTE NO. 32 EXPENDITURE ATTRIBUTABLE TO CONST|

RUCTION (EAC) FORMING PART OF CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS FOR THE

YEAR
(Amount in ¥ Lakhs}
For the Year ended , For the Year endod
PARTIGULARS J1st March, 2024 J151 March, 2023
A, \T) EXP! E
Waler Usage:Charges G =
Consumption of stores and spare parts . u
Sub-total 3 -
B.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salanes and VWagea 1,503.00 1.182.00
Contribution to provident and other funds 2048.00 136.00
Staff welfare expensas 124.00 61.00
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution - =
Sub-total, 1,835.00 1,362.00
c. FINANGE COST
Interest on :
Bonds - =
Foreign loan b -
Term loan . .
Lease Liabilities 112.70 135.08
11270 135.08
Cash credit facilitles /WCOL - .
Exchange differences regarded as adjusiment fo interest cost - =
Loss on Hedging Transactions - =
Bond issue/ sorvice axpensas -
Cammitment fee .
Guaranlee fee on loan -
Other finance charges
Transfer of expansss to EAC- Intirest on Ioans from Central Government- =
adjustment an aczount of effestive interest J
Transfor of expenses lo EAC-Interest on security deposil/ retention money-
adjlatmont on account of effective.nterest
Transfar of expensas to EAC-committed capital expenses-adjustment for ime = 2
value
Sub-total 11270 135.08
D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES 204.58 212.73
Sub-otal 204.59 1273
E OTHER EXPENSES
Repaits And Maintenance
-Buliding 7.49 0.88
-Muchinery - -
-Clners 57.80 30.98
Renl & Hire Charges 142.75 104.92
Ratos and taxos 9.71 8.97
Insurance 0.79 0.15
Security expansas 126,12 112.54
Elactricity Changes 8.15 6.83
Travelling and Conveyance 35.30 23:58
Expensas on vehiclas 6.48 2.59
Telephone, telex and Postage 25.18 6.08
Advertisement and publicity - -
Enlortainment and hospitaiity expenses T -
Printing and stallonery 3.80 584
Legal and Conaullancy charges:
- Indigenous 239 2.3
- Foreign - .
Expensas on compensalory afforestation/ catchment area treatment/
anyironmantal expenses/ development axpanses
E on works of do m proleclion works - -
Expenditure on land not belonging to company - =
Assels/ Claims written off 1.18 -
Land Acquisilion and Rehabilitation Expenditure - -
Lossas on sale of assets - -
Other general expenses 185.49 841,90
Remuneration (o Auditors 1.00 1.00
Exchange rate variation (Debif) - -
Sub-total 544,35 1,150.33
F. PROVISIONS - -
Sub-total =
aG. CORPORATE OFFICE/REGIONAL OFFICE EXPENSES
Othar ncome . 3
Other Expenses - -
Employee Benefits Expense - -
Depreciation & Amarilsation Expenses -
Finance Cost = .
Provisions - .
Sub-total - -
H. LESS: RECEIPTS AND RECOVERIES
Incame from generation of slectricily — precommissioning . -
Inleres! on loans and advances - -
Profit on sale of assets - -
Exchange rate variation (Credit) - x
Provislon/Liabllity nat required writlen back . 0.07
Miscellanaous recaipls 10.68 213
Transter of fair value gain to EAC- secuily deposit - -
Transfer of Income to EAC - MTM Galn on Dervatlves B %
Transfer of fair value gain to EAC - on provisions for committed capital - i
expaniiture
Sub-tatal| 10.69 2.20
TOTAL {A+B+C+D+E+F+G-H) (Refer Note 2.2) 2,785,53 2,857.94
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Ll 4) 32 il ios of NHP i
I_’E_fgll_ov\’lno ar@ analylica| ratlos for the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31,2023.
Reason for
31ist March  |% varlance
S.No |paniulars N Denominator 31st March 2024 |2023 Varlance
{a) Cunant Ratia Current Assals Current Liabiliios 2.29 6.95 -67.05 3 i e T
The reason of vaniance |s due to increasa iny capita) ability as un
Major Works Capital Liabiiity & Capital Retamio: Maney slz on 31
2024 Is Rs.32.71 Crwhere as [t wasRs.9.94 ¢ as on 31-03-2023
.Furiher NHPC Tec Service Lisbillly 85 on 31.03.2023 was NIL w
as |t is as on 31-03-2024 Is 1.B5 Cr
Ol ; ;
(b) DebiLEquity Ralio Total Debis Sharaholders Equity 0.04 0.06 ~41.11 | The reason of variance ls due to increase iny total Equity and ming
increase In lease Liabll;ity as under:
Total Equity as on 31-03-2024 is R3.674.79 Cr where as it
wasRs.375.80 Cr as on 31-03-2023 .
Long term lease Liabllity as on 31-03-2024 i 24.45Cr where as it
e M — was as on 31-03-2023 Is 23.11 Cr
(¢) |Debtservice Coverage Ratio |Eaming Aviiablafor | Dubt Servica NA NA NA
dabt service
S— .
(d) Ratum on Equity Ratio (in %) |Profit Afler Tax |Averaga NA NA NA
Sharaholder's Equity
(&) |inveniory tumover Rallo Revanua From Operalio| Average Inventory  |NA NA NA Company Is not generating any opaerative income and is in
construction stage. Hence ratios are not applicable.
n Trade Receivabia tumover Revenue From Cperalioj Avarage Deblors - 0 -
ratio
@) Trade Payables tumover retio {Purchases Average Trade 7.92 388 116.16 |No. of Hired Vehicle as per site requirement aa on 31-03-2024 is 1
Payutiaa a3 against no. of Hired Vehicie a3 on 31-03-2023 was 14.Most of {
owner of Hired Vehicles are MSME& PAF( Project Affected Famifii
(6): Foliowing additonal R&M cleaning & sweeping works were
adopiad during FY2023-24
(i) Cleaning &8weaping Works at Drabshallah Colony Arez.
(i) Operating & maintenance of Drabshaish Cantsen.
(iii) hired of Front loader for sile requirement drabshallah Colony.
m Nat Capital tumover raion Revenus From Operatin Average Wonking : B
Capital
m Nat Profit ratio (in %) HNat Profit Fuovanye from NA NA NA
oporations
Company ls not generaling any operative Incoms and is in
construction stage. Hance ratios are not applicable.
1] Return on Capital Empioyed | Eaming Before Interest |Capital Employad NA NA NA
{in 9%) s and Taxes (Total Assets-Current
Liabilities)
(k) Retum on investment (In %)  |Income genarated from |Time waighted NA NA NA
investments average investmants
Nots 1:- Company s required to give | lon for any change In the ratio by more than 26% as d to the pr ding year.
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Note No. — 34: Other Explanatory Notes to Accounts

1

a)

Disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities to the extent not provided for -

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of:

(i} Capital works

Contractors have lodged claims aggregating to X NIL (Previous year X NIL) against the Company on
account of rate and quantity deviation, cost relating to extension of time, idling charges due to
stoppage of work/delays in handing over the site etc. These claims are being contested by the
company as being not admissible in terms of provisions of the respective contracts or are bying at
arbitration tribunal/other forums/under examination with the Company. These include X NiL
(Previous year X NiL) towards arbitration awards including updated interest thereon, against the
Company, which have been challenged/decided to be challenged in the Court of Law.

Management has assessed the above claims and recognized a provision of X NIL (Previous year X
NIL.} based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated %
NIL. (Previous year X NIL) as the amount of contingent liability i.e. amounts for which Company may
be held contingently liable. In respect of such estimated contingent claims either the outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable or a reliable estimate of the amount
required for settling the obligation cannot be made. In respect of the rest of the claims/obligations,
possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.

(ii) Land Compensation cases

(iif)

In respect of land acquired for the projects, some of the erstwhile land owners have filed claims for
higher compensation amounting to T NIL (Previous year ® NiL) before various authorities/courts.
Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and provided an amount of X NIL (Previous year ¥
NIL) based on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and estimated ¥ NiL
(Previous year X NiL) as the amount of contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered as
not probable.

Disputed Tax Demands

Disputed Income Tax/Sales Tax/Service Tax/ Water Cess/ Green Energy Cess/other taxes/duties
matters pending before various appellate authorities amount to X NiL (Previous year X NIL). Pending
settlement, the Company has assessed and provided an amount of X NIL (Previous year X NIL) based
on probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and % NIL (Previous year X NIL)
are being disclosed as contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered not probable. In
respect of the rest of the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as
remote.

(iv) Others

Claims on account of other miscellaneous matters amount to  NIL (Previous year X NIL). These
claims are pending before various forums. Pending settlement, the Company has assessed and
provided an amount of X NIL (Previous year X NIL) based on probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and estimated X NIL (Previous year X NIL) as the amount of
contingent liability as outflow of resources is considered as not probable. In respect of the rest of
the claims/obligations, possibility of any outflow in settlement is considered as remote.
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The above is summarized as below:

(Rin Lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars | Claims as up to Contingent | Contingent| Addition/ | Decrease |
No. on date liability as | liability as | (deduction) | of
31.03.2024 | Provision | on on from COntingent
against 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023| contingent liability
the liability from
claims during the | Opening
year Balance as
on
01.04.2023
(i) (i) (iti) (iv) (v) (vi) {vii)=(v)-(vi) (viii)
1 Capital NIL NIL NiL NIL NIL NIL
" | Works
Land NIL NIL NiL NIL NIL NIL
2 Compen-
sation
cases
Disputed NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. | tax
matters
4. | Others NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b} The above do not include contingent liabilities on account of pending cases in respect of service

matters and others where the amount cannot be quantified.

{c)

contingent liabilities,

(d)

Contingent Liabilities.

It is not practicable to ascertain and disclose the uncertainties relating to outflow in respect of

There is possibility of reimbursement to the company of X NIL {Previous year X NIL) towards above

(e} (i) ) An amount of X NIL {Previous year X NIL) stands paid towards above Contingent Liabilities in
respect of Capital Works, pursuant to Niti Aayog directions issued vide OM No. 14070/14/2016-
PPPAU dated 5th September 2016, in cases where Arbitral Tribunals have passed orders in favour
of contractors and such awards/orders have been further challenged/being challenged by the
Company in a Court of Law. (Also refer Note No. 5).

(i)

An amount of X NIL (Previous year X NIL) stands paid /deposited with courts/paid as per Court

Order towards above contingent liabilities to contest the cases and has been shown under Other
Non-Current/ Current Assets/ adjusted against other liabilities of the claimants. (Alsa refer Note

no. 5 and 13)

() The Management does not expect that the above claims/obligations (including under litigation),
when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the
company’s results of operations or financial condition.

2. Contingent Assets: Contingent assets in respect of the Company are NIL (previous year NIL):
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3. Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account are as under:

(Rinlakhg)
. .03.2024 | Asat31.03.
St Particulars Asat 31.03 2023
No.
(i) (i) (iii) (iv)
1. Property Plant and Equipment (including
Capital Work in Progress) 3,12,120.25 3,41,601.15
2, Intangible Assets NIL NIL
Total
4. The effect of foreign exchange rate variation (FERV) during the year is as under:
(X in Lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars For the period | For the period
No. ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
{i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as NIL NIL
FERV
(i) | Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as NiL NiL
Borrowing Cost*
(iii) | Amount adjusted in the carrying amount of PPE NIL NIL
{lv) | Amount recognised in Regufatory Deferral Account NIL o NIL 4

| Balances

|

*There is however no impact on profitability of the Company, as the impact of change in foreign
exchange rates is recoverable from beneficiaries in terms of prevailing CERC (Terms and Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations 2019-24. The exchange rate variation included under borrowing cost for the
year is transferred to deferred foreign currency fluctuation assets {recoverable from beneficiaries)

as per Significant Accounting Policy of the Company.

5. Operating Segment:

a) Electricity generation is the principal business activity of the Company.

b) The Company has a single geographical segment as all its Projects/Power Stations are located

within the Country.

6. Disclosures under Ind AS-24 “Related Party Disclosures”:
(A) List of Related parties:

(i} Parent Company:

Name of Company

Principle place of
operation

NHPC Limited

India
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(i) Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl Name Position Held
No.
1 Shri Indra Deva Dayal Chairman

2 Shri Raj Kumar Chaudhary Nominee Director

3 Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal Nominee Director
4 Shri Vijay Kumar Sinha Nominee Director
5 Smt Kamla Fartyal Nominee Director
6 Shri H. Rajesh Prasad Nominee Director ki
7 Shri Santosh D. Vaidya Nominee Director '

8 Shri Ashok Kumar Nauriyal CEO i

9 Shri Jai Prakash CFO

10 | Shri Abhishek Dagur Company Secretary J

(iif} Post-Employment Benefit Plans of NHPC:

. - Principal place of

Name of Related Parties operation

NHPC Ltd. Employees Provident Fund India
NHPC Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund India
NHPC Ltd. Retired Employees Health Scheme Trust India
NHPC Employees Social Security Scheme Trust india
NHPC Ltd. Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation india
Scheme Trust

NHPC Ltd. Employee Leave Encashment Trust India

(iv) Other entities with joint-control or significant influence over the Company:

The Company is a Central Public Sector Undertaking (CPSU) controlled by Central Government by
holding majority of shares. The Company has applied the exemption available for government
related entities and has made limited disclosures in the Financial Statements in accordance with
Ind AS 24. Accordingly, Party-wise details of material/significant transaction carried out with the
Central Public Sector Enterprises/Govt. Agencies only have been disclosed. Transactions with
these related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of business at normal commercial
terms.

Sk Name of the Government Nature of Relationship with NHPC
No.
1 Government of India Shareholder having control over Parent
Company(NHPC)
2 NHPC Holding Company
3 Govt. of Jammu & Kashmir (JKSPDC) Shareholder having significant influence
over the Company

RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24



4 Central/State controlled PSU

Entities controlled by the same
Government (Central
Government/State Govt.) that hgg
control over NHPC

(B)

Transactions and Balances with related parties are as follows:

(i) Transactions and Balances with Parent

(X in Lakhs)
Transactions with Parent For the Period ended | For the period ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(i) (i) (iii)

Services received by the Company from

“  NHPC 744.00 859.75
Dividend paid by the company to

* NHPC
Equity contributions (including share
application money) received by the company
from:

= NHPC 22,718.00 NIL
Reimbursement of Cost of employee on
deputatlon/Posted by

* NHPC 108.03 79.77
Loans & Advances given by the Company to:

*  NHPC -
Loans & Advances received by the Company
from:

" NHPC NIL NIL

(X in Lakhs)

Balances with Parent

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

(i)

(ii) (iii)

Receivable (unsecured) from

= NHPC

Payable (unsecured) to

=  NHPC 536.88 122.10
Investment in Equity by

=  NHPC 36,488.00 13,770.00
Loans & Advances Receivable from:

= NHPC NIL NIL
Loans & Advances Payable to: et

* NHPC é‘%\\o%\ NIL NIL
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(i) Transactions and Balances with Govt, of Jammu & Kashmir (JKSPDC)

(X in Lakhs)

Transactions with  Govt. of Jammu & Kashmir

For the period ended

For the period

money) received by the company

(JKSPDC) 31.03.2024 ended 31.03.2023
(i) (i) (iif)

Services Provided by the Company

Services Received by the Company 1,452.74 4,490.00

Equity contributions {including share application 6,770.00 18,330.00

Loan given by the company

Loan received by the company

Interest on Loan Paid by the company

interest on Loan received from the company

Grant received during the year

ry 3 O

Balances with JKSPDC As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
{i) (ii) (iii)
Receivable (unsecured) ]
Payable (unsecured)
Investment In Equity 30,000.00 23,230.00
Loans & Advances Recelvable B -
Loans & Advances Payable |
|
(ii) Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel:
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Transactions for the period ended 31.03.2024 and Balances as at 31.03.2024
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel (KMP)
Name Short Term | Post- Other  [Termination | Interest | Sitting Outsta
Employee | Employ- | Long Benefits received | Fee nding
Benefits ment Term on Loans
Benefits | Benefits outstand receiva
ing loans ble
1. Government/State Nominee Directors
Sh. Indra Deva 14.50 1.00
Dayal (MD)
2. Company Secretary/CEQ/CFO
Sh. Deepak 9.48 2.64 G&\Q pOH,E?C
Saigal (CEQ) £ " cg
o - @)
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Sh. Ashok Kumar 77.99 7.40
| Nauriyal (CEO)
Sh. Jai Prakash 57.15 6.53
(CFO)
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Transactions for the period ended 31.03.2023 and Balances as at 31.03.2023
Key Compensation to Key Management Personnel | Other transactions & Balances
management
Personnel (KMP)
Name Short | Post- Other  [Termination | Interest | Sitting | Outsta
Term Employ- Long Benefits received | Fee nding
Employee | ment Term on Loans
Benefits Benefits Benefits outstandi recelva
ng loans ble
1. Government/State Nominee Directors
Sh. Indra Deva 14.50 1.20
Dayal (MD)
2.Company Secretary/CEQ/CFO
Sh. Deepak
Saigal (CEO) | 74.48 9.09
Sh. Anuj Kapoor
Sh. Jai Prakash
(CFO) 5.74 1.02
(iv) Transactions & Balances with Post -Employment Benefit Plans
(Z in Lakhs)
Post -Employment Benefit Plans Contribution by the company Balances with Post -
(Net of Refund from Post - Employment Benefit Plans
Employment Benefit Plans)
for the for the period As at As at
period ended ended 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NHPC Limited Employees 87.15 64.36 0 0
Provident Fund
NHPC Limited Employees Group 12.12 6.71 0 0
Gratuity Assurance Fund
NHPC Limited Retired 23.40 12.74 0 0
Employees Health Scheme Trust
NHPC Limited Employees Social 2.55 1.67 0 0
Security Scheme Trust
NHPC Limited Employees 98.51 61.46 0
Defined Contribution
Superannuation Scheme Trust 0
NHPC Limited Employee Leave 72,51 60.32 0
Encashment Trust etc.
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(v) Significant Transactions with Government that has control over the Parent Corhpany (i.e
Central Government)

| (Rs. In lakhs)
Name of Entity/ Govt. Nature of Detail of For the For the
Agency along with PAN & Transaction Transaction period period
CIN ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
IIT-ROORKEE Services Provided by | Management
PAN: AAALIOO33R the Institute Consultancy 23 60,000 64.90
Service e
Jammu Power Corporation | Sale of goods (
Ltd( JPDCL), Jammu Electricity) by the Electricity 0.01 0.01
Company Company
Power Grid Corporation of
India Limited(PGCIL)-
Central Transmission Utility )
of india Ltd Services Received by ISRZ::\;';/eeSd by the
PAN: AAACP0252G the Company Y
Company
35.61 31.06
JAMMU POWER . . Services
DISTRIBUTION S:rvuces Received by REcEIegIbyIthE il
CORPORATION LTD Lo GaTmpany 0
PAN: AADCI4221E
Power Grid Corporation of SerilgesIREEEEalEy Servlf:es 2.36
India e Received by the 0
Limited(PGCIL)AAACP02526 | the Company Company
POWERGRID TELESERVICES
LIMITED-Quarterly advance . . Services
Services Received by ,
payment of 50MBPS Received by the
) the Company 5.15 0
Internet leaseline(lLL) Company
AAMCP4886G
JAMMU KASHMIR POWER
TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED Services Received b Services
PAN: AADCI4222H Y| Received by the
the Company
Company
445.19 0
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(vi) Outstanding balances and guarantees with Entities Controlled by Central Government:

(Xin Lakhs)
Name of Related Party Nature of Balance As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03_.2023
HT-ROORKEE . .
PAN: AAALICO33R Servuces. Provided by NIL NIL
the Institute
Jammu Power Corporation | ggle of goods (
Ltd(JPDCL), Jammu Electricity) by the NIL NIL
Company
Power Grid Corporation of | o
India Limited(PGCIL)- Services Received by i i
Central Transmission Utility | e Company N L
of india Ltd
PAN: AAACP0252G
JAMMU POWER . _
DISTRIBUTION Services Received by NIL NIL
CORPORATION LTD the Company
PAN: AADCJ4221E
Power Grid Corporation of ) ,
india Limited(PGCIL) Services Received by NIL NIL
AAACP0252G the Company
POWERGRID TELESERVICES
LIMITED-Quarterly advance ) ved b
payment of 50MBPS Services Received by NIL NIL
the Company
Internet leaseiine
| AAMCP4886G B
JAMMU KASHMIR POWER
TRANSMISSION Services Received by
NiL NIL
CORPORATION LIMITED the Company
PAN: AADCJ4222H

C) Other notes to related party transactions:

(i) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with the state governments and entities controlled by the Government
of India are carried out at market terms on arms- length basis (except subordinate
debts received from Central Government at concessional rate) through a transparent
price discovery process against open tenders, except in a few cases of procurement of
spares/services from Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for proprietary items
on single tender basis due to urgency, compatibility or other reasons. Such single
tender procurements are also done through a process of negotiation with prices
benchmarked against available price data of same/similar items.

Consultancy services received by the Company from Parent Company are generally on
nomination basis at the terms, conditions and principles applicable for consultancy
services provided to other parties.

Outstanding balances of Parent company as at 31.03.2024 are unsecured and
settlement occurs through banking transactions. These balances other than loans are
interest free. No impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties has been recognised. Assessment of impairment is undertaken each financial
year through examining the financial position of the arty and the market in
which the related party operates.
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Particulars of Security: The carrying amount of assets mortgaged/ hypothecated as security for

borrowings are as under.

(Rin Lakhs)
S. Particulars As on 31,03.2024 Ason 31.03.2023
No Specific Common Specific Common
Assets Assets Assets Assets
mortgaged/ mortgaged/ mortgaged/ mortgaged/
hypothecated | hypothecated | hypothecated | hypothecated
against against against against
Borrowings Borrowings # | Borrowings Borrowings #
Property, Plant & NIL NiL NiL NiL
1 Equipment
Capital work in NIL NIL NIL NIL
2 | progress
Financial Assets- NIL NIL NIL NiL
3 | Others
Total NiL NIL NIL NIL
# The actual value of security pledged against common pool of assets is X NIL as on
31.03.2024 (Previous Year-NiL).

Disclosures Under Ind AS-19 “ Employee Benefits”: Employee benefit obligations in respect of
employees of Parent Company posted at Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Ltd have been
recognised by the parent company on the basis of actuarial valuation. Corresponding expenditure
is born by the company and recognised in the financial statement of company.

Particulars of income and expenditure in foreign currency and consumption of spares are as
under:-

(X in lakhs)
Sl. | Particulars For the period For the period
No. ended ended 31.03.2023
31.03.2024
a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency NIL NIL
i) Interest
ii) Other Misc. Matters
b) Value of spare parts and Components NIL NIL
consumed in operating units.
i) Imported
ii) Indigenous
c) Income in foreign currency {Specify Nature) NiL NiL
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10.

a) The Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) are as under:

Earnings Per Share:

i Particulars For the period For the period
’ ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Earnings Per Sharg before Regulatory Income (X) — 0.09 0.27
Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share after Regulatory Income (X) ~ Basic 0.08 0.25
and Diluted
Par value per share (X) 10 10
b) Reconciliation of Earning used in calculating Earnings Per Share:
Particulars For the period For the period
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Net Profit after Tax but before Regulatory Income
used as numerator (X in lakhs) 404.38 631.85
Net Profit aftgr Tax and Regulatory Income used as 404.38 631.85
| numerator (X in lakhs)
¢) Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares used as denominator :
Particulars For the perlod | For the ;erlod
ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 |
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as
denominator for Diluted 4,779.94 2,516.99
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as
denominator for Basic 4,503.26 2,305.75

11.

Disclosure related to Confirmation of Balances is as under :

(a)

(b)

The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks and
other parties. There are no unconfirmed balances in respect of bank accounts and borrowings
from banks & financial institutions. With regard to receivables for energy sales, the Company
sends demand intimations to the beneficiaries with details of amount paid and balance
outstanding which can be said to be automatically confirmed on receipt of subsequent
payment from such beneficiaries. In addition, reconciliation with beneficiaries and other
customers is generally done on quarterly basis

The confirmation in respect of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Deposits, loans (other than
employees), Advances to Contractors/Suppliers/Service Providers/Others including for
capital expenditure have been sought for outstanding balances of X 0.05 crore or above in
respect of each party as at 31st December, 2023. Status of confirmation of balances against
total outstanding as at December 31, 2023 as well as total outstanding as on 31.03.2024 is as
under:

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding Amount Outstanding
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amount as on | confirmed amount as on

31.12.2023 31.03 2024
Trade receivable (excluding unbilled)* NIL NIL NiL
Deposits, Loans, Advances to 4,211.26 4,211.26 4,211.26
contractors/ suppliers/ service
providers/ others including for capital
expenditure and material issued to
contractors

NIL NiL 1,628.45

Trade/Other payables
Security Deposit/Retention Money 1,140.14 1,140.14 1,736.41
payable

* Trade receivables are including receivables on account of interest receivable from
Beneficiaries and net of advance from customers.

(c) In the opinion of the management, unconfirmed balances will not require any adjustment
having any material impact on the Financial Statements of the Company.

12. Disclosure related to Corporate Social Responsibillty (CSR) (Refer Note 29)

i. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises, GOI, the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two
per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the
year are as under:

(X in Lakhs)
S. | Particulars For the year | For the year |
No ended ended
) 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

A Amount required to be spent during the year

(1) Gross amount (2% of average net profit as - -

per Section 135 of Companies Act,2013)

(i)  Surplus arising out of CSR project - -

(iii}  Set off available from previous year - -

(iv) Total CSR obligation for the year [{i)+(ii) -(iii)] - -
B Amount approved by the Board to be spent during 50.00 50.00

the year

C Amount spent during the year 9.54 30.07
D Set off available for succeeding years (C- A(iv)) - -
E Amount Unspent during the year 11.92 5.02

Note:- The set off available in the succeeding years has not recognised as an asset as a matter of
prudence, considering the uncertainty involved in the adjustment of the same in future years,

(ii) The breakup of CSR expenditure under various heads of expenses incurred is as bele
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(Xin Lakhs)

Sl. Heads of Expenses constituting CSR For the year For the
No. expenses ended Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 Health Care and Sanitation 2.92 2406
2 Education and Skill Development 11.20 5.57
3 Women Empowerment /Senior Citizen
4 Environment
5 Art and Culture 0.74
6 Sports 2.68
7 Rural Development 3.92 5.02
8 Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan
9 Swachh Bharat Abhiyan
10 Disaster Management o
11 Contribution to Central Government Fund
(including Contribution to PM CARES Fund)
12 Administrative Overhead
13 CSR Impact assessment
Total amount 21.46 34.65

(it}  Other disclosures:-

(a) Details of expenditure incurred during the year paid in cash and yet to be paid in cash along with
the nature of expenditure (capital or revenue nature) is as under:-

(X in Lakhs)
Purpo For the year ended 31.03.2024 For the year ended 31.03.2023
se
Paid in Yet to be Total Paid in cash| Yetto be Total |
cash paid in (a+b) (a) paid in (a+b)
(a) cash (b) cash (b)
(i) Construct 3.46 11.92 15.38 27.46 2.14 29.60
ion/
Acquisitio
n of any
asset
(i) For 6.08 0 6.08 2.61 2.88 548
purpose
other
than (i)
above
Total 9.54 30.07 5.02 35.08
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(b) As stated above, a sum of ¥ 11.92/- out of the total expenditure of X 21.46/-is yet to be paid to
concerned parties which are included in the relevant head of accounts pertaining to liabijjtjes.

13. Disclosures as required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devejopment

Act, 2006 read with notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 11" October,2018 to the
extent information available with management are as under:

(X in Lakhs)
Sl | Particulars As at As at
No. 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(i) | The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier on Balance Sheet date:
a) Trade Payables:
-Principal {Refer Note 20.3) 52.56 43.84
-Interest
b) Others: o 12.28
-Principal (Refer Note 20.4) 18.52
-interest

(ii)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during the year.

(iii)

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; |

(iv)

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on
Balance Sheet date.

|

{v)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

14. Disclosures regarding leases as per IND AS -116 “Leases”:

Company as Lessee:

(i)

The Company has applied the following practical expedients on initial applicati

Treatment of Leases as per Ind AS 116 :

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of the
contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined
as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets

and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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a. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

b. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases With less than

12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

c. Excluded the initial direct costs, if any from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of recognition of right-of-use asset.

d. Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to leases recognised during FY 2023-24

is7.

67%.

(1) Nature of lease: The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of the
following assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

from 3-4 months to three years.

Premises under cancellable lease arrangements for residential use of employees ranging

Premises for offices, guest houses and transit camps on lease which are not non-cancellable
and are usually renewable on mutually agreeable terms.

Land obtained on lease for construction of projects and / or administrative offices.

non-cancellable.

Vehicles on operating leases generally for a period of 1 to 2 years and such leases are not

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss / Expenditure Attributable to Construction in

respect of short term, low value and variable lease are as under:

(X in Lakhs)
S.No | Description 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 Expenditure on short-term leases 142.10 104.92
2 Expenditure on lease of low-value assets 0 0
3 Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of 0 0
lease liabilities

(iii) Commitment for Short Term Leases as on 31.03.2024 is X 97.96 lakhs (Previous Year X 52.04
lakhs).

(iv) Movement in lease liabilities during the year:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Opening Balance 2,312.11 0
Additions in lease liabilities 22,15 6,667.03
Finance cost accrued during the year 112.70 135.08
Less: Payment of lease liabilities 2.44 4,490.00
Closing Balance 2,444.,52 2,312.11
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15. Disclosures under Ind AS-27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’:

Interest of Parent;

Principal Principal activities | Proportion of OWnership
interest as at
Name of Companies place of
operation 31.03.2024 | 31.03 7023
NHPC Limited india Power Generation 54.88% 51.00%

16. Ind AS 36- Impairment of Assets requires an entity to assess on each Balance Sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity is
required to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. If there is no indication of a potential
impairment loss, the Standard does not require an enterprise to make a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount.

Management has determined that the project entrusted to the company are under
tendering/award/construction stage and no cash generating unit (CGU) exist as on date and there
exist no indication that would indicate for impairment of any of the CGUs during FY 2023-24,

17. Nature and details of provisions (refer Note No. 17 and 22)

(I} General

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legai or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the labllity. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a Finance Cost.

if) Provision for employee benefits (Other than provisions for defined contribution and
defined benefit plans which have been disclosed as per ind AS-19 at S. No. 10 of Note
No. 34):

a}  Provision for Performance Related Pay/Incentive:

Short-term Provision has been recognised in the accounts towards Performance Related Pay/
incentive to employees on the basis of Management estimates as per company’s rules in this
regard which are based on the guidelines of the Department of Public Enterprises, Government
of India.

b)  Provision For Wage Revision as per 3™ Pay Revision Committee (PRC):

Short term provision for wage revision of the employees of the company was recognised earlier
as per notification of the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India.

18. The company does not have any “borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets” as per requirement of Schedule-Ill of the Companies Act, 2013:

19. Disclosure regarding Relationship with Struck off Companies: Following is the disclosure regarding
balances with companies struck off under ian 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
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the Companies Act, 1956 as per requirement of Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013:

Name of the | Nature of transactions Balance Relationship Balance Relationship
struck off with struck off company utstanding as | with the Outstanding with the struck
company t 31.03.2024 | struck off as at off company, if
compeny, if 31.03.2023 any, to be
any, to be disclosed
disclosed
NIL Investment in securities NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL Receivables NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL Payables NIL NIL NIL NIL
NIL Shares held by struck off NIL NIL NIL NIL
company
NIL Other outstanding NIL NIL NIL NIL
balances (to be specified)

20. Disclosure regarding Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC}):
Following is the disclosure as per requirement of Schedule-Ill of the Companies Act, 2013, where any
charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period:

Brief description of Location of the Period (in days or Reason for delay in
the charges or Registrar months) by which registration
satisfaction such charge had to be

registered

21. Other Disclosure required under Schedule-lll of the Companies Act, 2013:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by
or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding
that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are applicable to the company as per Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act,2013
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{vi) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company under the penami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988.

{vii} The quarterly returns / statement of current assets filed by the company with banks / financial
institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(viii)  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

22. Impact of change in the accounting policies: The company has changed accounting policy with respect tc
recognition of Carbon Credit CERs/VERs and also change in the useful life of the assets provided ta
employees at residential office. However, there is no impact in the statement of P&L and no material
impact in the Balance Sheet.

24. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).
The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the
Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiarles.

25. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lenders.

For Sahil Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Firm Regn. No. 024041N)
o), \
> Director ) Director v

o (T o) R PGoyal)

M.No. 519405 91\,):_ 09 ' 76’}\/ O, 0854'4920
SoSs sk
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Financigl Officer omp ecretary
\
(Ashok Kumar Nauriyal) (Jai Prakash) (Abhishek Dagur)

Place : @’?@’\W
Date : 30—-{?*2—7
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RHPC LIMITED

RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PRQJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K

| N Trial Balance &s on 31:03-2024

[Amount In R, fukhs]
HoA Closing Bal Dr _[Closing Bal |NS% Bataries
| |Account Deserlptan |Op Bal &r__|Parlod Dr Parlod Cr Cr j{%—
| 110101[FQUITY SHARE CAPITAL ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP 000l 3048s.00] 00
130001 PROFIT & LDSS ACCOUNT 00
SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTEMENT-TO THE EXTENT NOT
131001 | REFUNDABLE X X 20438.00 0.00
310101 [EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT 00 . ] 8.54 o.00]
310201 | SUNDRY CREDITOAS-CAP(TAL WORKS-INDIAN CURRENCY 5 H 33200,;51 34130.19 0.00
310707 | SUNDRY CRED|TORS FOR MATERIAL/SUPPLIES-CAPITAL-INDIAN CLURRENCY 0.00 5.50 136,51 136,12 0.00
310204)| PAYABLES TO PARENT/ SUBSIDIARIES / IV - SERVICES RECEIVED - CAPITAL WORKS 0.00 0.00 o,o_oj 185.22
310207 SUKDRY CREDITORS-OTHERS-CAPITAL-{NDIAN CURRENCY .00 0.00 ERL) 4131
310230} SUNDAY CREDITORS-MICRD & SWALL ENTERPRISE-CARITAL 0.00 18,52 .54 42.30
CONTRA-CURRENT/NON CURRENT-SECURITY DEROSIT/RETENTION-
310300 | CAPITAL/SUPPLY/CAPITAL-OTHERS-INR/FC 37347 0.00 £227.931 4962
SECURITY DEPOSIT-RETENTION MONEY-CAPTAL WORKS-CAPITAL-(NDIAN
310301 [CURRENCY 0.00 31272 765.27 2130.57
310303} SECURITY DEPQSIT-RETENYION MONEY-SUPPLIER-CAPITAL-INDIAN CUARENCY 0, 000
310401 | SUNOAY CREDTTORS-WORKS OTHER THAN CARITAL-INDIAN CURRENCY 13.38 £
316431 1 SUNDIRY CREDITORS-SUPPLIERS-GTHES CAPITAL INDIAN CURRENCY 4
SUNDRY CREDITORS- CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ~OTHER THAN CAPITAL
310413 |WOR) 0
310431 | SUNDRY CREDITARS-OTHERS-OTHER THAN CANTAL-INDIAN CURRENCY 213
310434 | SUNDRY CREDITORS-MICROK SMALL ENTERPRISE-OTHER THAN CAPITAL 247,55 2
0450 | STORES PAYMENT CONTROL ACCOL 13697 22697
CONTRA-CURRENT/NON CURRENT-SECURITY DEPQSIT/RETENTION-OTHER THAN
310500 CAPITAL-INR 7.50 Y 8143 6925
SECURITY DEPOSIT/RETENTION MONEY-CONTRACTQR-OTHER THAN CAPITAL-
310501 1|NOIAN CURRENCY 0,00 7.50 3.57 15.75
31060 ABILITY FOR SALARY Qo 0.00 878.76 880.12
310605 | OTHER EXPENSES PAYABLE TO EMPLOYEES 270/ 31,33 32.17
3106091 PAYABLES TO EMPLOYEES ~REIMBURSEMENT UNDER FURNITURE/ LAPTOP SCHEME oY 0, 3019 30.13
310701 | £LECTRICITY/POWER CHARGES PAYABLE 9 Q. 3.01
310703 | TELEPHOME AND TELEX CHARGES PAYABLE .00/ a3 344 344
310704 [HINT PAYANLS 0.00 e
320706 NROKERAGE AND COMMISSION CHARGES PAYABLE 0.00| 0, 0.37
310735 OTHER EXPENSES PAYABLE 0.00 0.05 1.48 1.51
211201/ EMPLOYEES CONTHIBUTION TOWARDS EPF PAYABLE-COMPULSORY CONTRIBUTION o 5.1 2158 1364
311202/ CORPORATION CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS EPF PAVABLE-IAATCHING CONTRIBUTION 5. ?7.71 23.73
311205 | EMPLOYEES CONTRIAUTION o 032 s, 10.12
311206|CORPOR [ a77 17 10
4, v 2
0. i
411223 | EMIOYEES CONTRIBLTIOM TOWADNK EDE PAVARIF.UOLLINTARDY CONTRILNTION 0.00 2,18 38,67 41.57 0.00 s0a -5.08
311223 | REFUND OF EPF ADVANCE (ECI-EMPLOYEESS CONTRIBUTION a0 [ 6, 5.07 0.00 [ -0.31]
1113311 GPF RECOVERED AND PAYABLE TO OUTSIDE DEPARTMENTS a.00 0,40 a.15 1_,;2, (X 1,45 -1.45
EMPLOYEES CONTIIBUTION TOWARDS SUPERANNUATION/PENSION FUND
311241 | PATABLE-COMPULSORY oo 197 47,08 4667 0.00 148 -3.48
CORPORATION CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS SUPERANNUATION/PENSION FUND
311242 [PAYABLE 0.00/ 4,84
311301} INCOME TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE-SALARIES 0,00 2078
311302 [INCOME TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE-CONTRACTORS-INDIAN 0.00] 3137
EEL {NCOME TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE-RENT 0, 111
311306} INCOME TAX D SERVIEES 0.00 12.70
311307 | INCOME ATS HERS a.00 .00
311407 | LABILITY FOR OTHER STATE LEVIES 0. 18.08
311902 | AMOUNT PAYABLE TQ PARENT COMPANY — OTHER THAN TRADE PAVARI ES 0.00 12210 130,69 360.26 0.00 35166 -351.66
1|SUNDRY CREDITORS-QUARTERLY PROVISIONAL LIALILITIES (CAPITAL WORKS) 0,00 0,00 10955.40 10955.40 0,00 0.00 0,00
SUNDRY CREDITORS-QUARTEALY PROVISIONAL LIALILITIES (SERVICES) 0.00 0.00 63.13 63.13 0,00 0.00 0,00
SUNDRY CREDITOR-QUARTERLY PROVISIONAL LIABILITY- MICRO& SMALL
312105 | ENTERPRISE-CAPITAL 0.00 0.00 10.38| 1036 a.00 0.00 0.00
SUNDRY CREDITOR-QUARTERLY PROVISIONAL LABILITY- MICRO& SMALL
312106 ENTERPRISE-OTHER THAN CAPITAL 0.00 0.00 156.58 156,58 0,00 0,00 0,00
CQUARTERLY PROVISIGNAL LIABILITIES -PARENT/ SUBSIDIARIES / JV - SERVICES
212113 | KECEIVED - CAPITAL WORKS 0.00 £07.11 607,11
312203 [OUTPUT GST - CENTRAL GST PAYABLE - STATE 1 0.00] 0.01 0.01
312203 |OUTPUT GST - STATE GST PAYABLE - STATE 1 0.00 0.01 0.01
312205 |DUYPUY GST - INTEGRATED GST PAYABLE - STATE 1 0,00 0,34 0.62 .00
312211/CGST - PAYABLE UNDER REVERSE CHARGE MECHANISM - STATE 1 1,9 14,48 16.58 2.0
312213/£GS5T - PAYABLE UNDER REVERSE CHARGE MECHANISM - STATE 1 14.49 1;_5;’ 1
312215/IGST - PAYABLE UNDER REVERSE CHARGE MECHANISM - STATE 1 0,10 X
312231|7D5 Payable - CENTRAL GSTSTATE L 23448
3122331705 Payable - STATE G5T-STATEL 234,48
212235]7D$ Payable - INTEGRATED GST - STATE 1 0,87
SECURITY DEPOSIT-RETENTION MONEY-SURPLIER-CAPITAL-INDIAN CURRENCY-NON
318303/ CURRENT 3.08 3.18 0,00 0,60 -0.60
SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY-CONTRACTOR-OTHER THAN CAPITAL-
318501 INDIAN CURRENCY-NON CURRENT 0,00 0.96 5.92 9.23 0,00 427 -4.27
SECURITY DEPOSIT RETENTION MONEY-CAPITAL WORKS -CAPITAL-INDIAN
319301 | CURRENCY-CURRENT. 0.00 372.72 4855 73 §221.02 0.00 172803 -17za.rﬂ

RHPCL- Annual Report 2023-24



=t

RHPC LIMITED

RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K

Trial Balance as on 31-03-2024

{Amount In Bs, lakhs)
HOA [Closing BaiDr  |Closing Bal [Net Baiancs |
|—_JAccount Descripten OpBalDr_|OpBalCr |Period Or Perlod Cr Cr 1’-'1—'!&!22___
SECURITY DEPOSIT-RETENTION MONEY SUPPLIER-CAPITALINDIAN CURRENCY-
319303} cuareNT 0.00 0.65 382 3.72 0.00 235 0,55
SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY CONTRACTOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL-
319501 | INDIAN CURRENCY-CURRENT 0.00 6.55 63.43| 7220
350425 | PROVISION FOR PRP- EXECUTIVE 0.00 210,00 596,59 626.25
SECURITY DEPUSIT-RETENTION MONEY-SUPPLIER-CAPITAL-INDIAN CURRENCY-FAIR
380602 |VALUATION ADIUSTMENT 0.08 0.00 0.45 0.42
350426 ]PROVISION FOR PRP- SUPERVISOR 0.00 255 854 14.54
355101 | PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 0.00 o.q 227,66 227.66
355121 | PROVISION FOR INCONME TAX - FOR CURRENT FY 0.00 227.66 574.76 49861
SECUNITY DEPOSIT-RETENTION MONEY-CONTRACTOR-OTHER THAN CARITAL -I
HOTOS | INDRAN C JC-TAIN VALLATICH AT 1)) a.00 0.72 0.20 ] 055
353000 (D 10436
I LEASE (IND 2 om -2 0
ASE (IND 25 0.00 E
LEASE {IND A5}-CURREN] 7.7 & 3
KD AS)-CUHREN 7, 0.00 ] -2.08
NT LY .
[ 1 .74 0 145274
540 5 0 .40
217 0 [ An47 0.00, 47
13,10 8.00 0 1410 X 14.30
411502 JFEPS-STATION WAGONS INCLUDING INSPECTION VEHICLES 721 0.00) 7 0.00) 7.
L1701 | FLURNITUREFITLIRES-OPFICS V)
11702 [ FURMTURR-FIXTURES-RESID OFFICE- EMPLOY 7 0. 0 13 11.76
411705 FURNTTURE-FIXTURES-CLUB 214 0.00| .00 0.60 114 2.14
412707 | FURNITURE-FIXTURES-FIELD HOSTEL/TRANSIT HOSTEL 1534 0.0 24, 3.31 000 36.42
411710] FURNITURE-FIXYURES-MINOR VALUE >750<5000 251 0.00 256 0.45 462 £2.00 .62
TUANITURE-FINTURES-RESIDENTIAL OFFICE- EMPLOYEES-VALUE MORE THAN 750
411712 AND UP TG 5000 0.03 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.12 0.00 0.12]
4118011 EOM S 41.75 0, 3, 156 4184 .00 4154
R 8. .00 0.00 815 oey 8.5
WAL DFFICE- EMPLOYEES .26 0,00 135 1 0 18.74
) F o [ 423
.00 .00 45 L. 445 443
b MAING AJE »750 0,54
: [ 1,08/ 000 100
0.0 E a 419
0.
DYl a
! 2:37)
047 % !
1) 2431
035 0.00 [T 0.35
033 [¥}]
1 1.4
2 a 2
i GFHOL- EMPALOVEL Q 1 =
WBNTS-RESIDENTIAL OFFICE-EMPLOVEES-VALUE MORE THAN 750
412022 | AND UP TO 5000 045 0,00 a.a7 0.00 052 000 052
412201]INTANGIALE ASSETS-COMPLITER SOFTW. 11.32 0,00 50 [ 1 a.no, 16.35
aon) 8,40 07e 2243 o 22,43
o 4.50 0.00 450 0.00 4.50
L ASSE Lo [ X 17.84 as? 41.5 0.00 41.84
REFNIGERATONOTRAER THAN FOR OFFICE o.00 n,g 0.0 421 aosg an
412801]| OFHCE EQUIPMENT/MISC ASSETS OF MINOR VALUE >750<5000 n.oo 133 1,69 1621 0.00 16.21
| ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-PLANT AND MACHINERY-TRANSMISSION LINES
420901 UDING FOUNDA' 029 0.00| nis
413401 1RIGHT TO USE ASSET -LANDS UNDER LEASE {IND AS) 0,00 667,03 0.00
413402 &I;HTTO USE ASSET - BUILDINGS ON LFASE lIND AS) Q-_EQ.[ 22.15 0.00
420102} ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-LAND-RIGHT OF LISE a.00 63.78] 63.78 0.00 0,00
421002 | ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-DIESEL GENERATING SETS 0.38 aoo| 0.73
421201|WATER SUPPLY & SEWERAGE AND EFFLUENT DISPQSAL SYSTEM 0.14 0.00 047
421501 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-VERICLE 2.34 0.00 153
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-FURNITURE FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 6.00 1.10 8.93
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-COMPUTERS 13,35 1.84 2144
421501 | ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENTS 0.13 0.00 036
422001 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-OFFICE EQUIPMENT 124 0.15 4.5 0.00 -5.85
422201 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-INTANGIBLE 0,04 EL 0.00 6.29 0.00 9,78 -9.79
4225011 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIA 0.00)| 2,59 0.00 3.60 0.00/ 619 -6.19
422601} ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-FIXED ASSETS OF MINOR VALUE>750<5000 0.00 1461 2.60] 113 0.00/ 1620 -16.20
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-RIGHT TO USE ASSET -LANDS UNDER LEASE (IND
423401/ AS) 0.00
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION-RIGHT TO USE ASSET - BUILDINGS ON LEASE {IND
42349&2] _ 0.00
430201[CWIP-ROADS 4519.88
430203} CWIP-BRIDGES AND CULVERTS 2345.19
430301 |CWIP-BUILDING CONTAINING HYDRO ELECTRIC GENERATING PLANT 704.31
430021 | EWIP-TRANSIT CANMP AND FIELD HOSTEL 0.0
umaimmmmmuunmns#mmmv nu.d
430601 CWIP-DAMS AND BARRAGES 34.67]

4306504 CWIP-POWER TUNNELS AND PIPELINES

430305 | CWIP-STREET UGHTING, ETC.

430607 | CWIP-TAILRACE TUNNELS
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RHPC LIMITED

RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K

Trial Balance as on 31-03-2024

437593
437531

610301

A0S0

6510601

610701

EAC- INTEREST ON SECURITY DEPOSIT/ RETENTION MONEY-ADJUSTMENT ON
ACLO OF ©

| SN
(Amount In Rs. lakhs]
HOA Closing Bal Dr  [Closing Bal |Net Balance
Arcount Deacripton OpBalDr {OpBalCr |Perlod Or Parlod Cr Gr In lakhs:
430608 | CW!P-HYDROMECHANICAL WORKS-DAMS AND BARRAGES 0.00] 0.00 331,06 150.22
430713 | CWIP-MISCELLANEOUS POWER PLANT EQUIPMENTS 0.00| o.ool 0.04 0.04
434001 | CWIP-EXPENDITLIRE ON HYDRO AND METEOROLOGICAL DATA COLLECTION 472 0.00 2.48 o.g_ 0
434005 | CWIR-DESIGN AND CONSULTANCY CHARGES 206.00 000 242107 971.31 2355.
434008 | CWIP-OTHER SURVEY INVESTIGATION, CONSULTANCY AND SUPERVISION CHARGES 6490 0.00 70.80 47.20 88.50 !
437501 | |EDC-WAGES, ALLOWANCES AND BENEFITE 1675.20 0.00 3028.97 1526.41 3177.76 3177.76
IEDC-GRATUITY AND CONTRIBUTION TO PROVIDENT FUND & PENSION SCHEME
437502 | {INCLUDING ADMINISTR TIQN FEE 20078 0,00 39356 185.13 409.22 0.00 4097
437503 | IEDx IAFF wguep'g g.g; 118,90 0.00 20315 70,66 243, 00 24338
sl ID MAINYENANCE-BUILDING . 7. 347 ' 347
4a7s3 ID MAINTENANCE-OTHERS 3 118,56 ; 0.0¢ a
GES 130 3385 428 0.00 r
[TET] 699 30.20/ 0.00" 5l
. 038 14 as3 0.00 a4
1375 ENPENSLS 134.34 143. [X 26045
3Thla | End LECTRICITY EXPEN 849 11.06 1764 17.64
437518 i D m LLING AND ANCE 5759 0.00 f2 1 361 92,30 000 97
437530 IEDC-EYPENSE ON VEHICLES/ST 25! 0.00! 7.4 9.04 a0b
'511|IEDC-TELEPHONE YELEX AND POSTAGE-COMMUNICATION EXPENSES 978 [ &7 22.34 3434 0.60 3454
[EDC-PRINTING AND STATIONER 9.4 [ 014 424 13.75 .00 1375
ISE 127859 0.00 454.81 26831 1464.07 0,00/ 1464.07
ONSULTANCY-INDIGENOUS 167.22 a.00 F7} 145 169.71 0.00 16071
ON ASSETS RIAL WRITTEN OFF LY 245 1.36 118 0.00 118
A o, 2 i 5.01] g.m[ .21 an
! 45135 309.25 27800 0,00 273,02
ERATION TO AUDITORS 132 .00 357 2.74 205 Q.00 205
RING CONSTRUCTION 22 2233 172.8: Z78, 0.! 27980
ILITY NOT REQUIRED WRITTEN BACK o 0.00 0.00/ 1 .07 007
It ‘.': f'-".*.*.: TTHIRE CHARGES o [ 5.07 10.97 548 YT

mvnmwu «WNEI THAN WIUC'ION STORES)-OTHER CIVIL BUILDING
MATERIAL ITEMS

INVENTORIES {OTHER THAN CONSTRUCTION STORES}|-SPARES-GENERATING P&M
AND ALY SYSTEA-INOIGEMOUS

INVENTORIES {OTHER THAN CONSTRUCTION STORES|-OTHER GENERIC ELECTRICAL
[1:3713

INUENTNOIES IOTHED THAM COMSTRUCTION STABESI-SPAGES FOR FOLIBMENT

:
!

INVENTORIES (OTHERTHAN CONSTRUCTION STORES}-OTHER GENERIC

610301 | HARDWARE/MECHANICAL {TEMS
INVENTORIES {OTHER THAN CONSTRUCTION STORES)-GENERAL
611101 | COMMUNICA / ITEMS
511201 INVENTORIES (OTHER THAN CONSTRUCTION STORES)-LOGSE T0OLS
640102 | [MPREST WITH ﬂaFF
INVENTORIES (OTHER THAN CONST STORES)-INCIDENTAL EXPENSES ON
612001 | PROCUREMENT OF INVENTORY-INDIGENQUS 200 000 150.25 0.00 .00 0.00
617101 |INVENTORIES {OTHER THAN CONSTRUCTION STGRES)- CSRTEMS 0.001 0.00] .88 0.00 .00 0.00
630102 0,00 0.00] 057 0.00] 0.00 0.00
40450 CCOUNT 0,00 0.00/ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
X 272756 0.00 451.45 0.00 46145
640501 | CHEQIUE ISSLIED ACCOUNT ND.2 0.35 0.00 328 0.00 3.28
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS IN BANKS [ORIGINAL MATURITY >3 MONTHS AND UP TO
640904 |12 MONTHS ) 10250,00 0.06/ 44410.49 54660.49 0.00 0.00 0.00
SHORT TEAM DEPOSITS IN BANKS- WITH QRIGINAL MATURITY LESS THAN 3
EéOSéG‘MQMY.H% 8,00 0.00 32952.56 25876.56 7076.00 0.00
INTEREST ACCRUED AND DUE ON EMPLOYEE ADVANCES-HBA-SECURED-NON
650120| CURRENT 0.0 0.00} KB LY 315 0.00 0.00 000
INTEREST ACCRUED AND DUE ON EMPLOYEE ADVANCES-CAR-SECURED-NON
650121 |CURRENT _ * 0,00 0.00 16.27 16.27 0.00
INTEREST ACCRUED AND DUE ON EMPLOYEE ADVANCES-COMPUTER ADVANCES-
650123 | SECURED-NON CURRENT 0,00 0.00] 0.09 0.0 0.00
650205 INTEREST ACCRUED BUT NOT DUE ON SHORT TERM DEPOSIT 52,66, .00 109.19 11683 45.22
650310 ELECTRICITY CHARGES RECOVERABLE FROM EMPLOYEES 0.00 0.00 119 118 0.00|
650400] CONTRA-CURRENT/NON CURRENT-ADVANCE-DEPOSIT/EMD 0.00 0,16 0,96 0.96 0.00
016 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16
ATUR 0.12 0,00 gZ' 033 0,00
OTHER PRE-PAID B(PENSFS-CURRENT 11038 0o 0.00] A6.04 7434
650803 | CLAIM RECOVERABLE FROM CONTRACTORS 2.66 0.00 1010 10.74 1.43
650807 | CLAIMS RECOVERABLE FROM STATE/ CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 575.39. 0,00 2978.19 532.65 302093
650810 CLAIMS RECOVERABLE FROM EMPLOYEES 0.07 Q.00 368 0.33
G50810 | CLAIMS RECOVERABLE FROM EMPLOYEES {PRP) 0.00 0.00 192 0.00
0.00 0,00 (Rl 0.00
560104 | COMPUTER ADVANCE-SECURED. MON CURRENT 0.00 0.00] 0.10] 0.00
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RHPC LIMITED T
RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K
Trial Balan 31-03-2024
|Amount In R, fakhs)
—
8alDr  |Ciosing Bal
HOA e Ciosing Bal e ] :\:.‘ Belane
Account Descripton OpRalDr |OpBalCr |Period Dr Perlod Cr 7 jakh
DEPOSITS MADE FOR AVAILING SERVICES ON PERPETUAL BASIS -NON CURRENT 0.16 0.00 096 0.96 0.16 0.00 3z
HOUSE BUILDING ADVANCE-SECURED-NON CURRENT 0.00 0.00 20.14 40.10) 0.00 o T
CAR ADVANCE-SECURED-NON CURRENT 0.00] 0.00 13, 13.83 0.00 0.00 T
0.00) 0.00 5671 56.74 0.00| 0.00 =
TOUR TRAVELLING ALLOWANCE ADVANCE 0.00 000 0.60] 060] o.q 0.00 o
660303 [ PAY ADVANCE 000 [ 483 AB3 0.00 o e
660308 | DEPARTMENTAL ADVANCE TO STAFF 0.00 0.00 14.% 14,85 0.00 [X o
50332 | ADVANCE TO EMPLOYEE AGAINST PAP 0,00 0.00 256,98 266.94 0.00 0.00 o0
01| INCOME TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE BY OUTSIDERS 0.00 0. 90.12 sa1l 0.00 0.00 ™
INOOME TAX PAID IN AD [X 0. 197.78 2.75 0. 7
I ] -
: 52
[
[t -
o
4 -odn
148
230 ! 031
0.00 [
L 000
03.07
a7 2%
¥ NCES (DIRECTO [+X Q. 0.00 1450
IC PAY-INTERM PAY-DEPUTATION PAY/FAMILY PAY/NON PRACTICE
QL X 49130 0.00| 49130
0.00 o184
2357 2157
0.00 037
[+ 0,00} 013
17
23904
[ 3a2 o.
8. X 541
PERVISO ;
¥ e .16
;_J{-.'.".' e
PLITVISON
EF MAINTENANCE [SUPERVISOR) Dol 3
[ (3
L3
[Y 7430 ? :1
COMPANYS CONTRIBLITION TO PENSIONIEPS) SCHEME (EXEC.) [ 737 0.006 7.97 m 737
DR/PENSION FUND (EXECUTIVE) 000 a0 2.7 0,00 276 J—“”‘
CHEME (SUPERVISOR 0.00 0.00 10, [X 1066} o 10,65
500243 | COMPANY'S CONTRIBLITION TO SUPFERANNUATION/PENS|ON FUND [SUPERVISOR 0.00 a.00 575 0,00 73 0.00, 5.75
200361 'F ADMINISYRATION CHARGES 0.00 0.00 1.26 1.26 0.00 1.26
G5 COMPAS 0 D ON ACTUARIAL VALUATION X 000 20.81 .70 12.12 0.00 1212
LEAVE TRAVE X [X | 0
EDICAL REIM ENT DUTDOOR (NON TAXADLE])
EDICAL REIMBURSEMENT OUTDDOR (TANABLE)
900413 | MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT INDOOR (NON-TAXABLE)
300814 \L REIMBURSEMENT INDOOR[TAZABLE]
500422 Alks AND LMIFDRMS
900427 [AWARDS TC EMPLOVEES
500428 | NI RAOTHER GIFTS TO STAFF
5004301€05T OF MEDICINES/APPLIANCES ETC.
500433 | GROUP INSURANCE PREMILIM
500447 | EMPLOYERS CONTRIBUTION [ERT) TOWARDS SOUIAL SECURITY (EXECUTIVE
500448 | EMPLOYERS CONTRIBUTION TOWARDS SOCIAL SECURITY {SLIPERVISOR)
500451 | RETIKED EMPLOYEES MEDICAL BENEFIT ACTUARIAL VALUATION EXPENSE
900457 | BAGGAGE ALLOWANCE ON RETIREMENT ACTUARIAL VALUATION EXFENSE
500454 | MEMENTO ON RETIREMENT ACTUARIAL VALUATION EXPENSE
PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-PROFESSIGNAL UPDATION
500523 | ALLOWANCE
PERKS & ALLOWANCES [CAFETERIA-EXECUTIVE-CANTEEN ALLOWANCE/MEAL
900626 | VOUCHERS
PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-CHILDREN EDUCATION
500627 | ALLOWANCE
SO0G28 | PERKS & ALLDWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-HOSTEL SUBSIDY
PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-CONVEYANCE / TRANSPORT
500630 ALLOWAMNCE
500631 PERKS & ALLOWANCES [CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-WASHING ALLOWANCE
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RHPC LIMITED

RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K

Trial Balance as on 31-03-2024
e 0

(Amount in Rs. lakhs)
—
HOA Closing Bal Dr  |Closing Bal |Nat Balance
| |Account Descripton OpBal Dr_{OpBalcr |Period Br Perlod Cr cr In lakhs
PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
| 200632 | ALLOWANGE 713 0.00 7.13 0.00 213
| 800633 | PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-DOMESTIC HELP ALLOWANCE 553 0.00 5.53 000) s
500634 | PERKS & ALLOWANCES [CAFETERIA}EXECUTIVE-ELECTRICITY ALLOWANCE n 0.00| 3.72 008l am|
PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-NEWSPAPER / PROFESSIONAL
900635 | ITERATURE ALLOWANCE 518 0.00 5.18 0.00 518
900636 | PERKS & ALLOWANCES {CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-DRIVER ALLOWANCE s,rj 0.00 s.7n| 000l 7]
900637 PERKS & ALLOWANCES (CAFETERIA)-EXECUTIVE-HOUSE UPKEEP ALLOWANCE 2.26 0.00 2.26 0.00 226
900631 | PERKS & ALLOWANCES ETERIA}-EXECUTIVE-SELF DEVELOPMENT ALLOWANCE 0,00 0.00 172.50] 0.00 17.50 0. L 1250]
AFETERIAL-EXECUTIVE-CLUB MEMBERSHIP Al LOWANCE [} 053 a0 0.53 0.00: 053
ES JCAFETERA HEXECU TIVE-GANDENS OWANCE 0. 094 0.00 0.99 0,00 0.98
£3 {CAFFTEALA) EXECUTIVE-LTC ALLOWARCE o 0.00 40, 0.00 40.05
[CAFETERIALSUPERVISOR- WASHING ALLOWANCE 0.00 [ 1 1.63 0, 1463
900654 | PEMAS & ALLOWANCES SUPERVISOR-SELF DEVILOPMENT ALLOWANCE 0, .00 488 4, o 4
500555 | PERKS OWANCES (CAFETERIA)-SUPERVISOR-LTC 0.00| 0.00) [XT] o Iy 0.00 asn
INTERESY ON SECURITY DEPOSIT-RETENTION MONEY-ADJUSTMENT ON ACCOUNT
910401 | OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST 0,00/ 0. [ 013 0.07 0.07
913402 | CONTRA FOR LEASE EXPENSES - BUILDINGS ON LEASE (IND AS) 0.0 0.00/ 0.00 2 0,00 2.44 244
0011 | INTEREST EXPENSES - LANDS UNDER LI {IND [ 0. 1 0Q! 11 .29
D MAINTENANCE-COMPUTERS [ 0. 0.7 077 0.7
13002 | INTEREST EXPENSES - BUILDINGS ON LEASE [IND AS) 0.4 0. 0.41) 0,00 041 0.41
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE-MATERIAL CONSUMED-ADMINISTRATIVE/QFFICE
920204 {BUILDING 0.00 a.00 022 0.00 0.22 0.00 022
920216 | REPAIR AND MAINTENA UEST HOUSE BUILDING a0 0.00) 726 0.00 7.26] 0.00 7.26
920605 | REPAIN AND MAINTENANCE COMPUTER SOFTWARE & RELATED SERVICES o 0.05 0.65] 0.00 0.65
920514 | KERAIR AND MAINTENENCE-TLECTRICAL INSTALLATION 0.00 X 4 ERZ] 0.00 3,18
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE-MATERIAL CONSUMED-LIGHT VENICLES OTHER THAN
920713 CAR/IEEP 0,00 0.00 0.02 0.00 0.2 0.00 002
920714 |REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE-PAYMENT TO QUTSIDE AGENCY-LIGHT VEHICLE 0. 0. 14,53 434 10.13 0.00 0.18
REPAJR AND MAINTENANCE-OTHER EXPENSES-LIGHT VEHICLE OTHER THAN
920715 |CAR/JEEP 0.00 0.00 a.08 0.08 0. 0.00 Q.00
0. 0. 65.26 26.00 39.26 0,00 392
IEEP [ ] [X
[Y 0.00
0.00 Y
0, 13788 125.53 245 0.00 243
Q. [%] 0.00 Q
X [ X 0
o0
0. 0.00 [X
A goq qgse
PR [T X 0.00 31
24507 | ELECTRICITY EXPENSES-RESIDENTIAL D 0, 11
921601 | CONVEYANCE EXPENSES - OTHER THAN TRAINING 0, [ 1
11Ra
13.61
10
455
530
031
1.56
137
9.08
168,52
216.17
0.64
oo
17,95
0186
: . an] :
922103/ PBLICITY NEWSPAPERS 0.00 0.00 03] 0.00 003 0.00 003
522104 | MISC. PUBLIC RELATION 0.00 0.00| 005 0.00] 0,05 gél 0.05
922204 | ENTERTAINMENT AND HQSPITALITY EXPENSES ON O 0.00 0.00f 0.00 0.00| 0.00) 0.00
922401 | PRINTING AND STATIONERY 0.00 0.00 351 2,38 0,00 2.38
0.00 0.00 1.58 152 o.00| 152
0. 0.00 0.00
0.27 0,00 0.00
0.19 0.00 0.18
2.79 0.00 146
0.78| 0.00 043
074 0.00 0.74
1.00 0.00 1.00
1.27 0.00 0,40
1399 0.00 1.99
21168 0.00 92,35
525011 | TRAINING EXPENSES 1.50] 0.00 147
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RHPC LIMITED
RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT, KISTHWAR, J&K

Trial Balance as on 31-03-2024

201

(Amount In Rs. lakhs) -
0, sing Bal Dr |Closing Bal
HOA Closing Ba 3 g Net Bilanco
t en Balcr _ [Perlod Dr Perled Cr r in lakhg
X o,
925013 [ XPENSES ON DEPARTMENTAL MEETING 000 z.gl_l a.18 1.90 00 5
925018 | FESTIVAL TION EXPENSES-OTHER THAN INSEPENDENCE/REPUBLIC DAY 0.00 182 074 108 000 i
9250191 INDEPENDENCE/REPUBLIC DAY CELEBRATION EXPENSES 0.00 450 2,00 020 8.00
P — - D.lﬂ
925020) MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES .00 61 055 [Y 0,00 o
925021 BRATION EXPENSES ON NON-FESTIVE OCCASIONS 0.00 3.80 0.00' 3.50 0.00 390
925030 | OPERATIONAL/RUNNING EXPENSES OF OFFICE 0.00 74.26 32.69 4157 0.00 YT
925031 | BRIEFCASE REIMBURSEMENT 0,00 081 0.00 0,61 0.00 e
925037|OTHER RANK CHARGES-NDIAN CURRENCY 0.00 36.05 0.00 36.05 0,00 T
925043 | EXPENSES ON DEPARTMENTAL MEETING- OTHERS 0.60/ 284 Y 2.75 0.00 i
wsma CSA & SD - HEALTH cn: SANrI'A ON EXPENDITURE 000 1m| 0. 2.92 0, i~
LicA ] : L 1130
a o [
[
1
0,60 1 2
04y 7
a9 153 258
0, 083 0. e
000 o od 036
15
0 5 =
3,560 [ 160
0, 113 [} i 00, 113
o 15184 0.00 15184
0. 0. 2. .00 2
X Qa 00 0.00!
) PAYMENT UNDER INCOME TAX ont 021
JRITTEN OFF 0, 245 2 L 0.0 %
00 49061 347, 15161 9.00 15181
[OCWAGES, ALLOWANCES AND BENEFITS ] 15; 1502.56 02 56
0 [EDC-GIATUTTY AND CONTRIBUTION TO PF & PENSION
2 ot
12848 r
.00 7 7.49 EX]
!7} ~S7.£0
a -
ai 7, 1284 [7] (6725 -6.46
12612 126,12
.00 2 9.15] K
[.X A oan
0.00) 145 EX
930128 | TRANSFER OF EXPENSES TO IEDC-LOSSES ON ASSETS/MATERIAL WRITTEN OFF 000 0.00 1.26 2. 0.00
oo a0 152 2
0.00 0.00 171'|g 223 00/
DVERIES 0.00, 0.00 201 an as0 0,00 419
Y 0.00 0.09] 10.97 5.07) 5.89 0.00 585
TRANSFER OF EXP, TO EAGINTERFST ON SECURITY DEP / RETENTION MONEY-ADJ
980183 | ON A/C OF EFFECTIVE INTEREST 0.00 0.00 0.12 0.00 0.07 0,07
TRANSFER OF EXPENSES TO EAC- DEPRECIATION- RIGHT TO USE ASSET - UNDER
9801861 LEASE {IND AS] Q%l &%‘ -154 06
980187 | TRANSFER OF EXPENSES TO EAC- INTEREST EXPENSES - UNDER LEASE (IND AS) 0.00 0.00 112.43 22513 0.00 112.70 -112.70
TRANSFER OF EXPENSES TO EAC- CONTRA FOR LEASE EXPENSES - UNDER LEASE
980188 | (IND AS) 0.00 0.00 244 0,00 244 000 244
GRAND TOTAL a136a0a] 4208484 40767857 40767857 79960.74] 7996074 .00
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Annexure-G

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on

auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 30 April 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company

personne] and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

eide

(S. Ahlladini P )
Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit (Energy)

Date: 28 (/) .. 24
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R-13/69, RAJ NAGAR
GHAZIABAD-201002
UTTAR PRADESH
Mob:9650990414

ﬂ s Mob:9650990614

A.K. RASTOGI &ASSOCIATES anilrastogi3609@gmail.com,
Company Secretaries anil rastogi29@reditfmail.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°' MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited
Room No. 8, Block No. 2, NHPC Regional Office,
JDA Commercial Complex,

Plot No. 1, Narwal,

Jammu- 180006

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate Practices by Ratle Hydroelectric
Power Corporation Limited (CIN: U40105JK2021GOI1012380) (hereinafter
called the company) for the financial year ended on 31* March 2024. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2024 (Audit period) Complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31*
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March 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules

made thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings; - NOT APPLICABLE
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the
company as the shares of the company are not listed with stock exchanges
during audit period).
(&) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based employee
Benefits) Regulations,2014;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;
(i) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company viz.

a. The Electricity Act, 2003;

We further report that Compliances/ processes/ systems under other specific

applicable laws (as applicable to the industry) are being relied on the basis of

periodical certificate under internal compliance system submitted to the Board of

Directors of the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards as amended from time to time issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements),
2015 (Not applicable to the company during Audit period)

(iii) DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSE.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject
to the following observations:

1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 5™ July
2017 has exempted a Joint Venture Company from the requirement of
having independent Directors as such the Company is not required to have
Independent Directors on its Board. However, in the absence of independent
Directors, the composition of the Board of Directors is not in Compliance

with DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

2. The Company has not constituted the Audit Committee as required under
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, as the Company does

not have any Independent Director on its Board.

3. The Company has not constituted Remuneration Committee as required
under DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, as the

Company does not have any Independent Director on its Board.

4. The ratio of part time directors representing NHPC Limited and JKSPDCL/
Government of J&K is in variance to Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the company from 01.04.2023 to 16.08.2023 during the financial year
2023-24, as the number of Directors on the Board were not in proportion of
equity portion of NHPC and JKSPDCL/ Govt. of UT of J&K i.e. 51% and 49%

respectively.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company was not duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors
for the Financial Year 2023-2024. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Generally, adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance and in some cases at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision was
carried with unanimous consent of all the Directors or through requisite majority,
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while the dissentingmembers views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company had no major events/
action bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: 18/06/2024

For A. K. Rastogi & Associates
Company secretaries

An|| Ku mar Digitally signed by Anil Kumar
Rastogi

Rastogi Date: 2024.06.18 13:38:33 +05'30'

(A.K. RASTOG]I)
PROPRIETOR
FCS no.: 1748

CP No.: 22973
UDIN: U40105JK2021GO1012380
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited
Room No. 8, Block No. 2, NHPC Regional Office,
JDA Commercial Complex,

Plot No. 1, Narwal, Jammu- 180006

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Ghaziabad
Date: 18/06/2024 For A. K. Rastogi & Associates
Company Secretaries

Digitally signed by Anil Kumar

Anil Kumar Rastogi Rastogi
Date: 2024.06.18 13:39:28 +05'30'

(A. K.RASTOGI)
PROPRIETOR
FCS no 1748

CP No.:22973
UDIN: U40105JK2021GO1012380
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